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JOHNSON ELECTRIC VISION

We are the growth company in motion related

businesses. Come grow with us.

Being the industry’s growtl leader, Johnson Eleetrie ereates significant benelits tor all

its stakeholders,
* Customers will have improved value and assurance of supply globally.

* Employees will have the opportunity to learn and grow professionally. Hiring of talented
new employees will be enhanced because growth is a sought after atiribute of preferred

employers.

* Suppliers of materials and services will also directly benefit from Johnson Electric’s
growth. Increased component volumes and new products will improve the efficiency,

profits and stability of the best companies in Johnson Electric’s supply chain.

* In combination, the broad range of growth related benefits, ultimately provides superior

returns to Johnson Electric’s shareholders.
JOHNSON ELECTRIC'S BRAND PROMISE

Johnson Electric is the most reliable partner
Johnson Electric is responsive and flexible; and has the financial stability and organizational
integrity to meet all of our commitments and to support our customer’s success. Product

reliability and assurance of supply are our commitment,

Johnson Electric delivers competitive advantage
Johnson Electric delivers differentiation and innovation through its motion products —
subsystems comprising of stepper motors, DC motors, switches, solenoids, flexi-circuits,

motion control, precision plastics and precision gears.

Johnson Eleeteic Holdings Limited %o ] oo on ]




CORPORATE PROFILIE

Johnson Electric is one of the world's largest providers of motion subsystems and motion
components for automotive and industrial applications.

Established in 1959, Johnson Electric ships its products to more than thirty countries in
hundreds of different applications and has a capacity of producing over 1 billion motors and
motion subsystems,

Johnson Electric's goal is the creation of shareholder and customer value, The focus of
the Group's business strategy is to grow with innovative and differentiated products that
deliver competitive advantage for its customers.

Johnson Electric’s principal financial objective is to maximize long-term cash flow by investing
in markets and product segments that offer superior growth prospects and in arcas where the
Group can leverage its substantial resources and competencies.

Johnson Electric has over 40,000 employees and subcontract workers in 20 countries, with
the majority of the workforce engaged in production activities in China. Design engineering
centers are located in Hong Kong, China. Japan, Israel, ltaly. Switzerland. Germany and
USA.

Listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong since 1984, Johnson Electric has a sponsored
American Depesitory Receipt Program in the United States through JPMorgan Chase Bank.
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CORPORATE AND SHAREHOLDER
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

For the year ended 31st March 2007

2007 2006 Percent
increase/
USSM USSM (decrease)
Turnover 2,087 1,526 37%
EBITDA 265 201 32%
Profit before income tax 136 116 17%
Profit attributable to equity holders 110 94 17%
Capital expenditure 77 66 17%
Shareholders’ funds 941 846 11%
Earnings per share (US cents) 2.99 2.56 17%
Dividend per share (US cents) 1.67 1.67 -
TURNOVER PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO
A compound annual growth rate of 19.1 per cent. EQUITY HOL.DERS
A compound annual growth rate of 11.8 per cent.
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FINANCIAL HIGHT IGHTS

SALES BY PRODUCT APPLICATION

For the year ended 3 {5t March 2007

2007 2006
LS$M Yo USSM %
Automotive Products Group (“"APG™) 1,051 50 777 51
Industry Products Group (“1PG™) 722 35 600 39
Other Businesses 314 15 149 10
Total 2,087 100 1,526 100

1APG
E PG

Other Business

2007 2006

SALES BY GEOGRAPHIC DESTINATION

For the yvear ended 3 st March 2007

2007 2006
USSM A USSM %
Europe 896 43 619 41
America 505 24 396 26
Asia 086 33 511 33
Total 2,087 100 1,526 100

\ (1 Europe

America

Asia

N

2007 2006

Note: Certain comparative figures of sales by product application and by geographic destination have been reclussified to conform
with the current year’s presentation.
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A MESSAGE FROM PATRICK WANG

TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS,

Johnson Electric recorded increased sales and earnings in the 2007 financial year in a difficult operating environment.
Global component manufacturers like ourselves continue to be heavily impacted by high and volatile raw material prices,
rising production costs in mainland China, and soft demand in many important end-customer markets — most notably in the

North American and European automotive sectors.

Despite these strong headwinds, the Group continued to make positive progress in integrating and building upon the
technology, talent and new customer channels that became part of the business as a result of the acquisitions of Saia-

Burgess Electronics and Parlex Corporation.
SUMMARY OF 2006-07 RESULTS

. For the financial year ended 31st March 2007, total sales were USS2,087 million — an increase of 37% compared to

the 2006 financial year

. Operating profit after restructuring charges and provisions was US$164 million, an increase of 35%
. Net earnings attributable to shareholders increased by 17% to US$110 million or 2.99 US cents per share
. The Board has recommended a final dividend of 1.09 US cents per share, which together with the interim dividend

of 0.58 US cents per share, represents a total dividend of 1.67 US cents per share

SALES PERFORMANCE

The significant increase in sales was primarily due to the inclusion of a full year of sales contributions from Saia-Burgess
Electronics and Parlex Corporation which were acquired in November 2005, compared to only five months in the previous
vear, Excluding the effect of adding those acquisitions and other recently consolidated businesscs, including Ri Yong,

Group sales grew by an underlying rate of approximately 5%.

The Automotive Products Group (APG), the largest operating division, generated sales of US$1,051 millton — an increase
of 35% over the prior year following the combining of Johnson Electric’s original automotive motors business units with
the automotive actuator, stepper motor, and other auto related products of Saia-Burgess. The division is competing in a
market where many of its major OEM customers are experiencing severe financial pressure and overcapacity, although it
did benefit from the strength of the Euro currency against the US Daollar during the year. So far, the structural problems
facing the automotive industry, along with the nature of many long-term component supply agreements, have constrained

the ability of the Group to pass on the full effects of higher raw material prices to our customers.

The Industry Products Group (IPG) recorded sales of US$722 million —a 20% increase compared to the prior year which
was mostly due to the merging of the former Commercial Motors division of Johnson Electric with the Industry division of
Saia-Burgess. Progress was made in achieving higher price realisation for selected motor products in this division, though

competitive pressures in the more standardised segments of the market continued to be intense.

6 Johnson Electric Holdings Limited  Annual Repor: 2007




AAESSAGE TROM PATRICK W ANG

Other smaller businesses within the Group contributed a combined US$3 14 million to total sales. [n part this reflected the
full year contribution of Parlex Corporation, a flexible printed circuit board business that experienced growth in demand
for its products at an annualised rate of approximately 9%. plus a full year contribution from the Controls business of Saia-
Burgess. [t also reflected strong growth in the Group’s Trading business and the consolidation of sales of China Autoparts,

Inc.. a small but fast growing PRC castings business that became a subsidiary in 2006.

PROFIT IMPROVEMENTS CONSTRAINED BY HIGH INPUT COSTS AND
RESTRUCTURING CHARGLES

As noted carlicr, the profitability of the Group continues to be affected by high and volatile raw matertal costs — particularly
copper, steel, and plastics which 1ogether represent the largest portion of the Group’s materials purchases. [n addition, the
company has been bearing the negative financial effects of higher PRC labour rates and the strengthening of the Renminbi

currency.

On the positive side. the company continues to make progress in improving its production efficiency through a variety of
operational initialives including in-sourcing the production ot selected components and, compared to last year, lower

average steel prices also have had a beneficial effect on the business.

Some business units have not been performing at the level expected and management is taking action 1o address the
underlying performance issues. Parlex, for example, despite healthy top-line revenue growth has been behind plan on its
restructuring and this has necessitated a strengthening in management controls and processes to ensure that it becomes a
profitable contributor te the Group. Similarly. within the acquired Saia-Burgess group of businesses, the Switches operation

is requiring focused attention to improve its manufacturing elfectiveness and market positioning.

As part of the ongoing process 1o optimise the global manufacturing footprint of the enlarged business, Johnson Electric
incurred total restructuring charges and provisions — including those relating to the shutdown of plants in Dalian, PRC and
Cranston. USA — of slightly in excess of US$12 million. which compared to USS17 million in the prior year. The payback

for these investments will be seen in the coming year.

The combination of the above factors resulted in the Group's operating profit margins being 8%. simitar to last year.

TRANSFORMATION TOWARDS ENGINEERED MOTION SYSTEM
SOLUTIONS

Twelve months ago, we were in the early stages of integrating twa important acquisitions. A year on, I am pleased to report
that Saia-Burgess and Parlex are clearly providing us with a set of capabilities and technelogy that is transforming and

strengthening Johnson Electric’s long-term prospects.

The Group is evolving from having a leading position in small DC motor products to having what is perhaps the broadest
set of engineerced motor and motion system solutions available in the market today — incorporating DC motors. stepper
molors, actuators, solenoids. switches. precision gears, piezo ceramics and flexible printed interconnects. In fact. almost

30% of the combined sales of APG and IPG are already derived from products other than conventional electric motors.

Johoson b Reetris Holdiogs ianted  Annoa Ropon 207 7




A MESSAGE FROM PATRICK WANG

The capability that we now have to develop customised solutions — involving motion sub-systems comprising several of the
components that we design and manufacture ourselves — offers significant potential to add greater value to our customers

and improve Johnson Electric’s own economics over time.

In other respects, too, the business is being transformed. In the past, our operating model was geared to and built around a
large-scale, low cost manufacturing platform in China and this remains a key source of advantage for Johnson Electric that
we will continue to leverage and invest in. Increasingly though, the new global reach of the Group provides a closer day-to-
day interface with the engineering and R&D teams of our key customers in Europe and North America which, in many

segments, is an essential element in enabling us to develop innovative and differentiated solutions for our customers.

Naturally, this increased product scope and global reach of the enlarged Johnson Electric Group brings with it increased

complexity and in consequence it is imperative that we organise and manage our business differently.

In the core operating divisions, management is being more systematic in defining where we wish to compete and in
focusing resources on opportunities that offer the best potential for engineered solutions and higher price realisation. At the
same time, in the corporate centre, we are strengthening financial planning and monitoring processes to improve the way
in which we allocate capital across a more diverse portfolio of business activities. This means that business units not
meeting target levels of performance will be subject to intensive scrutiny to determine whether the business can deliver the
required returns within a reasonable period of time and whether there continues to be a logical and attractive fit for it within

the Group.
OUTLOOK

We arc committed to transforming the Johnson Electric Group into a truly global business with market leading operating
units producing the worid’s most innovative motion solutions, We are already a clear market leader in many of our largest
market segments, our pipeline of innovative new products is healthy, and our ability to generate strong cash flows remains

very sound indeed.

In the short-term, we anticipate aggregate organic revenue growth will remain in the range of 5 to 7 per cent per year. This
reflects the impact from having a relatively large proportion of the Group’s sales derived from certain segments of the
automotive sector which are currently weak as well as our efforts to improve pricing to reflect increases in our cost base and
our overall value proposition. We will continue to exit markets where price realisation reflects only the commeditisation of
products and where profitability is therefore low. This overall growth also includes continuing success in our Trading

business although margins there are, naturally, not comparable to the manufacturing segments.
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YAESSAGE FROM PATRIC K WANG

On the cost side, there are no clear signs at present that the headwinds which have severely dampened Johnsen Electric’s
financial performance in recent years are easing. Raw material prices remain at levels that are substantially above those
experienced for much of the past two decades. In addition. vperating costs in China continue to rise as a result of the
appreciation of the Renminbi currency and upward pressure on wages and employee benefits. To help combat these pressures,
we continue to seek new and innovative manufacturing practices by using techniques such as Gemba Kaizen to constantly

increase output and improve productivity. and to lower our unit costs.

As a consequence, we currently anticipate that Group profits in 2007-2008 will be similar to this year, reflecting the
revenue and cost dynamics referred 1o earlier and the fact that some of the top line growth will come from segments of the
business which have inherently lower margins. such as our Trading business. This anticipated outcome remains contingent

on unexpected changes in raw material costs.

Looking two to three years ahead however. the transformation strategy we are currently pursuing will result in a stronger
competitive position in areas where there is the greatest potential for growth, value-add. and improved profitability. With
the talented team of people and new technologics that we have assembled over the past years [ am confident that we are on
a course which will result in a more sustainable and advantaged business over the longer term.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank all of our customers, sharcholders, suppliers, and employees for their continued
support.

On behalf of the Bourd

Patrick Shui-Chung Wang

Chatirman and Chief Execuiive

Hong Kong. 8th June 2007

Johnson Electric Hokdings Limited Vo Roson o0 4




GROUP AND BUSINESS UNIT SALES REVIEW

OVERVIEW

For the financial year 2006/07, total Group sales increased by US3561 million, or 37%, to US$2,087 million. This overall
increase included the full-year sales contributions of US$580 million and US$123 million by Saia-Burgess and Parlex,
respectively. Last year, the Group’s results included only five months of sales from these entitics. These businesses, together
with the consolidation of Shanghai Ri Yong and China Autoparts, Inc. following an increase in sharcholdings that converted
these former joint venture and associated businesses into majority held subsidiaries, contributed an overall US$497 million
more than in 2005/06. Excluding the effects of these acquired and recently consolidated businesses, the Group’s underlying

sales grew by 5.1%.

On a geographic basis, sales to Europe were US$896 million (43% of total sales), an increase of 45%; sales to Asia for the
year amounted to US$686 million (33% of total sales), an increase of 34%, sales to the Americas were US$505 million

{24% of total sales), an increase of 28%.
Following the acquisition of Saia-Burgess Electronics and Parlex Corporation in November 2003, the Group has reorganized
parts of its business structure to align more closely with its end-customer markets and to facilitate increased revenue and

cost synergies,

The Group’s activities are now organized into three primary divisional groupings: Automotive Products Group; Industry

Products Group; Johnson Electric Capital and Johnson Electric Trading.

10 Juhnson Electric Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2007




GROU P ANIYBUSINISS ENTESALES RENTEW

SALES ANALYSIS 2007 20006 Increase / (decrease)
USSM Y% USSM % USSM %

AUTOMOTIVE PRODUCTS GROUP (“APG™) 1,051 50 777 51 274 35
- MOTORS 718 34 643 42 75 12
Body Climate 9y 35 NG 6 13 16
Baody Instrioments 159 7 152 1o 7 3
Powertrain Cooling 351 17 294 19 57 19
Powertrain Managenent 71 3 63 4 & i2?
Chassis Braking 38 2 48 3 (1) (22)

- ACTUATION SYSTEMS 333 16 134 9 199 149
INDUSTRY PRODUCTS GROUP (IPG™) 722 3s 600 39 122 20
- MOTORS 540 26 532 35 & 2
Home Appliances 193 9 190 12 3 2
Power Tools 160 & 164 11 4) (2)
Business Equipment/Personal Products 120 6 100 7 20 20
Audio-Visual 67 3 78 5 (1) (13)

— ACTUATION SYSTEMS 182 9 68 4 114 168
Johnson Electric Capital 217 10 83 6 134 161
Johnson Electric Trading 97 5 66 4 31 47
TOTAL TURNOVER 2.087 100 1.526 100 561 37

Nute:  Certain comparaiive figures have been reclassificd 1o conforns with the curvent year s presentation.

. Johnson Eleetric Capital consists of three operations: Parlex. Saja-Burgess Controls and China Autoparts, Inc.
AUTOMOTIVE PRODUCTS GROUP (“APG™)

APG is the combination of what were previously Johnson Electricy "AMG™ business and Saia-Burgess's automotive business,
Sales revenue for APG this year was USS1.051 million, accounting for 50% of the Johnson Electric Group’s consolidated
revenues. APG Sales are analysed in two groupings: Motors and Actuation Systems.

MOTORS

APG is a leading supplier of electric motors 10 the automotive industry. providing motors which are used in a broad range

of vehicle applications at OEM, Tier 1 and Tier 2 customers worldwide,

For the 2006/07 financial year overall sales increased by 12% to USS718 million. accounting for 34% of total Group

revenue.

The division is subdivided into business units which are aligned to specific types of motor application in a vehicle,

Johnson Fectrie Hatdings Fimited  Anooal Repon 2007 1




GROUP AND BUSINESS UNIT SALES REVIEW

Body Climate
Window lift regulators Seat adjusters

The Body Climate business unit, whose two main products are window lift and power seat adjustment motors, achieved

sales of US$99 million, an increase of 16% from last year.

In spite of North America SUV sales slowing down and adversely affecting seat motors, sales for the BU in North America

showed a moderate increase, mainly due to strong sales growth in the power lift gate application.

Through continued growth in window Iift motor sales in Europe, and to new Asian customers, we will spread our global

reach in this product application.

For power seat motors as well, the BU will supplement its current sales to the North America market by expanding its

geographic reach and increasing its European and Asian customer base.

Body Instruments
Door lock actuators Windshield washer pumps Headlamp adjusters

Mirror adjusters HVAC flup actuators Headlamp washers

The Body Instruments business unit, which includes micro-motors for door lock and flap actuators, windshield washer
pumps and adjusters for mirrors and headlamps, achieved sales of US$159 million. Body Instruments was able to grow
revenues by 5%, this in the face of a tough pricing environment, by maintaining market share in steadily growing core
markets, notably doorlock, washer pump and climate control . The coming year will see continued focus on cost reduction

activities, product innovation and the capture of synergies with other business units.

Powertrain Cooling

Cooling fan modules Cooling fun motors Electronic speed controllers HVAC blowers

The Powertrain Cooling business unit achieved sales of US$351 million, an increase of 19% over last year, driven mainly
by the first full year consolidation of Shanghai Ri Yong's sales of US$50 million. Excluding this impact the underlying
growth of this unit was 2%, with increased volume from new products launched last year, mainly in the USA, and the
addition of electronic speed control units on cooling fan modules. Significant restructuring activity has been conducted in

this business in recent vears including the transition of some motor production to our China manufacturing site.

Powertrain Management

Fuel pumps Electronic throttle controls Air pumps

The Powertrain Management business unit achieved fuel system and engine management product sates of U$71 million.
The 12% growth in the Powertrain Management sector was achieved in a relatively strong market environment in which
fuel efficiency and lower emissions are becoming increasingly important. Ongoing design innovation to improve product

performance is the principal focus going forward.

12 Johnson EL ctric Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2007




GROLU P AND BUSINISS UNEESAT TS RENVTEW

Chassis Braking
Anti-lock braking svstems pump Enyine starters Windshield wipers

Transfer cuse actuators Electric parking brakes Rear windshield wipers

The Chassis Braking application recorded sales of USS38 million. a decrease of 22% from last year. Weaker sports uttlity
vehicle sales in North America resulted in lower sales than expected in transfer case actuators and A S motors. Concentration
in the next few years will be on developing the Asian market and on satistving the growing demand for transmission based

products. In Europe. our electric parking brake capabilities have created o foothold for Chassis Braking there.

ACTUATION SYSTENS

Achiators Switches Solenoids Sensors

This business unit consists of the former Saia-Burgess Automotive Division businesses. This segment achieved sales off
USS$333 million, accounting for 16% of total Group revenue. Last year, sales for the five month period following the

acquisition of Saia-Burgess amounted 10 US$134 million.

The business unit continues to benefit from an increasing demand for comfort and safety in vehicles and from its technology
leadership in this field which, in future. will be enhanced further by integration with our competencies in permanent DC
motors. This combination will open up significant new development opportunities in the market of automotive actuation

systems.
INDUSTRY PRODUCTS GROUP (*1PG™)

Total sales revenue for IPG was US$722 million, accounting for 35% of the Group’s consolidated revenucs. 1PG sales arc

analysed in two groupings: Motors and Actuation Systems.

MOTORS
The [PG motor business provides tailored motor solutions to global customers in Home Appliances, Power Tools. Business

lquipment and Personal Products, and the Audio-Visual market.

For the full year. IPG’s motor sales increased by 2% to a record level of US$5540 million. amounting to 26% of total Group

sales.

Home Appliances (including Floor and W hite Goads)

Home Comfort Products White Goods Products Food & Beverage Preparation Products
Vacuum blower Dishwasher pumps Coffee Grinder Assembly
Extractor Distiwasher drain pumps Beverage Pumps
Brush rolls Hushing machine Food processors
Hand Drver Washing machine drain pumps Table Blenders
Refrigerator funs Stick Blender
Dishwasher actuators Hand Mixer

"4
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GROUP AND BUSINESS UNIT SALES REVIEW

The Home Appliances business unit achieved sales of US$193 million, an increase of 2% over last year. Success in the
Beverage Preparation and White Goods segments and a significant number of new product launches, such as power brush
rolls, pumps for water filtration, soap dispensing, coffee machines and hand dryer blowers, contributed to strong sales
growth but losses in the already mature Food Preparation segment reduced the overall result, This business unit has a

number of new product developments in the pipeline for bathroom and other pump applications and now has significant

momentum,

Power Tools

Hand Tools Garden & Outdoor Products Auto Accessories & Others Starters

Drills and Drivers Leaf blower Polishers Lawn and Garden
Sawy Hedge Trimmer Garage Door openers Quthoard Marine
Sanders String Trimmer Machine Actuator Recreationul Vehicle
Grinders Bilge prmp Winches and pumps

Hand vacuums

The Power Tools business unit recorded sales of US$160 million, a decrease of 2% from last year. The decline was primarily
a result of a softening US power tool market in the back half of the year and a significant full year decline in the gas engine

market that directly impacted starter sales.
Looking forward, we expect the US market to be relatively soft as the US continues to experience lacklusire housing starts.
In contrast, demand in other markets is expected to be reasonably strong. Next year’s focus will be on a number of new

products including the patented line of “high performance compact motors”,

Business Equipment and Personal Products

Business Equipment Personal Products Health Care & Fitness Products Home Security & Automation
Printer products Hair dryers Medical Nebulizer Roller blinds

Gear box products Tovs Blood pressure pumps Home lock

Copiers Hair trimmer Treadmili

Joysticks Hair curlers Breast pump

FPaper cutters Massagers

Scanners Tooth brushes

Shredders Shavers

Projectors Liquid dispenser

Bill validators Aguarium product

The Business Equipment and Personal Products business unit achieved sales of US$120 million, an increase of 20%. The
growth was fuelled largely by increased sales in the new Medical and Health Care products segment, in the printer segment,
and in gear box assemblies. Sales grew by 39% in the Medical and Healthcare segment, by 38% in the printer segment
because of newer products such as encoder motors and subsystems, and by 46% in gear box assemblies. Sales in the

remaining segments were generally flat due mostly to tough competition based on pricing.
The business unit is poised for growth based on new innovative products such as brushless DC motors and geared motors

which were launched in the last quarter of the year. The business unit is also expecting growth as it increases penetration in

new market segments such as fitness equipment and home security.
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GROUPAND BEUSINESS ENIT SATIS RIVIEW

Audio-Visual (including Nihon Mini Motor)
CD-ROM applications

DV product applications

Game controllers

Digital camera

Digital video camera

Audio Visual business unit recorded sales of USS67 million, a decrease of 15% from last year. This decline is the result of
the strategic decision to exit commoditized products in light of stiff price competition and to focus on higher margin
segments in the industry. With the exception of digital cameras. sales were down across all major segments, including
game controllers, projectors, I'T and audie equipment. New product launches of game controllers and web cam applications
with new global customers in North America and Eurepe position this business unit for increasing success in the next 2-3

years.

ACTUATION SYSTEMS

Actuators Switches Solenoids Sensors

This unit is comprised mainly of former Saia-Burgess businesses. This segment achieved sales of USS182 millien for full
year, accounting for 9% of total Group revenue, In the 5 months of last year sales amounted to 368 million. The Actuator
and Switch units are working closely with other busincss units to cross sell and develop value added Industrial systems.
The primary focus is on higher value subsystems in key markets such as Medical, Security, HVAC and Circuit Breakers.

What was formerly a regional business under Saia-Burgess is now being expanded to capture plobal market opportunities.

OTHER BUSINESSES

Johnson Electrie Capital

Johnson Electric Capital performs two main functions within the Johnson Electric Group. First. it aims 10 invest in component
manufacturing and 1echnology businesses adjacent to the core motion sysiems operations where we believe the Groupy
distinctive competencies can bring added value. Second, it functions as a corporate “incubator™ for smaller businesses that

will benefit from receiving individual and close management oversight to enable them to reach their full potential.

Businesses currently under the Johnson Eleetric Capital umbrella include Parlex Corporation, Saia-Burgess Controls, and
China Autoparts, Inc. During the vear. the Group divested its 50% interest in an electrical distribution systems business in

the PRC.

Parlex, a flexible printed circuit board and interconnect selutions company. achieved sales of US5123 million and revenues
grew at an annualized rate of approximately 9% . These revenuces are for the full twelve month period. compared to having
only five months post-acquisition sales included in revenue last vear. Parlex did not perform at the level expected and
management is taking action to correct the underlying performance issues. Restructuring activities have taken longer than
planned which has necessitated a strengthening of management controls and processes to cnsure that Parlex becomes a

profitable contributor to the Group as soon as possible.
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GROUP AND BUSINESS UNIT SALES REVIEW

Saia-Burgess Controls, a successful niche player in the European programmable controls industry, achieved sales of US$65
million. The financial year 2006/07 was similarly the first full year of contribution to the Group since the acquisition of its
parent company, Saia-Burgess Electronics Holdings.

China Autoparts, Inc., which is the parent company of a leading producer of high quality iron casting parts for the automotive
sector in China, achieved sales revenue of US$29 million, Over the past two years, Johnson Electric Capital has increased
its equity ownership interest in this rapidly growing private enterprise in a series of transactions and now owns 53.3% of thc

company.

Johnson Electric Trading

The financial year 2006/07 was the second full year of operations of Johnson Electric Trading. The business was established
to build a sourcing platform in China to supply global customers with a wide range of motor and motor-related electro-
mechanical components and sub-systems materials that are currently not manufactured by the Group.

Johnson Electric Trading achieved sales of US$97 million for the financial year, an increase of 47% over the prior ycar.
The business continued to expand selectively its sourcing networks and now has over 120 “qualified” components and
subsystems suppliers in China. Customer programs in motors and motor systems staried to yield results in the year under
review and Johnson Electric Trading s on track 1o be a meaningful contributor to the Group’s growth in the foreseeable

future,
INVESTING IN PEOPLE

At the end of the financial year, Johnson Electric Group has over 40,000 employees and subcontract workers globally.

Talent management

The principal objective of Johnson Electric’s organization-wide talent management programme, internally referred to as
“Session C”, is to identify and develop top leadership talent to meet the Company’s global requirements for bench strength
and a talent pipeline. Consisting of identification, assessment and development phases, Session C is a CEO-fed process
that is linked to our strategic planning and business development activities. With two annual cycles alrecady completed,
Session C was a key process used in integrating our acquisition of Saia-Burgess in late 2006. Individual development plans
for Johnson Electric talent are implemented and monitored and in-depth interviews are conducted to truly understand the
dynamics of our talent and how they would like to be developed. Management succession plans are also products of the

Session C process.,
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Performance Management Process and Leadership
The performance management process (PMP) provides high quality input into our Session C talent management programme.
Leadership competencics within the PMP are heavily emphasized, ensuring that we build strength for the future. We

continue to work hard on ensuring consistency of measurement across business units and functional organisations.

[.earning Organization

The third annual Senior Management Development Seminar (SMDS) is being kicked off in July 2007 to an international
cast of senior managers who spend six days offsite to lcarn and to network. JE-specific cases now complement Harvard and
Ivey business cases, thus providing particular relevance to the work. We continue to run our flagship JENESISO residential

leadership development programme annually as an imtegral part of our talent development process.

Our Chief Executive plays a very visible role in these JE proprietary development programmes reflects the importance of

learning and development in Johnson Electric.

A new Core Management Programme has been “market-tested” and is being rolled out by Johnson University (JU). The JU
Master of Science (M.Sc.) degree program continues Lo produce highly qualified and much needed motor engineers each

year.

Responsibte Corporate Citizen
We continue to receive new [SOQ14001 registrations in Johnson City, in Shajing, China while most of our sites globally are
already SO registered. The success achieved by the Saferv Is Job One movement maintains Johnson City's world class

status in safety,
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FINANCITAL REVIEW

OVERVIEW

Total sales for the year were UUS$2,087 million, an increase of 37% over last year. This increase is primarily due to the

inclusion of a full twelve months’ sales of Saja-Burgess and Parlex which were acquired in November 2005, together with

the consolidation of Shanghai Ri Yong in which the Group increased its shareholding in April 2006 to convent this former

joint venture into a majority held subsidiary.

The Group reported profit attributable to equity helders of US$109.7 million, or 2.99 US cents per share for the year ended

31st March 2007, compared to profit attributable to equity holders of US$94.0 million or 2.56 US cents per share for last

year. This represents an increase of 16.7%.

Analysis of Consolidated Profit and L.oss Statement

2007 2006
Other Other
Automotive Manu- Automative Manu-
&ndustry  factwring  Trading Total % &lndustry facturing  Trading Total %
USSM USSM USSM USSM USSM USIM USSM USSM
Sales 11727 172 96.7 20866 1000 13771 834 658 15263 100.0
Cost of goods sold (1.3264)  (139.8) (882) (1,5744) (75.5) (1.0249) {61.5) (62.7)  (1.149.2) (75.3)
Gross profit 4463 574 8.5 5122 45 1522 218 1l Nl 4.7
Other incore and gains 11.3 0.6 0.2 121 0.6 131 - - 13.1 09
Selling and administrative Q920) (497} (63)  (480)  {167) @64) (08 @6)  (515)  (163)
EBIT before restructuring 165.6 83 14 176.3 34 139.2 10 (1.5} 1387 91
Restructuring @3} (9) - (08) (16.1) (L1) -y
EBIT 1573 44 24 164.1 18 123.1 (0.1) (15) 1213 80
Financing 219 (1.3) {1.6) (03)
Profit/ (loss) from
JViAssociates 0.3) - 24 0.1
Profit before income tax 1359 6.5 1163 16
Income tax expenses (22.9) {L.1) (219} {1.4)
Profit for the year 113.0 54 94.4 6.2
Minority intetest (33) (0.1) (0.4) -
Profit attributable to equity holders 109.7 53 %4.0 6.2

Note: “Other manufacturing ' is comprised of Parlex, Saia-Burgess Controls, Johnson Electric Capital and China

Auwroparis, Inc.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Group Sales

SALES ANALYSIS 2007 2006 Increase / {decrease)
USSM Yo USSM Y USSM %

AUTOMOTIVE PRODUCTS GROUP (*APG™) 1,051 50 777 51 274 35
— MOTORS 718 34 643 42 75 12
Bodv Climate 1Y 3 &6 6 13 16
Bodv Instrwments 1y 7 152 HY 7 5
Powertrain Cooling 331 17 294 19 57 19
Powerwrain Management 71! 3 63 4 8 12
Chassis Braking J& 2 48 3 (1) (22}

— ACTUATION SYSTEMS 333 16 134 9 199 149
INDUSTRY PRODUCTS GROUP (*1PG™) 722 i5 600 39 122 20
- MOTORS 540 26 532 35 8 2
Home Appliances {93 9 190 i2 3 2
Power Tools 166 & 164 i (4) (2}
Business Equipment/Personal Products 120 6 i 7 20 20
Audiov-Visual 67 3 78 3 (1) (15)

- ACTUATION SYSTEMS 182 9 68 4 114 168
Johnson Electric Capital 17 10 83 6 134 161
Johnson Electric Trading 97 5 66 4 31 47
TOTAL TURNOVER 2,087 104 1,526 100 561 37

Note:  Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conforn with the current year s presentation.
. Johnsen Electric Capital consists of three operations: Parlex, Saia-Burgess Controls and China Autoparts, Inc.

Excluding the effect of adding those acquisitions and other recently consolidated  pyrnover

businesses. including Ri Yong, the underlying sales growth in the year was 5.1%. LSS

A discussion on the sales performance is provided in the Group and Business Unit Sales

Review section on page 10 to 17 of this report.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Cost of Sales and Gross Profit

The Group’s gross profit was US$512.2 million, which at 24.5% of sales overall is in line with last year.

The profitability of the Group continued to be affected by relatively high and volatile raw material prices. The significant
increase in copper prices throughout the year was only partialiy offset by decreased steel prices. Margins have also been

reduced by increases in PRC labour rates and the strengthening of the Renminbi against the US dollar,

The adverse margin impacts noted above were largely offset by a strong Euro, relative to the US dollar, which benefited
principally our European automotive business. We also saw some margin enhancement following operatienal initiatives
such as in-sourcing the production of selected components and the moving of some production to our lower cost manufacturing

centres in China and Eastern Europe.

Selling and Administrative Expenses (“SG&A”)
SGE&A expenses increased 38.4% to US$348.0 million, which at 16.7% of overall sales is in line with last year. The SG&A
included the full year consolidation for Saia-Burgess, Parlex and Shanghai Ri Yong. We have a number of initiatives

underway to streamline processes and structures, especially in Europe, in order to progressively reduce the cost of SG&A.

Restructuring Costs

The Group recorded restructuring costs in the year which totaled US$12.2 million compared to US$17.2 million last year.
These costs related to the shutdown of plants in Dalian and Guangzhou (PRC), Cranston (USA) and to the reorganisation
of certain manufacturing operations in Europe. The payback for these investments will contribute to improving margins

next year, and beyond.

EBIT / Sales Earnings Before Interest and Tax (“EBIT™)
{As a percentage of sales) e . .
EBIT was US$164.1 million, an increase of UJS$42.6 million or 35.1% over last year.
D/D
28 Excluding restructuring costs, EBIT was US8176.3 million, an increase of US$37.6

million or 27.1%. The Group EBIT (before restructuring costs) decreased from 9.1% as

a percentage of sales last year to 8.4% this year, which reflects lower margins on acquired
business, continuing pressures in material and labour costs, soft conditions in some of

our markets and challenges with increasing prices.

03 o4 05 W) o7
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FINANCLIAL REVIEW

Finance Costs
Interest expense for the year amounted to 1J$$27.9 million compared 1o USS7.6 million last year. The increase 1s mainly
due to the full year finance costs incurred on the bank loans to fund the acquisition of Saia-Burgess, Parlex and the Group’s

operational requirements.

Income Tax Expenses

Taxes on profits increased 4.6% to UU$$22.9 million, compared to US$21.9 million Jast year. The effective tax rate (“ETR™)
for the year was 16.9%, compared to 18.8% last year. Last year included a one off charge of $2.6 million which had
increased the effective tax rate by 2.2%, without which the rate would have been 16.6%. This vear a release of tax provisions
in Europe of US$4.9 million reduced the effective tax rate by 3.6%. Without this the rate would have been 20.5%. Excluding
these two items, this represents an increase of 3.9% on last year. This is broadly in line with the Group’s expectation of the
effect of including a full vear’s tax charge for the Saia-Burgess businesses, which operate in countries with higher tax rates

relative to the rest of the Group.

The increase in the underlying ETR from 16.6% to 20.5% results mainly from a change in the proportion of taxable profit

which was earned in higher tax jurisdictions, with a greater share of profits now being earned in Europe.

Profit After Tax Profit Attributable to
Equity Holders

Profit after taxation incrcased 19.7% to US$113.0 mitlion. (INN

Profit Attributable to Equity Holders
Profit attributable to equity holders increased 16.7%, from US$94.0 million to US$109.7

million, Earnings per share increased at the same rate from US$0.0256 10 US$0.0299.

Earnings per Share

LS eents
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

FINANCIAL CONDITION

Fixed and Intangible Assets, and Investments

{Non-curren! Assels)
Total non current assets were US$1,148.7 million, up 3.5% from last year.

Property, plant and equipment increased by US$11.5 million, mainly due to the currency effect on the translation of
European held assets. Property, plant and equipment expenditure exceeded depreciation by US$5.0 million but this increase
in the asset base was partially offset by the write off of redundant and impaired fixed assets arising from restructuring

activities.

Intangible assets at year end amounted to US$667.2 million, an increase of US$35.6 million from last year. The revaluation
of Swiss Franc denominated goodwill and other intangible assets accounted for an increase of US341.1 million and, in
addition, goodwill adjustments arising from the acquisition of Saia-Burgess and Parlex amounted to an increase of US$9.1

million. [ntangible assets were reduced by US$17.2 million in the year as a result of amortisation.

Shanghai Ri Yong, previously a jointly controlled entity, became a subsidiary during the year, and we disposed of our

interest in CJ Electric Systems, also previously a jointly controlled entity.

Operating Working Capital
(including Stocks and Work in Progress, Trade and Other Receivables, and Trade and Other Payvables)

Operating Working Capital increased by US$35.5 million (9.4%) to US$412.0 million. Of that, US$14.8 million was due
to the changes in exchange rates used in translation and an increase of US$7.1 million was due to the acquisition of
Shanghai Ri Yong. An amount of US$6.6 million was recognised as a goodwill adjustment for the fair values of the
operating working capital relating to businesses acquired in prior financial year. After adjusting for the impacts noted
above, the underlying working capital increased by US820.2 million, in line with the underlying rate of sales growth in the
year (5.1%).

Sales to Stock Stocks and work in progress increased by US$17.8 million {7.6%) to US$251.2 million.

Times

12 An increase of US$7.3 million was due to exchange rate changes and adjustments to

goodwill, and the inclusion at the year-end of the stock and work in progress of Shanghai
: Ri Yong added US3$8.1 million. Net of these changes and adjustments stocks and work in
s | _  progress increased by US$2.4 million (1.0%) during the year. The sales-to-stock ratio

increased to 8.3 tums from 8.2 last year when the full year effect of the acquired businesses

is taken into account. Efforts to optimise stock holdings continued during the year, with

the supply chain management organisation working closely with suppliers,

03 04 5 08 o7
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Trade and other receivables increased by 1US340.7 million (9.7%) to US$458.9 million, of which US$18.7 million was due
10 exchange rate changes and adjustments to goodwill, The acquisition of Shanghai Ri Yong added US$8.2 million. Net of
these changes and adjustments trade and other receivables increased by US$13.8 million (3.3%), which is at a lower rate of
increase than the underlying growth rate in sales. In light of the difficult market conditions in the automotive sector the
Group has reviewed its credit and collections policies and controls. At the year end, 80.0% of trade receivables were aged
less than 60 days from date of invoice as compared 1o 75.7% last year and there were provisions of US$9.5 rllion against

receivables compared to US$8.6 million a year ago.

Trade and other payables increased by USS$23.0 million (8.4%) to US$298.1 million, Capital Expenditures
including an increase of JS$17.8 million to account for exchange rate changes and ! %M
adjustments to goodwill. The acquisition of Shanghai Ri Yong added US$9.2 million. Net |

of these changes and adjustments the trade and other payables decreased by US$4.0 million

(1.53%). This was mainty as a result of introducing tighter controls to ensure that suppliers

were paid in line with agreed terms, -

Financial Instruments, Derivatives and Taxes

(including Derivative Financial Instrumenis Receivable & Pavable, Income Tax
Recoverable, Curvent Income Tax Liabilities, Current Other Financial Assets at Fair Value

through Profit or Loss)
Net liabilities were US$21.9 million, an increase of US$17.4 million on prior year. This is due to marked to market
valuation on a cress currency interest rate swap entered for hedging our investment in foreign subsidiaries, forward currency

contracts and commoadity options at fair value.

Provistons and Other Liabilities

(including Curvent and Long Term Provisions and Deferred Income Taxes)
The total provisions and other liabilities were US$151.2 million, a decrease of US$5.0 million. This is mainly due to a
decrease in restructuring, other pension and retirement benefits provisions offset by an increase of warranty provision

(warranty costs continue to be less than 1% of sales).

Cash, Overdrafts and Borrowings (Current and Non Current)
{including Net Borrowings, Bank Balances and Cash)

Cash, cash equivalents, overdrafts and total borrowings were a net lability of US$424.2 million. an overall reduction of

US545.4 million during the year.

Total borrowings have been reduced by US$134.6 million. Current borrowings have been lowered by US$164.3 million

while long term borrowing has increased by US$29.7 mitlion, of which US$7.7 million was due to exchange rate changes.

Bank balances and cash have been lowered by USS89.2 million, of which U$$2.7 was due to exchange rate gains.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Total Equity
(including Share Capital, Retained Earnings and Reserves, Dividends Payable and Minority Interest)

Total Equity at 3 1st March 2007 was US$963.4 million, an increase of US$107.6 million on last year.
Share capital increased by US$0.7 million to US$82.1 million due to treasury shares vesting during the year.

Reserves increased by US$94.5 million to US$858.6 million at year end. This was the result of adding profits atiributable
to equity holders of US$109.7 million, an increase of US$40.8 million in reserves arising on exchange gains from the Eure
and Swiss Franc, and a net revaluation surplus on investment properties of US$3.8 million. These increases were partially

offset by dividends paid which amounted to US$61.2 million.

Minority interest was US$22.7 million, an increase of US$12.5 million, due mainly to the increase in shareholdings of

Shanghai Ri Yong and China Autoparts, Inc.
FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND TREASURY POLICY

The management of financial risk in the Group is the responsibility of the Group’s treasury function at the corporate centre

based in Hong Kong. Policies are established by senior management.

Foreign Currency

The Group operates globally and is thus exposed to foreign exchange risk.

For the Automotive Products Group (APG) and the Industry Products Group (IPG) business units the major revenue
generating currencies continue to be the US dollar, the Euro and the Japanese Yen, For the year to 31st March 2007, of the
sales from these business units, 44% were in US dollars, 36% in Euro, 4% in Japanese Yen and 16% in other currencies.
The major currencies used for purchases of materials and services are the US dollar, the Euro, the Hong Kong dollar and
the Japanese Yen. Aside from the US dollar and Hong Kong dollar which are pegged in their relative value, material open
foreign exchange exposures are hedged with currency contracts, including forward and options contracts, with a view to
reducing the net exposure to currency fluctuations. In the year, these contracts normally had a duration lasting less than

four months.

Cash and Borrowings
As at 31st March 2007, bank balances and cash were US$149.3 million, down US$89.2 million in the year as we used

available cash to reduce our overall borrowing position.

As at 31st March 2007, cash balances held in US dollars were down by $103.6 million at US$68.3 million, having used
dollar balances to reduce short term borrowings. Other currencies increased by US$14.4 million to US$81.0 million. Of
this, US$37.3 million is held in Euro and US$22.2 millien in Renminbi. The spread of currencies in the Group is now more
aligned to the Company’s location of operations than last year. Of the total cash balances 45.7% is in US dollars (compared
10 72.1% last year), 25.0% is in Euro (compared to 14.4% last year), and 14.8% is being held in Renminbi (compared to
8.6% last year).
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At the balance sheet date, wotal borrowings amounted 1 US$573.5 million, a decrease of US$134.6 million from US$708.1
million last year. The Group has a five year loan of USS525.0 million which was originally drawn down in Novermnber 2005
for the acquisition of Saia-Burgess. This is repayable in full on the final maturity date of 31st March 2011, although earlier
repayment is allowed without penalty. Details of berrowings which remain outstanding are included in Note 21 to the

accounts.

Capital Structure and Liguidity
The Group’s financial resources and liquidity remained healthy throughout the year. Net borrowings (total borrowings net

of cashy at 31st March 2007 were UUS$424.2 million, down US$45.4 million as compared to US3469.6 million last year.

It is the intention of the Group to maintain an appropriate mix of equity and debt 10 ensure an efficient capital structure over
time, The Group gearing ratio {calculated on the total borrowings net of cash to the equity holders) was 45.1% as compared

to 55.5% last vear. The Group expects to lower its gearing ratio further in the coming year.

The Group’s interest coverage ratio (profit before tax and interest expense divided by interest cxpense) is 6. Interest expense
of US$27.9 million was incurred on the loans for the acquisition of Saia-Burgess and on borrowings to fund the Group's

operational requirements.

For day-to-day liquidity management, and to maintain flexibility in funding, the Group atso has access to significant

unutilised short-term borrowing facilities provided by its relationship banks which amount to US$250 million.

Funding requirements for capital expenditures are expected to be met by internal cash flows and there are currently no

plans to make any significant change in the rate of capital expenditures compared with recent years.

Dividend Policy
[t is the intention of the Group that the dividend paid should, over the long term, provide  Dividends
shareholders with dividend income broadly consistent with the underlying trend of earnings 1 5%\

-

growth. M

At its June 2007 meeting, the Board of Dircctors recommended a final dividend of 8.5
HK cents which, together with the interim dividend of 4.5 HK cents, represents a total
dividend of 13.0 HK cents per share. In US dollar this is equivalent 1o a final dividend of

1.0% US cents, an interim dividend of 0.58 US cents, and a total of 1.67 US cents per

share.

I3

In 2006/07, the dividend payout ratie (including the propesed dividend for the year) was approximately 56% of the profit

attributable to equity holders, compared to 65% last year.

b
h
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CASH FLOWS

Cash generated from operations was US$22 1.9 million, an increase of US$37.5 million ~ Operating Cashflow

over last year. This resulted mainly from having larger earnings (operating profit at USsM
206

USS$164.1 million was up US$42.6 million from last year) partly offset by year on year ~‘

changes in the movement on working capital of US$14.6 million. 150 —

There was an increase in working capital of US$20.2 million, 5.3% more than last year, %@
which is in line with the underlying rate of sales growth in the year. Trade receivables
50~ — |— —N-

increased by US$13.8 millicn, up only 3.3%, due to closer management and control of

customer accounts and more rigorous cash collection. Trade payables decreased by US$4.0

million, largely due to stricter enforcement of the policy to pay suppliers in accordance g 6 kO

with agreed terms (estimated effect US$6.0 million cash outflow). Stocks increased by

US$2.4 million, up 1%, which reflects improved materials management in the Group.

Interest paid was US$27.9 million, U$$20.3 million more than last year because we had a full year’s interest on the loan to

fund the acquisitions of Saia-Burgess and Parlex, compared to having only 5 months’ interest last year.

Income tax payments amounted to US$30.1 million, an increase of US$11.% million from last year. This reflects taxes

payable in Europe as a result of the recently acquired operations there.

As a result of these factors, net cash generated from operating activities was U5$163.9 million, an increase of 3.3% on last
year (US$158.6 million).

Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities was US$52.3 million, a reduction of US$498.4 million compared to last year. Last
year’s relatively high level of net cash used in investing activities was impacted by the US$55%.2 million outflow for the
major acquisitions of Saia-Burgess and Parlex and an inflow of US$72.3 million from the sale of other investments (financial

assets at fair value).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Johnson Electric is commuitted to achieving high standards of corporate governance that properly protect and promote the
interests of ity sharcholders and devotes considerable effort to identifying and formalising best practices of corporate

governance.
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at 31st March 2007, Johnson Electric’s Board consisted of three executive directors and seven non-executive directors

(of whom five are independent).

The independent non-exeeutive directors are all experienced individuals from a range of industries and geographics. Their
mix of professional skills and experience is an important element in the proper functioning of the Board and in ensuring a
high standard of objective debate and overall input to the decision-making process. The Board has received from cach
independent non-executive director a written confirmation of their independence and has satisfied itself of such independence
up to the approval date of this report in accordance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the Listing Rules™)

on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange™.

The biographica! details of the directors are provided on pages 44 to 46 of this report.
THE BOARD AT WORK

The Board of directors is accountable to sharcholders for the activitics and performance of the Group. It mecets in person on
a quarterly basis and on other occasions when a board-level decision on a particular matter is required. The Board has
reserved for its decision or consideration matters covering carporate strategy, annual and interim results, dirgctors’
appeintment, succession planning, risk management, major acquisitions, disposals and capital transactions, and other

significant operational and financial matters.

The majority of board meetings are scheduled to last one full day, with directors receiving details of agenda items for

decision and minutes of committee meetings in advance of each board meeting.

Although the capacity ol any board to involve itsclf in the details of a large international business is limited, Johnson
Eleetric aims to provide its independent non-executive directors with extensive exposure and aceess 10 its operations and
management. Over the past five years. the number and duration of board meetings have increased and the board agenda is
structured to address the broad spectrum of key governance 1ssues on a regular and systematic basis. Forming part of the
continuous professional development programme for directors, visits 10 the Company’s principal operating facilities have

been arranged and professionat puest speakers are inviied 1o address the Board from time 1w time.

Major corporate matters that are specifically delegated by the Board to management include the preparation of annual and
interim accounts for board approval before public reporting, execution of business strategies and inttiatives adopted by the
Board, implementation of adequate systems of internal controls and risk management procedures, and compliance with

relevant statutory requirements and rules and regulations.

The Group’s General Counsel and Chief Financial Officer also attend all board meetings to advise on corporate governance,

risk management, statutory compliance. mergers and acquisitions, and accounting and financial matiers.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Under the Company’s Bye-Law 109(A), one-third of the directors except the executive chairman, who have served longest
on the Board, must retire, thus becoming cligible for re-clection at each Annual General Meeting. As such, except the

executive chairman, no director has a term of appointment longer than three years.

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance to indemnify its directors for their liabilities arising out of

corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.

COMMITTEES

The monitoring and assessment of certain governance matters are allocated to four committees which operate under defined

terms of reference and are required to report to the full Board on a regular basis. The composition of the commitiees during

2006707 and up to the date of this report is set out in the table below.

Nomination

d Cerporate

Audit  Remuneration Governance Board
Directors Committee Committee Committee  Committee
Executive Directors
Patrick Shui-Chung Wang M M
Winnie Wing-Yee Wang M M
Independent Non-Executive Directors
Peter Stuart Allenby Edwards C
Patrick Blackwell Paul C
Michacl John Enright M C*
Laura May-Lung Cha M
Oscar de Paula Bernardes Neto M
Arkadi Kuhlmann# C#

C — Chairman

M - Member

*  appointed on st October 2006

¥ resigned on 30th September 2006
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Commitiee is comprised of three independent non-executive directors who together have substantial experience

in the fields of accounting, business. corporate governance and regulatory affairs,

The committee is responsible for monitoring the reporting, accouming, financial and control aspecis of the executive
management’s activities. 1t has full access to the Group’s Internal Audit Director to hear directly any concerns of the
internal audit department that may have arisen during the course of the department’s work. The comumittee also monitors
the appointment and function of the Group's cxternal auditor. The committee’s authority and duties are sct out in written

terms of reference and are posted on the Company'’s website.

Four Audit Committee Mcetings were held in 2006/07 to discuss and review the following matters together with the Chiel

Financial Ofticer, Internal Audit Director and the external auditors:

I the FY2006 annual results and interim results for FY 2007, to ensure that the related disclosures in the financial
stalements were complete, aceurate and fair, and complied with accounting standards, stock exchange and legal
requirements, and to submit the same to the hoard for approvak:

2. the principal accounting policies adopted by the Group:

3 the work done by the internal and external auditors, the relevant fees and terms, results of audits performed by the
external auditors and appropriate actions required on any significant control weaknesses:

4. the external auditors” independence. including consideration of their provision of non-audit services;

3. the Group’s report on compliance with laws and regulations in the countries in which it operates:

6. the Internal Audit Department’s audit plan and ongoing progress reports;

7. the overall adequacy and effectivencss of the internal control and risk management systems.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Commitiee is comprised of two independent non-executive dircctors (including the Committee Chairman)

and one exceutive director.

The committee determines the compensation structure and rewards for the Chief Executive and other executive directors
and monitors the policies being applied in remunerating other senjor executives in the Group. In addition. it has respensibility
for reviewing and making appropriate recommendations to the Board on management development and succession plans
for executive directors and senior managenment levels. The committee’s authority and duties are sct out in written terms of

reference and are available on the Company's websitc.
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The fundamental policy underlying Johnson Electric’s remuneration and incentive schemes is to link total compensation
for senior management with the achievement of annual and long-term performance goals. By providing total compensation
at competitive industry levels for delivering on-target performance, the Company seeks to attract, motivate and retain key
executives essential to its long-term success. Senior management incentive schemes include an equity component that is

designed to align the long-term interest of management with those of shareholders.

Three committee meetings were held in 2006/07. During the financial year, the committee addressed the following:

1. Annual Incentive Plan (AIP) for senior management: reviewed performance and approved the payments for 2005/06
financial year; also approved a harmonized approach 1o objective setting for 2006/07 financial year throughout the
core operating divisions. In addition, the Remuneration Committee authorized a plan re-design for implementation

for the 2007/08 financial year which will seek to integrate all core businesses under one AIP for senior management;

2 Long term incentive plan for senior management: approved annual grants and inclusion of new senior management

in the stock award plan;

3. Global leadership talent management and succession plans: reviewed and discussed;

4, Remuneration packages and service contracts for senior management: reviewed and approved;

5. Senior management movement and sourcing of senior management: reviewed periodically and discussed; and
6. Review of the revised terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee.

One of the key mandates of the committee is to establish a market competitive total remuneration program for senior
management and key employces for purposes of attracting, motivating and retaining top international leadership talent. To
that end, the committee also stays abreast of current and emerging market trends in North America and Europe, regions
from which the Group sources many of its senior management talent, The composition of the committee membership

reflects this commitment to an international perspective.,

All global staff positions, including senicr management, are sized based on a job evaluation methodology which takes into
account management/technical know-how, problem solving and accountability and put into Johnson Electric Job Levels.
Individual senior management remuneration acknowledges individual responsibility, contribution and performance, The
base salary takes into account factors such as job vatue, retention and, for those who have recently been hired, previous
remuneration. The annual incentive plan, when payable, is in addition to the basic salary and is entirely performance-based
and has both financial and non-financial objectives. The long term incentive plan is an annual award of Johnson Electric
stock given to senior management and subject to vesting based upon Group service. It is used both as a retention and as a

motivation tool and is designed to maximize long-term shareholder value.

[n determining the level of remuneration and fees paid to members of the Board of Directors, a survey of current practices
in leading Hong Kong listed companies was conducted. The structure essentially consists of a base remuneration with
additional fees payable for attendance at certain committee meetings. Executive dircctors are not eligible for additional

remuneration or fees for Board activities.
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No individual director or senior management is involved in approving his or her own remuneration.

In addition to international market competitivencss, the committee is considering the enhancement of the effectiveness of
the overall remuncration program by the implementation of programs to meet both the basic (hygiene facior} and the
motivational (reward) requirements in terms of a short, medium and long term time horizon. The committee ensures that

the overall program is comprehensive. balanced and responsive to individual needs.

NOMINATION AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Nomination And Corporate Governance Committee is comprised of iwo independent non-executive directors {including

the Commitiee Chairman) and one exccuive director.

The committee is responsible for the identification and evaluation of candidates for appointment or reappointment as a
director, as well as the development and maintenance of the Groups overall corporate governance policies and practices,

The committee’s authority and duties are set out in written terms of reference and are posted on the Company’s website.

The Company follows a formal. fair and transparent procedure for the new appointment of directors 1o the Board. The
committee will first censider necessary changes in respeet of the structure, size and composition of the Board, identify
suitably qualified candidates by constdering their professional knowledge and industry experience, personal ethics, integrity
and personal skills and time commitments, and makes recommendation to the Board for decision. In accordance with the

Bye-Laws of the Company, every newly appointed director is subject 1o re-election at the following annual general meeting,

No new dircctors were nominated in 2006/07.

During the financial year, the commitice met on one occasion. The following is a summary of work performed by the

committee during the financial vear;

l. Consideration and recommendation of the retiring directors for re-election at the annual general mecting:

2. the review of the structure and composition of the Board;

1 consideration of the independence of all the independent non-cxecutive directors; and

4, the review and approval of the corporate governance report and information for Annual Report and Interim Report.

BOARD COMMITTLEE
The Board Conumittee is comprised of two exccutive directors. Its primary function is 10 undertake and supervise the day

to day management and operating affairs of the Group. [t exercises leadership and develops and keeps under review strategy

and business development initiatives of the Group and supervises their implementation.
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BOARD AND COMMITTEE ATTENDANCE

The Board held four full board meetings in 2006/07 and the average attendance rate was 90%. Details of the attendance of
individual directors at board meetings and committec meetings during the 2006/07 financial year are set out in the table

below:
Number of meetifs attended / held
Nomination
And Corporate
Full Board Audit Rcluneration Governance
Directors Meeting  Committee ommittee Committee

Executive Directors

Patrick Shui-Chung Wang 4/4 - - 1/1
(Chairman and Chief Executive)

Winnie Wing-Yee Wang 4/4 - 33 -
(Vice-Chairman)
Richard Li-Chung Wang 4/4 - _ _

(Executive Director}

Non-Executive Directors

Yik-Chun Koo Wang 2/4 - _ _
(Honorary Chairman)

Peter Kin-Chung Wang 3/4 - - -
Independent Non-Executive Directors
Peter Stuart Allenby Edwards 4/4 - - 11
Patrick Blackwell Paul 4/4 4/4 - 111
Michael John Enright 4/4 3/4 2/2* -
Laura May-Lung Cha 4/4 3/4 - -
Oscar de Paula Bernardes Neto 4/4 - 3/3 -
Arkadi Kuhlmann# 1/2# - 1/1% -
Average attendance rate 30% 83% 100% 100%
Date of meeting 05/06/2006  10/05/2006 04/06/2006 05/06/2006
08/09/2006  30/05/2006 03/01/2007
04/12/2006  20/09/2006 15/03/2007

16/03/2007  27/11/2006

*  appointed on Ist October 2006
#  resigned on 30th September 2006
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INFERNAL CONTROIL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for ensuring that a sound and effective system of internal controls is maintained within the Group.

and for reviewing its efiectiveness through the Audit Commitee.

The internal control system. which includes a defined management structure with specified limits of authority and control
responsibilities, is designed to (a) help the achievement of business objectives. and safeguard the Group's assets: (b) cnsure
proper maintenance of accounting records and reliability of financial reporting; and (c) ensure compliance with relevant
legislation and regulations.

The Board established effective internal controls by the following key procedures:

. A solid conirol environment exists with well-defined organizational structure. competent management, and ongoing
processes to identify and manage key risks to the achievement ol the Group's strategic objectives:

. Policies and procedures arc established for ensuring reasonable, but not absolute. assurance against material

misstatement or loss and to manage, but not to eliminate, risks of failure in achieving the Group’s objectives;

. Systems of controls, including financial, operational. compliance controls and risk managemem functions, are
maintained and monitored by management on an ongoeing basis;

. A comprehensive management accounting system is in place to provide financial and operational performance

indicators for management review and financial information for reporting and disclosure purposes: and

. Audit Committee reviews reports submitted by external auditors and internal audit reports submitted by the Dircctor,
Internal Audit.

Pursuant to a risk-based approach. the Group's internal audit department, under the supervision of the Director. Internal
Audit, independently reviews the risks associated with and controls over various operations and activities. and evaluates
their adequacy, effectiveness and compliance. Audit findings and recommendations are reported to the Audit Committee,
Executive Committee members. and the external auditors. In addition, progress on audit recommendations implementation
is followed up on a monthly basis. The resulis are discussed with the Audit Commitice on a periodic basis.

Based on the results of evaluations and representations made by the management, the Group’s internal audit department
and external auditors in 2006/07. the Audit Commiittee is satisfied that:

. there is an ongoing process for identifying. evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the Group that

threaten the achievement of its business objectives:

. a propier system of internal contrel has been in place in FY2007, and up to the date of approval of the annual report;
and
. the system of internal control has been subject 1o adequate review during the year.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR

Johnson Electric’s independent external auditor is PricewaterhouseCoopers. The Audit Committee is responsible for
considering the appointment of the external auditor and also reviews any non-audit functions performed by the exiernal
auditor for the Group. In particular, the committee will consider, in advance of them being contracted for and performed,

whether such non-audit functions could lead to any potential material conflict of interest.

During the 2006/07 financial year, the services (and associated remuneration) provided by PricewaterhouseCoopers to the

Group were as follows:

2006/07 2005/06

US$M USSM

Audit 1.96 1.88
Taxation 0.33 0.31
Due diligence and other advisory services 0.10 1.49

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

Johnson Electric uses a number of formal communications channels to account to shareholders for the performance of the
Company. These include the Annual Report and Accounts, the Interim Report, periodic company anncuncements made
through the Stock Exchange, as well as through the Annual General Meeting. Copies of relevant corporate and financial

information are also made available through the Company’s website: www jolinsonelectric.com.

The Company aims to provide its shareholders and potential investors with high standards of disclosure and financial
transparency. [n order to provide effective disclosure to investors and potential investors and to ensure they all receive
equal access to the same information at the same time, information considered to be of a price sensitive nature is reteased
by way of formal public announcements as required by the Listing Rules. The Company supplements and follows up such
announcements through periodic presentations, investor road shows and cenference calls with the international investment

community. The Company also welcomes comments and questions from shareholders at its Annual General Meeting.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

During the year ended 3 1st March 2007, the Company had complied with the code provisions set out in the Code on

Corporate Governance Practices contatned in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, except for the following deviations:

Code Provision A.2.1
Code A.2.1 provides, inter alia, that the roles of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should not

be performed by the same individual.

Neither the Company’s Bye-Laws nor The Johnson Electric Holdings Limited Company Act, 1988 (a private act of Bermuda)

contains any requirement as to the separation of these roles.
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Dr. Patrick Shui-Chung Wang is the Chairman and Chief Executive of the Company. The Board is of the opinion that it is
appropriate and in the best interests of the Company at its present stage of development that Dr. Wang should hold both
these offices. The Board believes that it is able effectively to monitor and assess management in a manner that properly

protects and promotes the interests of shareholders.

Code Provision A 4.1 and A 4.2

Code A.4.1 provides, inter alia, that non-executive directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.

Code A 4.2 also provides that every director, including those appoinied for a specific term, should be subject to retirement

by rotation at least once every three years.

The independent non-executive directors were appointed for a specific term while the non-executive directors do not have
a specific term of appointment. However. under Section 3{¢) of The Johnson Electric Holdings Limited Company Act,
1988 and the Company's Byc-Law 109(A ), one-third of the directors who have served longest on the Board must retire thus
becoming cligible for re-election at each Annual General Meeting. Accordingly. no director has a term of appointment
longer than three years. Byc-Law 109(A) states that the executive chairman is not subject to retirement by rotation and shall

not be counted in determining the number of directors to retire,

In the opinion of the Board. it is important for the stability and beneficial to the growth of the Company that there is. and
is seen to be. continuity of leadership in the role of the Chairman of the Company and. in consequence, the Board is of the

view that the Chairman should not be subject to retirement by rotatien or hold office for a limited term at the present time.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Group has adopted procedures governing directors’ securities transactions in compliance with the Model Code as set
out in Appendix 10 of'the Listing Rules. Specific confirmation has been obtained from all directors to confirm compliance
with the Model Code throughout the year ended 31st March 2007, No incident of non-compliance was noted by the

Company to date in 2006/07.

Employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive information of the Group are alse subject to

compliance with guidelines on no less exacting terms than the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’AND AUDITORS® RESPONSIBILITIES FORACCOUNTS

The Directors’ respensibilities for the accounts are sct out on page 43, and the responsibilities of the external auditors 1o the

shareholders are sct out on page 50.

-2
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The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report together with the audited accounts for the ycar ended 31st March
2007,

Principal Activities
The principat activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are shown in note
44 to the accounts.

Results and Appropriations
The results of the Group for the year ended 31st March 2007 are set out in the consolidated profit and loss account on page
54 of the accounts.

The Directors declared an interim dividend of 0.58 US cents (4.5 HK cents) per share, totalling US$21,195,000, which was
paid on 4th January 2007.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of 1.09 US cents (8.5 HK cents) per share, totalling US5$40,035,000,
payable on 3rd August 2007.

Reserves
Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the year are set out in note 25 to the accounts.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31st March 2007, the distributable reserves of the Company available for distribution as dividends amounted to
US$496,179,000, comprising retained earnings of US$400,906,000 and contributed surplus of US$95,273,000 arising
from the reorganisation of Johnson Electric Group in 1988 less a bonus issue in 1991.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed surplus shall not be distributed to the shareholders
if there are reasonable grounds for believing that:

(i) the Company is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilitics as they become due; or

(ii) the realisable value of the Company’s assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued
share capita! and share premium account.

Donations
During the vear, the Group made donations of US$175,000 (2006: US$205,000).

Fixed Assets
Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment are shown in note 6 to the accounts.

Share Capital

Details of the share capital are shown in note 24 to the accounts.
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Directors

The Directors during the vear and up to the date of this report were:

Yik-Chun Koo Wang

Patrick Shui-Chung Wang Jp
Winniec Wing-Yee Wang
Richard Li-Chung Wang

Peter Stuart Allenby Edwards
Patrick Blackwell Paul
Michael John Enright

Laura May-Lung Cha s»

Peter Kin-Chung Wang

Oscar de Paula Bernardes Neto

Arkadi Kuhlmann (resigned on 30th September 2006)

In accordance with Bye-Law 109(A) of the Company’s Bye-Laws, Mrs. Laura May-Lung Cha. Mr. Peter Kin-Chung Wang

and Mr. Oscar de Paula Bernardes Neto retire from office by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

None of the director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation,

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a director of the Company had a material interests, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the

year or at any time during the vear.
The Company is controlled through the Board of Directors which comprises ten Directors, At 31st March 2007, three of the

Directors are executive and seven of the Directors are non-executive, of whom five are independent. Their details are set

out in the Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management section on pages 44 to 48.
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Disclosure of Interests

A. DIRECTORS
As at 31st March 2007, the interests of each Director and Chief Executive of the Company in the shares of the
Company or any of the Company’s associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and

Futures Ordinance (“SFO™)) as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO werc as

follows:
Shares of HK$0.0125 each
of the Company

Personal Other
Name Interests Interests
Yik-Chun Koo Wang - 2,140,100,640 (Notes | & 2)
Richard Li-Chung Wang - 48,000,000 (Note 3)
Peter Stuart Allenby Edwards - 100,000 (Note 4)
Patrick Blackwell Paul 50,000 -
NOTES

1. These shares were held, directly or indirectly, by the trustees of various trusts associated with the Wang family.

2. Duplications of shureholdings vccurred among and berween the parties shown below under Section B Substantial

Shareholders.

3. These shares were held under a trust of which Richard Li-Chung Wung was the founder.

4. These shares were held under a trust of which Peter Stuart Allenby Edwards was one of the beneficiaries.

Save as disclosed herein, as at 31st March 2007, the register maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO recorded no other interests or short positions of the Directors and Chief Executive in any shares of the Company

or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).
At no time during the year, the Directors and Chief Executive (including their spouses and children under 18 years of

age) had any interest in, or had been granted, or exercised, any rights to subscribe for shares of the Company or its

associated corporations required to be disclosed pursuant to the SFO.
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As at 31st March 2007, the register of substantial sharcholders maintained under Section 336 of the SFO shows that

R PORT (H

115 DIREC TORS

the Company had been notified of the following substantial sharcholders” interests, being 3% or more of the Company s

issued share capital:

Number of Approximate %

Name of sharcholder Capacity Shares held of sharcholding

Yik-Chun Koo Wang Beneficiary of 2.140,100.640 58.25
family trusts (Notes | & 2}

HSBC International Trustee Limited Trustee 946,070,768 25.75
Notes 1 & 3)

Ansbacher {Bahamas) Limited Trustee 887.040.000 24.15
{Note 1)

HSBC Trustee (Guernsey) Limited Trustee 358,972,480 9.77
(Note 1)

Ceress International Investment Trustee 223.014.080 6.07
Corporation {Note 4)

Merriland Overseas Limited Trustee 211,943,040 3.77
(Note 3)

NOTES

I The shares in which Ansbacher (Bahamas) Limited and HSBC Trustee (Guernsey) Limited were interested and
894088, 160 of the shares in which HSBC International Trustee Limited was interested were held, directly or
indivecthy, by them us the trustees of various trusts associated with the Wang family and were included in the
shares inwhich Ms. Yik-Chun Koo Wang was interested as referred to above under Direciors"interests in Section
A of Disclosure of Interests.

2. The shares in which Ms. Yik-Chun Koo Wang was interested as referred o above formed part of the shares
referred 1o in Noie 1.

3. 48.000.000 of the shares in which HSBC International Trustee Limited was interested were the same interests in
which Mr. Richard Li-Chung Wang was interested as referred to above under Directors ' interests in Section A of
Disclosure of Interests.

4. The interests of Ceress huernational bivestment Corporation in the Company weve duplicated by the interesis in
the Company held by HSBC Trustee {Guernsey) Limited.

ta

The inrerests of Merriland Overseas Limited in the Company were duplicated by the interests in the Company
held by HSBC International Trustee Limited,

Save as disclosed herein. as at 31st March 2007, the register maintained by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the
SFO recorded no other interests or short positions in the shares of the Company.
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Share Scheme
A. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

40

The Company had on 29th July 2002 adopted a new share option scheme (herein referred to as “the Scheme™).

The major terms of the Scheme, in conjunction with the requirements of chapter 17 of the Rules Governing the Listing

of Securities (the “Listing Rules™) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange™), are as

follows:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Purpose

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide incentive or rewards to Participants.

Participants

The participants of the Scheme are

(i) any director {including a non-executive director and an independent non-executive director), employee or
consultant of the Group or a company in which the Group holds an equity interest or a subsidiary of such

company (“Affiliate™); or

(i) any discretionary trust whose discretionary objects include any director, employee or consultant of the Group

or an Affiliate; or

(iii) a company beneficially owned by any director, employee or consultant of the Group or an Affiliate.

Maximum number of shares

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the Company shall not exceed 2 per cent. of the share capital of

the Company in issue from time to time.

The maximum number of shares (issued and to be issued) in respect of which options may be granted under the
Scheme to any one grantee in any 12-month period shall not exceed 0.1 per cent. of the share capital of the
Company in issue on the last date of such 12-month period unless approval of the shareholders of the Company
has been obtained with such grantee and his associates abstaining from voting in accordance with the Listing

Rules and a circular is issued.
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{d)} Time of acceptance and exercise of an Option

(e

e

There is no specific requirement under the Scheme that an Option must be held for any minimum period before
it can be exercised. but the terms of the Scheme provide that the Board has the discretion to impose a minimum
period at the time of grant of any particular option. The date of grant of any particular Option is the date when the
duplicate offer document constituting acceptance of the Option duly signed by the grantee, together with a remittance
in favour of the Company of HK$1.00 by way of consideration is received by the Company, such date must be on
or before the 28th day after the Option is offered o the relevant grantee. The period during which an Option may
be exercised will be determined by the Board at its absolute discretion, save that no Option may be exercised

more than 10 years atier it has been granted.
Subscription price for shuares

The subscription price for shares shall be a price determined by the Directors, but shall not be less than the higher
of

(1) the closing price of shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of the offer of
gp £ ¥4
grant, which must be a trading day; and

(1) the average closing price of shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date ot the offer of grant.

Period of the Scheme

The Scheme will remain in foree for a period of 10 years from the date of adoption of such Scheme.

Details of the sharc options granted under the Scheme as at 31st March 2007 were as foltows:—

Options

Options forfeited Options  Subscription
Tvpe of held a1 during held at price per Datc of  Exercisable  Exercisable
Grantees 01/04/2006 the vear 31/03/2007  share (HKS) gram from until
Employees 550,000 (100,000) 450,000 8.02 170972002 014082004  16/09/2012
550,000 (100.000) 450.000 8.02 17/09/2002 010872005 16/09/2012
50,000 {50.000) - 9.40  (007/2003 01072005 090772013
50,000 (30.000) - 940  10/07/2003 01072006 09/07/2013
475.000 (100.000) 375.000 9.65 31072003 01072005  30/07/2013
475.000 (100.000) 375.000 9.65  31007/2003  01/07/2006  30:07/2013
100.000 - 100.000 11.95 0671072003 01/10/2005  05/10/2013
100.000 - 100,000 11.95  06/10/2003  01/10/2006  05/10/2013
50,000 - 50,000 877 07052004 01/05/2006  06/05/2014
50,000 - 50,000 8.77 07032004  01/05/2007  06/05/2014
100,000 - 100,000 740 28/12/2004 010172007 2771272004
100,000 - 100.000 740 28/12/2004  OL/01/2008  27/12/2014

2.650.000 (500.000) 2.150.000
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B. LONG-TERM INCENTIVE SHARE SCHEME
Under the terms of the Long-Term Incentive Share Scheme (“Incentive Share Scheme”) which was approved by the
shareholders on 26th July 1999, the Directors may at their discretion invite full time employees of the Company and its
subsidiaries, including Directors, to participate in the Incentive Share Scheme, and grant shares to such cligible

employees.

Detaiis of the shares vested in the eligible employees under the Incentive Share Scheme as at 3 1st March 2007 are as

follows:
Total Average
Year of number Number purchase
grant of of shares of shares price
shares granted purchased (HK$) Shares vested Shares to be vested
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
2005-2007 3,450,000 2,480,000 7.38 680,000 780,000 690,000 590,000 460,000 250,000

Apart from the Scheme and the Incentive Share Scheme mentioned above, there were no other arrangements to which the
Company or its subsidiaries was a party to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the

acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate,

Johnson Electric Group Ten-Year Summary
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for last ten financial years are set out on pages 126

to 127.

Pre-emptive Rights

No pre-emptive rights exist under Bermudan law in relation to issues of new shares by the Company.

Major Suppliers And Customers
During the vear, the Group purchased less than 30% of its goods and services from its 5 largest suppliers and sold less than

30% of its goods and services to its 5 largest customers.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares
The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has

purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares during the year.
Management Contracts

No centracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the

Company were entered into or existed during the year.
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Public Float
Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the Dircctors of the
Company, as at the date of this report, there is sufficient public float of more than 25% of the Company's issued shares as

required under the Listing Rules.

Scenior Management
The biographical details of the sentor management as at the date of this report are set out in the Directors and Senior

Management section on pages 46 1o 48,

Corporate Governance
Principal corporate governance practices as adopted by the Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on

pages 27 to 35,

Directors’ Responsibilities for the Accounts

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of accounts for each financial period which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows for that period. In preparing these accounts for the year
ended 31st March 2007, the Directors have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently; made
judgements and estimates that are prudent and reasonable; and have prepared the accounts on the going concern basis. The
Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the

financial position of the Group.
Auditors

The accounts have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-

appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Patrick Shui-Chung Wang

Chairman and Chief Executive

Hong Kong, 8th June 2607
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

DIRECTORS

Yik-Chun Koo Wang

Non-Executive Director

Honorary Chairman

Yik-Chun Koo Wang, age 90, is Honorary Chairman of the Company and co-founder of the Johnson Electric Group. She
was Vice-Chairman of the Group in 1984 and was actively involved in the development of the Group in its early stages.
Madam Wang is the Honorary Chairlady of Tristate Holdings Limited.

Patrick Shui-Chung Wang /P

Chairman and Chief Executive

Member of Nomination And Corporate Governance Committee

Patrick Shui-Chung Wang, age 56, obtained his BSc and MSc degrees in Electrical Engineering and received an Honorary
Doctorate of Engineering from Purdue University in Indiana, U.S.A. He joined the Johnson Electric Group in 1972 and
became a Director in 1976 and Managing Director in 1984. In 1996 he was elected Chairman and Chief Executive of the
Company. He is a member of the Exchange Fund Advisory Committee of the Hong Kong Menetary Authority and a
director of the Hong Kong Applied Science and Technology Research Institute Company Limited. He is also a non-
executive director and a member of the Audit Committee of The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited, a
non-executive director of Vtech Holdings Limited and Tristate Holdings Limited, and a director of a charitable organization,
Heifer International Hong Kong Limited. He is a son of the Honorary Chairman, Ms. Yik-Chun Koo Wang.

Winnie Wing-Yee Wang

Vice-Chairman

Member of Remuneration Committee

Winnie Wing-Yee Wang, age 60, obtained her BSc degree from Ohio University in U.S.A. She joined the Johnson Electric
Group in 1969. She became a Director in 1971 and an Executive Director in 1984 and was elected Vice-Chairman in 1996.
Ms. Wang is a non-executive director of Tristate Holdings Limited. She is a sister of the Chairman and Chief Executive, Dr.
Patrick Wang.

Richard Li-Chung Wang

Executive Director

Richard Li-Chung Wang, age 63, obtained his BSc and MSc degrees in Electrical Engineering from the University of
California, Berkeley. He joined the Johnson Electric Group in 1970 and has been Director since 1992. He is an adviser to
the Chief Executive. Mr, Wang is a director of UCBH Holdings, Inc. He is a brother of the Chairman and Chief Executive,
Dr. Patrick Wang.

Peter Stuart Allenby Edwards

Independent Non-Executive Director

Chairman of Nomination And Corporate Governance Committee

Peter Stuart Allenby Edwards, age 59, has been an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company since 1995. He is
a solicitor and was Senior Partner of Johnson, Stokes & Master unti! he retired on 30th September 1996. Mr. Edwards was
Chairman of the Hong Kong Branch of the International Fiscal Association, Chairman of the Revenue Law Committee of
the Hong Kong Law Soctety and a member of the Joint Liaison Committee on Taxation which advises the Government of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. He is also a member of the International Academy of Estate and Trust Law,
an honorary lecturer in law at the University of Hong Kong and a director of a number of investment and holding companies.
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BIOGRAPHICATD DETAILS OF DIRFC TORS ANDYSENIOR MANAGEMEN

Patrick Blackwell Paul

Independent Non-Executive Director

Chairman of Audit Committee and

Member of Nomination And Corporate Governance Committee

Patrick Blackwell Paul, age 59, has been an Independent Non-Exccutive Director of the Company since 2002. He had been
Chairman and Senior Partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers in Hong Kong from 1994 to 2001. ke is a member of the Managing
Board of the Kowloon-Canton Railway Corporation and is an independent non-executive director of The Hongkong and
Shanghai Hotels, Ltd., Kingsway International Holdings Ltd. and Pacific Basin Shipping Limited. His civic commitments

include chairing the Supervisory Board of the British Chamber of Commerce in Hong Kong.

Michael John Enright

Independent Non-Executive Director

Chairman of Remuneration Committee and

Member of Audit Committee

Michael John Enright, age 48, has been an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company since 2004, He obtained
his A.B. (in Chemistry), MBA, and Ph.D. {in Business Economics) degrees all from Harvard University. He was formerly
a professor at the Harvard Business School, Prof. Enright is currently a professor at the University of Hong Kong School
of Business and a principal in Enright. Scott & Associates, a Hong Kong-based consulting firm. He is a non-executive

director of Shut On Construction and Materials Lid.

Laura May-Lung Cha Jp

Independent Non-Executive Director

Member of Audit Committee

Laura May-Lung Cha, age 57, has been an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company since 2004. She obtained
a BA degree from the University of Wisconsin and a JD» degree from the University of Santa Clara. She practiced as an
attorney in the 1980% in San Francisco and Hong Kong. She was the Deputy Chairman of the Securitics and Futures
Commission, a Vice-Chairman of the China Securities Regulatory Commission and a member of the Committee of 100 in
US. Mrs. Cha is currently & Non-Official Member of the Executive Council of the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region, Vice Chairman of the International Advisory Council of the China Securities Regulatory Commission,
Non-Executive Deputy Chairman of The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited, a non-executive director
of Bank of Communications and an independent non-executive director of Hong Kong Exchange and Clearing Limited,
Baashan Iron and Steel Company Limited and Tata Consultancy Services Limited. She is also Chairman of the Hong Kong
University Grants Committee, Chairman of the Advisory Committee on Corruption of the Independent Cominission Against
Corruption in Hong Kong, a member of the Advisory Board of the Millstein Center of Corporate Governance and Performance
at the Yale University. a Senior Advisor to The [nvestor AB Group in Sweden and a member of the International Council of

The Asia Society.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Peter Kin-Chung Wang

Non-Executive Director

Peter Kin-Chung Wang, age 53, has been a Non-Executive Director of the Company since 1982. He obtained a BSc degree
in Industrial Engineering from Purdue University and an MBA degree from Boston University. He is the Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of Tristate Holdings Limited and the Chairman and Managing Director of Hua Thai Manufacturing
Public Company Limited. He is the Chairman of the Hong Kong Garment Manufacturers Association Ltd., a director of the
Textile Council of Hong Kong Limited and The Federation of Hong Kong Garment Manufacturers, a member of the
Executive Committee of the Hong Kong Shippers’ Council, a Court Member of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
and a member of the Textile and Garment Subsector of the Election Committee for electing the Chief Executive of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region in 2007, He is a brother of the Chairman and Chief Executive, Dr. Patrick
Wang.

Oscar de Paula Bernardes Neto

Independent Non-Executive Director

Member of Remuneration Committee

Oscar de Paula Bernardes Neto, age 60, has been an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company since 2003. He
obtained a degree in Chemical Engineering from the Federal University of Rio de Janeiro-Brazil. He was a Senior Partner
of Booz Allen & Hamilton and Chief Executive Officer of Bunge International. Mr. Bernardes is currently a partner of
Integra Associados and a Director of Delphi Corporation, Metalirgica Gerdau S.A., Gerdau S.A., Companhia Suzano de
Papel e Celulose, Satipel S.A., Localiza and Sio Paulo Alpargatas S.A. He is also a member of the Advisory Boards of
Bunge Brasil, RBS, Alcoa Brasil and Veirano Associados.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Paul Hon-To Tong

Executive Vice President and General Counsel

Paul Hon-To Tong, aged 61, obtained a BS¢ (Economics) degree, a postgraduate Certificate in Management Studies, and
a DBA degree from the University of London, the University of Oxford and the International Management Centres, London
in England respectively. He was admitted as a Barrister of the Middle Temple in England, the Supreme Court of Hong
Kong and the High Court of Australia. He is responsible for corporate development and legal matters of the Group. He
joined Johnson Electric in 1993 as Chief Financial Officer and became Executive Vice President and General Counsel in
2003. Prior to joining Johnson Electric, he had many years’ experience in manufacturing, shipping and trading businesses
with large multinational groups. He is also a CPA of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants; a Fellow
Member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants; and an Associate Member of The Chartered Institute of

Management Accountants and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators.

Tung-Sing Choi

Senior Vice President, Strategic Manufacturing

Tung-Sing Choi, age 57, is responsible for the global manufacturing management of the Group. He joined the Group in
1968, with more than 30 years of experience in motor component manufacturing, motor assembly processes, and the

utilization of machines & fixtures.
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BIOGRAPHIC AT DETAILS OF DIREC TORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMEN]

Paul Jay DeMand

Senior Vice President, Industry Products Group

Paul Juy DeMand, age 42, obtained his BSc in Mechanical and Electrical Engineering from Kettering University {formerly
General Motors Institute) and MBA {rom the University of Detroit, He is responsible for leading the sirategic, commercial
and operittional aspects of the industrial motion businesses worldwide. He joined Johnson Electric in 2003 and prior to that
held various executive positions with General Motors, T1 Group ple and Solectron Corporation while based in North

America. Europe and Asia.

James Randolph Dick

Senior Vice President, Sales & Strategic Marketing

James Randolph Dick, age 33, holds a BSc in Electrical and Electronic Engincering from the University of Paisley in
Scotland. He is responsible for developing responses to macro market issues and leading the Company's selling process.
He joined the Johnson Electric Group in 1999, He has 30 years experience in high technology management throughout the
world. Prior to joining the Group, he held executive positions with Xerox in the U.S.A., IBM in Europe. and most recently

with Astec (BSR) Ple. an Emerson company. based in Hong Kong.

Joseph Alan Guisinger

Scnior Vice President, Supply Chain Services

Joseph Alan Guisinger, age 40, obtained a BSBA degree in Transportation and Logistics from Ohio State University and a
Masters Degree in International Management from Thunderbird. He is responsible for providing leadership and strategic
direction in Supply Chain Management for all business units of Johnsen Electric. Prior o joining Johnson Electric in 2004,

he worked for Emerson and held different senior positions in Supply Chain Management in Asia and North America.

Christopher John Hasson

Chief Executive of Johnson Electric Capital Ltd

Christopher John Hasson, age 44. educated at Manchester University and London Business School (Corporate Finance and
Accounting). He is Chief Executive of Johnson Electric Capital Lid which is the direct investment arm of the Johnson
Electric Group. Prior to joining Johnson Electric in 2002, he was a partner of The Boston Consulting Group, where he led

the firm’s corporate development and industrial goods practices in Greater China.

Horace Man-Shun Ho

Senior Vice President, Human Resources

Horace Man-Shun Ho, age 58. obtained both a honours BSc degree in Physics and Applied Mathematics and a MSc degree
in Computer Science from the University of London. He is responsible for developing and implementing human resources
strategies as well as health and safety and environmental affairs for Johnson Electric worldwide. He has been with Johnsen
Electric Group since 2001. He has worked in the United Kingdom and Canada in both HR and Operations roles. Prior to

Joining Johnson Electric, he was Exceutive Vice President, Human Resources, of a global company based in Vancouver.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Kam-Chin Ko

Senior Vice President, Automotive Products Group - Asia

Kam-Chin Ko, age 41, holds a MSc degree in Manufacturing System Engingering from the University of Warwick, UK.
Effective June 2006, he is responsible for the strategic, commercial and operational direction of the Automotive Products
Group in Asia. He joined Johnson Electric in 1988 and in previous positions led the Components and Services Group and
the Corporate Engineering function. He is a charter member of the Forming Technologies Association of Manufacturing

Engineers and a member of the Institute of Industrial Engineers.

Clive Barry Kydd

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Clive Barry Kydd, age 57, is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales. He is responsible for
overall corporate finance, controllership, accounting and reporting, treasury, tax and information technology as weli as the
coordination of interna! audit, Prior to joining Johnson Electric in 2006 he held senior financial positions in multi-national
companies which include The Hawker Siddeley Group, The BOC Group, Lucent Technologics and Aliant Inc. He has

worked in the US, Canada, and Europe and has extensive international experience.

Yue Li

Senior Vice President, Corporate Engineering

Yue Li, age 47, obtained a Bachelor of Science degree from Tsinghua University and also a Ph.D from University of
Wisconsin-Madison, He is responsible for overall corporate technology, engineering operations and Value Innevation
Programs. Prior to joining Johnson Electric in 2004, he worked for Emerson Electric in St. Louis as director of new
products, also for Carrier Corporation in Syracuse as director of power ¢lectronics and motor technologies, and for Emergency

One Inc. in Florida as vice president of product management.

Marc-Olivier Lorenz

Senior Vice President, Automotive Products Group - Europe and the Americas

Mare-(Nivier Lorenz, age 45, obtained a bachelor of business administration degree from HEC Lausanne University,
Switzerland, Effective June 2006, he is responsible for the strategic, commercial and operational direction of the Automotive
Products Group in Europe and the Americas encompassing the former Saia-Burgess Automotive operations. He joined
Saia-Burgess in 1999 and held the position of Deputy Director Automotive until 2001 when he was appointed Director
Automotive Division. Prior to joining Saia-Burgess, he held various executive positions with Dana Corporation including

European Sales and Marketing Director.

Simon Kwong-Yeung Wong

President of Johnson Electric Trading Limited

Simon Kwong-Yeung Wong, age 48, obtained both the Master of Science and Bachelor of Science degrees from University
of California, Berkeley. He is responsible for the business operation of Johnson Electric Trading Limited. Prior to joining
Johnson Electric in 2004, he joined General Electric Company in 1996 and has held the position of President of GE
Appliances, Asia from 1999 to 2004.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF JOHNSON ELECTRIC HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Johnson Electric Holdings Limited (the “Company™) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Ciroup™) set out on pages 51 to 125, which comprise the consolidated and Company balance
sheets as at 31st March 2007, and the consolidated profit and loss account, the consolidated statement of recognised
income and expense and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other ¢xplanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility
includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant 1o the preparation and the true and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion en these consolidated financial statements based en our audit and to report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and truc and fair presentation of the financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of
the Group as at 3{st March 2007 and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 8th June 2007
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

Ay ar 315t March 2007
Note 2007 2006
US$’000 USS 000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 6 390,019 378,543
Investment properties 7 24,208 17,202
Leaschold land and land use rights 8 24,805 25,355
Intangibles 9 667,154 631,592
Jointly controlled entities 11 - 16,494
Associated companies 12 2,304 2,271
Deferred income lax assets 23 30,918 312,662
Available-for-sale financial assets 13 5131 5294
Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 18 4,140 -
[nvestments in finance leascs 17 - 152
1,148,739 1,109,565
Current assets
Stocks and work in progress 15 251,170 233,379
Trade and other receivables 16 458,859 418.177
Derivative financial instruments t4 9,463 7,989
Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 18 995 2,707
Income tax recoverable 1,817 3,716
Bank batances and cash 9 149,282 238,510
871,586 904,478
Current labilities
Trade and other payables 20 298,055 275,080
Current income tax liabifities 14,204 18,349
Derivative financtal instruments 14 698 579
Borrowings 21 20,615 184,920
Provisions and other liabilities 22 25,539 25,150
359,111 504,078
NET CURRENT ASSETS 512,475 400,400
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,661,214 1,509,965
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (cont’d)

Note 2007 2006
US$ 000 US$ 000

Non-current liabilitics
Borrowings 21 552,900 523,193
Derivative financial instruments 14 19,272 -
Deferred income tax liabilities 23 87,535 88,069
Provisions and other liabilities 22 38,117 42,899
697,824 654,161
NET ASSETS 963,390 855,804

EQUITY

Share capital 24 82,062 81,412
Reserves 25 818,568 724,093
Proposed dividends 25 40,035 40,035
940,665 845,540
Minority interests 22,725 10,264
TOTAL EQUITY 963,390 855,804

The notes on pages 58 to 125 are an integral part of these financial statements.

PATRICK SHUI-CHUNG WANG
Director
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Director
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

As ar 315t March 2007

Note 2007 2006
US$’000 USS 000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Interest in subsidiaries 10 1,116,140 1,013,880
Available-for-sale financial assets 13 5131 5,294
| 1,121,271 1,019,174
Current assets
Other receivables 16 45 54
Amounts due from subsidiaries 10 528,149 -
Derivative financial instruments 14 4,404 -
Bank balances and cash 19 484 1,011
| 533,082 1,065
| Current liabilities
Other payables 20 8,581 303
Amounts due to subsidianes 10 521,585 -
530,166 303
NET CURRENT ASSETS 2916 762
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,124,187 1,019,936
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 21 523,304 520,718
Derivative financial instruments 14 19,272 -
542,576 520718
NET ASSETS 581,611 499218
EQUITY
Share capital 24 82,062 81,412
Reserves 25 459,514 377,771
Proposed dividends 25 40,035 40,035
TOTAL EQUITY 581.611 459218

The notes on pages 58 to 125 are an integral part of these financial statements.

PATRICK SHUI-CHUNG WANG WINNIE WING-YEE WANG
Director Director
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CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND
LOSS ACCOUNT

For the year ended 31st March 2007

Note 2007 2006
US$ 000 US$'000
Sales 5 2,086,628 1,526,328
Cost of goods sold (1,574,401) (1,149,235)
Gross profit 512,227 377,093
Other income and gains 26 12,157 13,155
Selling and administrative expenses 27 (347,994) (251,529)
Restructuring provisions 28 {12,245) (17,248)
Operating profit 164,145 121,471
Finance costs 31 (27,908) (7.618)
Share of (losses)/profits of jointly
controlled entities/associated companies {302) 2,398
Profit before income tax 135,935 116,251
Income tax expenses 32 (22,932) (21,884)
Profit for the year 113,003 94,267
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 34 109,696 93,990
Minority interests 3,307 3717
113,003 94,367
Dividends 13 61,230 61,230
Earnings per share for profit attributable to the
equity holders of the Company during the year
{expressed in US cents per share)
Basic 36 2.99 2.56
Diluted 36 2.99 2.56

The notes on pages 58 to 125 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
RECOGNISED INCOME AND EXPENSE

For the vear ended 3151 March 2007

2007 2006
US$'000 US$°000
Gain on revaluation of property, plant and equipment transfer to
investment properties 4,662 2,368
Deferred income tax effect on gain on revaluation of property, plant
and equipment transfer to investment properties (816) (414)
Fair value gains/{losscs) on available-for-sale financial assets 521 (627)
Fair value (losses)/gains on hedging instruments 2,273 6,724
Deferred income tax effect on fair value (lossesygains on
hedging instruments 398 (1.177)
Actuarial gains of defined benefit plan 1,798 5377
Deferred income tax effect on actuarial gains of defined benefit plan (950 (1.058)
Adjustment arising on translation of foreign subsidiarics and
associated companies 40,799 {1.359)
Net income recognised directly in equity 44,139 4,234
Profit for the year 113,003 94,367
Total recognised income for the year 157,142 98.601
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 153,835 98,224
Minority interests 3,307 377
157,142 98,601
Effect of changes in accounting policy:
Equity holders of the Company - 3.049
- 3,049

The notes on pages 58 to 125 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the year ended 31s5¢ March 2007

Note 2007 2006
US$’00¢ Uss’oo0
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from operations 39 221,866 184,396
Interest paid (27,908) (7,618)
Income tax paid (30,086) (18,189)
Net cash generated from operating activities 163,872 158,589
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired 40 9,099 (559,160)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (75,169} (62,961)
Purchase of leasehold land and land use rights (955) (1,175}
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment,
leasehold land and land use rights 39 12,178 9.777
Proceeds from sale of jointly controlled entity 1,500 -
Purchase of intangible assets (559) (959)
Purchase of other financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (3,054) (16,539
Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets (17} (2,045)
Proceeds from sale of available-for-sale financial assets 1,078 4,557
Proceeds from sale of other financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 1,007 72,273
Investments in associated companiesfjointly controlled entities (165) (457)
Capital element from investments in finance leases - 11
Gross earnings from investments in finance leases - 7
Interest received 6,862 6,025
Dividends paid to minority interests (4,083) -
Net cash used in investing activities (52,278) (550,646)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (cont’d}

Note 2007 2006
US$°000 USS$ 000

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of treasury shares - (2.368)
Proceeds from borrowings 180,079 549,182
Repayments of borrowings (322,350) {20,252)
Dividends paid (61,230) (73,005)
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities (203,501) 453,557
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (91,907) 61,500
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 238,510 176,321
Exchange gains on cash and bank overdrafts 2,679 689
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 149,282 238,510
Analysis of the cash and cash equivalents:
Bank balances and cash 149,282 238,510
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 149,282 238,510
The notes on pages 58 to 125 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

58

General information

The principal operations of Johnson Electric Holdings Limited {the Company) and its subsidiaries (together the
Group) are the manufacture, sale and trading of motors, electromechanical components, motion systems and
sub-systems and materials. The Group has global reach, with manufacturing plants and sales operations throughout

the world.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The address of its registered office is

Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda.
The Company has its primary listing on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of units of US dollars (US$'000), unless otherwise
stated. These consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 8th June
2007.

Principal accounting policies
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out

below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (HKFRS). The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
as modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets, financial assets and financial liabilities (including
derivative instruments) at fair value through profit or loss, and investment properties, which are carried at fair

value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant

to the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in note 4.

in 2006/07, the Group adopted the new/revised standards and interpretations of HKFRS. The effect of adopting the
new HKFRS is disclosed in note 42,

2.1 CONSOLIDATION
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries
made up to 31st March 2007.

2.2 SUBSIDIARIES
Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entitics) over which the Group has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies, generally accompanying a sharcholding of more than onc half of the
voting rights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible

are considered when assessing whether the Group controls another entity.
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2.

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Principal accounting policies (Conr i)
2.2 SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

2.3

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The
cost of an acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities
incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured
initiaily at their fair values at the acquisitton date, irrespective of the extent of any minority interests. The
excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary

acquired, the difference is recognised directly in the profit and loss accounts.

All significant intercompany transactions and batances within the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for impairment
losses. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends received and

receivable,

Minority interests represent the interests of outside equity holders in the operating results and net assets of

subsidiaries.

JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Jointly controlled entities are all entities in which the Group and other parties undertake an cconomic activity
which is subject to joint control and none of the participating parties has unilateral control over the economic
activity. Investments in jointly controlled entities are accounted for using the equity method of accounting and
are initially recognised at cost. The Group's investment in jointly contrelled entities includes goodwill (net of

any accumulated impairment loss) identified on acquisition.

The Group’s share of its jointly controlled entities’ post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in the profit
and loss account, and its share of post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in reserves. The
cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group’s share of losses in a jointly controlled entity equals or exceeds its interest in the jointly controlled
entity, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has

incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the jointly controlled entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its jointly controlled entity are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the jointly controlled entity. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of jointly controlled

entity have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.
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2.5

ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

Associales are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control, generally accompanying
a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for
using the equity method of accounting and are initially recognised at cost. The Group’s investment in associates

includes goodwill (net of any accumutated impairment loss) identified on acquisition.

The Group's share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in the profit and loss
account, and its share of post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in reserves. The cumulative
post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group's
share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments

on behalf of the assoctate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of'an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed wherc necessary

to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

SEGMENT REPORTING

A business segment is @ group of assets and operations engaged in providing products or services that are
subject to risks and returns that are different from those of other business segments. A geographical segment
is engaged in providing products or services within a particular economic environment that are subject to risks

and returns that are different from those of segments operating in other economic environments.

2.6 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

(a) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in US dollars, which is the Company’s functional and

presentation currency.

(b} Transactions and balances
Forcign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the profit and loss account, except when deferred in

equity as qualifying cash flow hedges or qualifying het investment hedges.

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as equity instruments held at fair value through
profit or loss, are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary
items, such as cquities classified as available-for-sale financial assets, arc included in the fair value

reserve in equity.
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2.6 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION (Cont d}
{c) Group companics
The results and financial position of all the Group entities that have a functional currency different from

the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presenied are translated at the closing rate at the date of

that balance sheet;

(ii) income and expenses for each profit and loss account are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates. in which case income and expenses are translated at the dates of the transactions);

and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in foreign entities,
and of borrowings and other currency instruments designated as hedges of such investments, arc taken to
equity holders’ equity. When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences are recognised in the

profit and loss account as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and

liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing rate.

2.7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Property, plant and equipment other than investment properties (note 2.8) are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Freehold land is not amortised. No depreciation is provided

for assets under coenstruction.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All repairs and maintenance are charged in the profit and loss

account during the financial period in which they are incurred.
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2.7

2.8

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont )
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method. This distributes

their cost or revalued amounts over their estimated useful lives, on the following bases:

Buildings on leasehold land The unexpired term of lease
Buildings situated on freehold land 25 to 50 years

Plant and machinery, equipment, and tools and moulds 2 to 15 years

Furniture and fixtures, motor vehicles and computers 3 to 10 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet

date.

Gains or losses arising from the disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts of those assets and are recognised as income or

expense in the profit and loss account.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying

amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Property that is held for long-term rental vields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by

the companies in the conselidated Group, is classified as investment property.

Investment property comprises land held under operating leases and buildings held under finance leases.
Land held under operating leases are classified and accounted for as investment property when the rest of the

definition of investment property is met. The operating lease is accounted for as if it were a finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair value. Fair value is based on active market
prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific asset. These
valuations are reviewed annually by external valuers. Investment property that is being redeveloped for
continuing use as investment property, or for which the market has become less active, continues to be measured

at fair value.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other things, rental income from current leases and

assumptions about rental income from future leases in the light of current market conditions.

Johnson Electric Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2007




2.

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Principal accounting policies (Cont i)

28

2.9

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Con: i)

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future ecconamic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All
other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the profit and loss account during the financial period in

which they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the profit and loss account.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment property because its use has changed, any
difference resulting hetween the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the date of transfer is
recognised in equity as a revaluation of property. plant and equipment under HKAS 16. However, if a fair

value gain reverses a previous impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the profit and loss account.

LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS
The up-front prepayments made for leasehold land and land use rights are accounted for as operating leases.
They are expensed in the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the periods of the lease, or when

there is impairment, the impairment is expensed in the profit and loss account.

210 INTANGIBLES

{a} Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share of the

net identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary/associate/jointly controlled entity at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries ts included in intangible asscts. Goodwill on acquisitions of
associates and jointly controlled entities is included in investments in associates and jointly controlled
entities. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Impairment losses on goodwill will not reverse. Gains and losses on the disposat of an entity

include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is
made to those cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from

the business combination in which the goodwill arose.

Goodwill previously eliminated against reserve prior to 2001 will not be restated or recognised in profit

and loss account upon disposal or impairment of an interest in a subsidiary.

(b} Intangible assets {other than goodwill)
Patents, technology, brands and client relationships that are acquired by the Group are stated in the balance

sheet at fair value at the date of acquisition less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
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210 INTANGIBLES (Cont d)
(b) Intangible assets {other than goodwill) (Contd)
Research and development costs are expensed as incurred and are only recognised as an intangible asset
where the technical feasibility and intention of completing the product under development has been
demenstrated and the resources are available to do so, costs are identifiable and there is an ability to sell
or usc the asset that will generate probable future economic bencfits. Such development costs are recognised
as an asset and amortised on a straight-line basis to reflect the pattern in which the related economic
benefits are recognised. Development costs that do not meet the above criteria are expensed as incurred.
Development costs previously recognised as an expense are not recognised as an assct in a subsequent

period.

Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost over the estimated useful

life. The estimated useful life for amortisation purpose is:

Patents 3to 20 years
Technology 15 to 20 years
Brands 25 years
Client relationships 510 25 years
Research and development costs 3 to 8 years

| 211 IMPAIRMENT OF INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND NON-
| FINANCIAL ASSETS
Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have not yet become available for use are not subject to amortisation,
but are tested at least annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
! amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the [owest levels for which there are separately
| identifiable cash flows {cash-generated units). Assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are

reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

212 FINANCIAL ASSETS
The Group classifics its financial assets in the following categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables, and available-for-sale financial assets. The classification depends on the purpose for which
the investments were acquired. Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial

recognition and re-evaluates this designation at every reporting date.
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2.12 FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont d)

(a) Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held for trading, and those designated at fair value
through profit or loss at inception. A financial asset is classified in this category if acquired principally
for the purpose of selling in the short term or if so designated by management. Derivatives are also
categorised as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are classified
as current assets if they are either held for trading or are expected to be realised within twelve months of

the balance sheet date.

(b) Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They arise when the Group provides money, goods or services directly to
a debtor with no intention of trading the receivable. They are included in current assets, except for maturities
greater than twelve months after the balance sheet date. These are classified as non-current assets. Loans

and receivables are included in trade and other receivables in the balance sheet {notc 2.15).

{c) Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless management

intends 1o dispose of the investinent within twelve months of the balance sheet date.

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade-date — the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs
for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair vaiue, and transaction costs are expensed in the profit and
loss account. Financial assets are not recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the effective

interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the “financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss” category are presented in the profit and loss account within other (losses)/gains — net, in the period in
which they arise. Dividend income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in the

profit and loss account as part of other income when the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in a foreign currency and classified as available-
for-sale are analysed between translation differences resulting from changes in amortised cost of the security
and other changes in the carrying amount of the security. The translation differences on monetary securities
are recognised in profit or loss; translation differences on non-monetary securities are recognised in equity.
Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary sccuritics classified as available for sale are recognised

in equity,
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2.12 FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont )

When securities classified as available for sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments

recognised in equity are included in the profit and loss account as gains and losses from investment securities.

Intcrest on available-for-sale securities calculated using the effective interest method is recognised in the
profit and loss account as part of other income. Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised

in the profit and loss account as part of other income when the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid prices. If the market for a financial asset is not
active {(and for unlisted securities), the Group established fair value by using valuation techniques. These
include the use of recent arm’s length transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially the
same, discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing models, making maximum use of market inputs and

relying as little as possible on entity-specific inputs.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity securities classified as available for sale, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered in determining whether the
securities are impaired. 1f any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss
- measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that financial asset previously recognised in the profit and loss account — is removed from equity and
recognised in the profit and loss account. Impairment losses recognised in the profit and loss account on

equity instruments are not reversed through the profit and loss account.

2.13 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at their fair value. The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on
whether the derivative is designed as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The
Group designates certain derivatives as either:

(a) hedges of the fair value of recognised liabilities (fair value hedge),

(b) hedges of a particular risk associated with a recognised liability or a highly probable forecast transaction

(cash flow hedge); or

{c) hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation (net investment hedge).
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213 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES (Cont d)
The Group documents, at the inception of the transaction, the relationship between hedging instruments and
hedged items, as well as its risk management objectives and strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions.
The Group also documents its asscssment, both at hedge inception and on an ongeing basis, of whether the
derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash

flows of hedged items.

The fair values of varicus derivative instruments used for hedging purposes are disclosed in Note 14. Movements
on the hedging reserve in shareholders’ equity are shown in Note 25. The full fair value of a hedging derivative
is classified as a non-current asset or liability when the remaining maturnity of the hedge item is more than 12

months. Trading derivatives are classified as a current asset or liability.

(a) Fair value hedge
Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded
in the profit and loss account, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability
that are attributabie to the hedged nisk. The Group applies only fair value hedge accounting for hedging
fixed interest risk on borrowings. The gain or loss relating to the effective portion of interest rate swaps
hedging fixed rate borrowings is recognised in the profir and loss account within finance costs. The gain
or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised in the profit and loss account within other gains/
(losses) — net. Changes in the fair value of the hedge fixed rate borrowings attnibutable to interest rate risk

are recognised in the profit and loss account within inance costs.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounmting, the adjustment to the carrying amount of
a hedge item for which the effective interest method is used is amortised to profit or loss over the period

1o maturity.

(b) Cash flow hedge
The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash
flow hedges are recognised in equity. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised

immediately in the profit and loss account within other gains/(losses) — net,

Ameounts accumulated in equity are recycled in the profit and loss account in the periods when the hedged
item affects profit or loss (for example, when the forecast sale that is hedged takes place). The gain or loss
relating to the effective portion of interest rate swaps hedging variable rate borrowings is recognised in
the profit and loss account within finance costs. The gain or loss relating to the effective portion of
forward foreign exchange contracts hedging export sales is recognised in the profit and loss account
within sales. The gain or loss relating Lo the ineffective portion is recognised in the profit and loss account
within other gains/(losses) — net. However, when the forecast transaction that is hedged results in the
recognition of a non-financial asset (for example. inventory or fixed assets), the gains and losses previously
deferred in equity are transferred from equity and included in the inittal measurement of the cost of the
asset. The deferred amounts ultimately recognised in cost of goods sold in case of inventory, or in

depreciation in case of fixed assets.
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213 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES (Coni d}

{b) Cash flow hedge (Cont )
When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing in equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised
when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in the profit and loss account. When a forecast
transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in equity is

immediately transferred to the profit and loss account within other gains/({losses) — net.

{c) Net investment hedge
Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are accounted for similarly to cash flow hedges. Any gain
or loss of the hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge is recognised in equity. The
gain or loss relating to the ineffcetive portion is recognised immediately in the profit and loss account

within other gains/(losses) — net.

Gains and losses accumulated in equity are included in the profit and loss account when the foreign

operation is partially disposed of or sold.

(d) Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting
Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge accounting and are accounted for at fair value
through profit or loss. Changes in the fair value of these derivative instruments that do not qualify for
hedge accounting are recognised immediately in the profit and loss account within other gains/(losses) —

net.

2.14 STOCKS AND WORK IN PROGRESS

Stocks and work in progress are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost, calculated on a
weighted average basis, comprises materials, dircct labour and an appropriate proportion of all production
overhead expenditure. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less applicable variable selling expenses. Costs of inventories include the transfer from equity of any gains/

losses on qualifying cash flow hedges relating to purchases of raw materials.

115 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost,
less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of trade and other receivables is established when
there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original
terms of receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy ot financial reorganisation, and default or delinguency in payments (more than 30 days overdue)
are considered indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
effective interest rate. The amount of the provision is recognised in the profit and loss account. When a trade
reccivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against selling and administrative expenses in the

profit and loss account.
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216 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits with banks that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value, and within three

months of maturity at acquisition,

2.17 SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction,

net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where any Group company purchases the Company’s equity share capital {Treasury shares), the consideration
paid, including any directly attributable incremental costs (net of income taxes.) is deducted from equity
attributable to the Company’s equity holders until the shares are cancelled, reissued or disposed of. Where
such shares are subsequently sold or reissued, any consideration received, net of any directly attributable
incremental transaction costs and the related income tax effects, is included in equity attributable to the

Company’s equity holders.

118 TRADE PAYABLES

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost.

2.19 BORROWINGS
Borrowings are initiatly recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Transaction costs are
incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset or
financial liability, including fees and commissions paid 10 agents, advisers, brokers and dealers, levies by
regulatory agencies and securities exchanges, and transfer taxes and duties. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the profit and loss account over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest

method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement

of the liability for at least twelve months after the balance sheet date,

2.20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX
Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred income tax is only accounted for if it arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction or event that affects either accounting or taxable profit or loss at the time of such a

transaction,
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted

by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realized or

the deferred income tax liability is settled.
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2.20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Cont )
Deferred income tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable a future taxable profit will be

available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

Deferred income tax is also provided where applicable on temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, associates, and jointly controlled entities, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable

future,

2.21 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
(a) Pension obligations
Group companies operate various pension schemes. The schemes are generally funded through payments
to insurance compantes or trustee-administered funds, determined by periodic actuarial calculations. The
Group has both defined benefit and defined contribution plans. A defined contribution plan is a pension
plan under which the Group and/or the employees pay fixed contributions into a separate entity. The
Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficicnt assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior
periods. A defined benefit plan is a pension plan that is not a defined contribution plan. Typically, defined
benefit plans define an amount of pension benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually

dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and compensation.

The liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit pension plans is the present
value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date less the fair value of plan assets, together
with adjustments for unrecognised actuarial gains or losses and past service costs. The defined benefit
obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The
present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash
outflows using interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in
which the benefits will be paid and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related

pension liability.

In prior years, actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions in excess of the greater of 10% of the value of plan assets or 10% of the defined benefit
obligation are charged or credited to the consolidated profit and loss account over the employees’ expected
average remaining working lives. With effect from |st April 2006, the Group adopted retrospectively the
alternative recognition policy in Amendment to HKAS 19 under which actuarial gains and losses are
charged or credited to equity in the consolidated statement of recognised income and expense in the

period in which they arise.

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in the profit and loss account, unless the changes to the
pension plan are conditional on the employees remaining in service for a specified period of time (the
vesting period). In this case, the past-service costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over the vesting

period.
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1.2l EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Cont )

{a)

(b)

{c)

{d)

Pension obligations (Cont tf)

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions to publicly or privately administered pension
insurance plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expense when they are due and are reduced by contributions forfeited by those employees who leave the
scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the

extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available,

Share-based compensation

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based compensation plans. The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for the grant of the options is recognised as an expense. The total
amount o be expensed over the vesting period is determined by reference to the fair value of the options
granted, excluding the impact of any non-market vesting conditions (for example, profitability and sales
growth targets). Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the number of options
that are expected to vest. At each balance sheet date. the entity revises iis estimates of the number of
options that are expected to vest. It recognises the impact of the revision of original estimates, if any, in

the profit and loss account, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal

value) and share premium when the options are exercised.

Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to employees, A provision is
made for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to the

balance sheet date.

Profit sharing and bonus plan
Provisiens for profit sharing and bonus plans due wholly within twelve months after balance sheet date
are recognised when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of services rendered by

employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made,

2.22 PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past

events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable

estimate of the amount can be made. Where the company expects a provision to be reimbursed, for example

under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement

is virtualty certain,
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Principal accounting policies (Con: d)
223 REVENUE RECOGNITION

()

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e}

Sales of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised on the transfer of risks and rewards of ownership, which

generally coincides with the time when the goods are delivered to customers and title has passed.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised when it is earned on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest

method.

Gross earnings from investments in finance leases

Gross earnings from investinents in finance leases are recognised on the basis as set out in note 2.24(a).

Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Royalty income

Royalty income is recognised on an accrual basis.

224 LEASES

{a}

{b)

Finance leases as the lessor
HKAS 17 defines a lease as being an agreement whereby the lessor conveys to the lessee in return for a

payment, or series of payments, the right to use an asset for an agreed period of time.
When assets are leased out under a finance lease, the present vatue of the lease payments is recognised as
areceivable. The difference between the gross receivable and the present value of the receivable is recognised

as unearned finance income.

Lease income is recognised over the term of the lease using the net investment method, which reflects a

constant periodic rate of return.

When assets are leased out under an operating lease, the asset is included in the balance sheet based on

the nature of the asset.
Lease income is recognised over the term of the lease on straight-line basis.
Finance leases as the lessee

HKAS 17 defines a lease as being an agreement whereby the lessor conveys 1o the lessee in return for a

payment, or series of payments, the right to use an asset for an agreed period of time.
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Principal accounting pelicies (Cont i
.24 LEASES (Conr

{b) Finance Icases as the lessee (Cont d)

(<)

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment. Leases of property, plant and equipment where
the Group has subsiantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance
leases are capitalised at the lease’s commencement at the lower of the fair value of the leased property and

the present value of the minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate
on the finance balance outstanding. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges. are
ingluded in other short-term and other long-term payables. The interest element of the finance cost is
charged to the profit and loss account over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period. The property, plant and equipment
acquired under finance leases is depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of the assct and the lease

term.

Operating leascs as the lessee
Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets remain with the leasing company
are accounted for as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases net of any incentives from

the leasing company are charged to the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

2.25 DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION

Dividend distribution to the Company’s equity holders is recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial

statements when the dividends are approved by the Company's equity holders.

126 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will only be

confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of ene or mere uncertain future events not wholly within the

contre! of the company. 1t can also be a present obligation arising from past events that is not recognised

because it is not probable that outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of obligation

cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the accounts. When a change in the

probability of an outflow occurs so that the outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

Financial risk management
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS

The Group's activities expose to a variety of financial risks: foreign exchange risk, credit risk. liquidity risk,

interest rate risk and price risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability

of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge certain risk exposures.
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Financial risk management (Conr )
3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Con: d)
Risk management is carried out by a central treasury department (Group Treasury) according to the Group

policy, Group Treasury identifies, cvaluates and hedges financial risks in close co-operation with the Group’s

operating units.

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

(€)

Foreign exchange risk
The Group operates globally and is thus exposed to foreign exchange risk. To manage the foreign exchange
risk, forward currency and options contracts are used with a view to reducing the net exposure to currency

fluctuations.

Credit risk
The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. It has policies in place to cvaluate the credit

risk of customers. The Group nermally grants credit term ranging from 30 to 90 days to its trade customers.

Liquidity risk
The Group follows a policy of prudence in managing its cash balances and maintains a reasonable level

of liquidity.

Interest rate risk
The Group’s current borrowings are mainly on floating rate basis and interest rate exposure is closely

monitored by the management.

Price risk
The Group is exposed to commodity price risk, mainly due to fluctuations in steel and copper prices. The
price risk due to steel and copper is reduced through contracts with our suppliers and hedging through

derivatives market respectively.

Accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are made based on historical expericnce and other factors, including expectations of

future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will,

by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant

risk of causing a material adjustiment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial

year are discussed below.

(a)

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any impairment, in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in note 2.10. The recoverable amounts are determined based on value-in-use calculations. In
assessing the value in use, management considers changes in economic conditions and makes assumptions
regarding estimated future cashflows and other factors. These calculations require the use of estimates
{note 9).
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Accounting estimates and judgements (Con: @)

4.1 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (Cont i)

{b) !Income taxes

(c)

(d)

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the worldwide provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences

wiil impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Warranty claims
The Group generally offers warranties for its motors and other products. Management uses historical

warranty claims experience as well as recent trends to determine the need for warranty provisions.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determine the estimated useful lives, residual values and related depreciation
charges for the property, plant and equipment with reference to the estimated periods that the Group
intends to derive future economic benefits from the use of these assets. Management will revise the
depreciation charge where useful lives are different to previously estimated, or it will write-off or write-
down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold. Actual economic
lives may differ from estimated useful lives: actual residual values may differ from estimated residual
values. Periodic review could result in a change in depreciable lives and residual values and therefore

depreciation expense in the future periods.

Segment information

Primary reporting format — business segments

Turnover of the Greup consists of sales of goods.

The principal operations of the Group are the manufacture, sale, and trading of motors, electromechanical

components, motion systems and sub-systems, and materials. The Group has changed the primary reporting scgments

to align with its internal reporting structure, The manufacturing segment comprised automotive products group

(APG), industry products group (IPG) and other products manufactured by the Group. The trading segment is

principally engaged in trading of goods not manufactured by the Group.

Johnson Electric Holdings Limited Annual Report 2007 75




NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

76

Segment information (Con:d)
Primary reporting format — business segments (Cont )
The segment results for the year ended 31st March are as follows:

Manufacturing Trading Group
2007 2007 2007
USs’000 US$°000 US$000
Sales 1,989,907 96,721 2,086,628
Operating profit 161,700 2,445 164,145
Finance costs (27,506) (2) (27,908)
Share of losses of jointly controlled entities/
associated companies (302) - (302)
Profit before income tax 133,492 2,443 135,935
Income tax expenses (22,143} (789) (22,932)
Profit for the year 111,349 1,654 113,003
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 109,696
Minority interests 3,307
113,003
Total assets
Secgment asscts 1,948,076 37,150 1,985,226
Associated companies 2,364 - 2,364
Deferred income tax assets and income tax recoverable 32,735 - 32,735
1,983,175 37,150 2,020,325
Total liabilities
Segment liabilities 940,104 15,092 955,196
Deferred income tax liabilities and income tax payable 101,202 537 101,739
1,041,306 15,629 1,056,935
Other information
Restructuring provisions 12,245 - 12,245
Capital expenditure 76,189 594 76,783
Addition of property, plant and equipment
from the acquisition of subsidiaries 10,029 - 10,029
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 70,706 118 70,824
Amortisation charge on leasehold land
and land use rights 689 - 689
Amortisation charge on intangibles 17,105 92 17,197
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5. Segment information (Conr )

Primary reporting format — business segments (Conr )

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Manufacturing Trading Group
2006 2006 2006
US$ 000 LSS 000 US3$°000
Sales 1,460,574 65,754 1,526,328
Operating profit/(loss) 122,998 (1,527 121,471
Finance costs {7,616} (2) (7,618)
Share of profits of jointly controlled entities/
associated companies 2,398 - 2,398
Profit before income tax 117,780 (1,529 116,251
Income tax expenses (21.618) {266) {21,884)
Profit for the year 96,162 (1,795) 94,367
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 93,99{)
Minority interests 377
Profit for the year 94,367
Total assets
Segment assets 1,926,082 29818 1,958,900
Jointly controlled entities 16,494 - 16,494
Associated companies 2,271 - 2,271
Deferred income tax assets and income tax recoverable 36,273 105 36,378
1,984,120 29,523 2,014,043
Total liabilities
Segment liabilities 1,038,859 12,962 1,051,821
Deferred income tax liabilities and income tax liabilities 106,459 (81) 106,418
1,145,358 12,881 1,158,239
Other information
Restructuring provisions 17,248 - 17,248
Capital expenditure 65,577 86 65,663
Addition of property, plant and equipment
from the acquisition of subsidiaries 143,425 - 143,425
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 55,588 62 55,650
Amortisation charge on leasehold land
and Jand use rights 318 - 318
Amortisation charge on intangibles 7,828 - 7,828
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5. Segment information (Cont i)
Secondary reporting format — geographical segments
In presenting information on the basis of geographical segments, sales are attributed to the region from which the

customer order originated. Segment assets and capital expenditure are based on the location of the assets.

I

Sales Capital expenditure Segment assets !
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 |
US$’000  US$'000  USS000  US$'000  USS000  USS000 1

Asia 686,181 510,969 54,206 47,307 728,358 766,790
America 504,685 396,181 3,851 4,208 229,174 243,411
Europe 895,762 619,178 18,726 14,148 1,027,694 948,699

2,086,628 1,526,328 76,783 65,663 1985226 1,958,900
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6. Property, plant and equipment

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Group
Freehold land Plant and  Assets under Other
and buildings machinery construction assets* Total
US$' 000 Uss’000 US$’ 000 uss’000 US$°000
At 1st April 2005
Cost £2.000 406,898 11,908 188,144 688,950
Accumulated depreciation (36.199) (293.381) - (115,255) (444.835)
Net book amount 45801 113517 11.908 72 889 244115
Year ended 31st March 2006
Opening net book amount 45801 113517 11,908 72,889 244,115
Exchange differences (194) (2,336) (1151 493 (3.188)
Acquisition of subsidiaries 66,175 49,404 6.463 21,082 143,124
Additions 5443 22512 20.698 15,835 64,488
Transfer 3.283 6.262 (19.777) 10,232 -
Transfer to investment properties (296) - - - (296)
Disposals (4,142) (2,823) (129) (2,552} (9.646)
Provision for impairment (note 29) (1,393) (3,011 - - (4,404)
Depreciation (5,070) (27.953) - (22.627) (55.650)
Closing net book amount 109,607 155,572 18.012 §5.352 378,543
At 1st April 2006
Cost 166,203 518.977 18.012 292,321 995,513
Accumulated depreciation {56.596) (363.405) - (196.969) (616.970)
Net book amount 109,607 155,572 18,012 95,352 378,543
Year ended 31st March 2007
Opening net book amount 109,607 155,572 18,012 95,352 378,543
Exchange difterences 5,251 3,736 259 2,298 11,544
Acquisitions of subsidianes (note 40) 3.107 3.879 24 1.549 8.559
Additions 13.651 25978 12.627 24,172 75,828
Transfer 1.133 2.620 (9,514) 5.761 -
Transfer to investment propertics (575) - - - (575)
Disposals (795) {3,628) (4.704) (2.584) (11.711)
Provision for impairmeni (note 29} (95) {1,250) - - (1.345)
Depreciation (7.164) {(33,708) - (29.952) (70.824)
Closing net book amount 124,120 153,199 16,104 96,596 390,019
At 31st March 2007
Cost 192,850 552,892 16,104 314,762 1,076,608
Accumulated depreciation (68,730) (399,693) - (218,166) (686,589)
Net book amount 124,120 153,199 16,104 96,596 390,019
Freehold land is located in Thailand, Europe and North America.
*  Other assets comprise equipment, furniture and fixtures, motor vehicles. moulds and tools.
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Entangibles
Group
Client  Development Total
Goodwill Patents  Technology Brands  relationships costs  intangibles
0557000 155000 USS'000 Us$*000 USS'000 USs'00 US5'000
At 1st April 2005
Cost 41,377 1342 - - ~ 4.866 49,585
Accumulated amortisation
and impairment - (1,752 - - - (2,634) (4.38)
Net book amount 413717 1,590 - - ~ 2232 45,199
Year ended 3 1st March 2006
Opening net book amount,
as restated 41377 1,590 - - - 2232 43,199
Exchange differences (6,436) (97 (1,%09) {839) (1414) (43) (10.758)
Acquisition of subsidiaries 331,690 5 130,144 53,45 88934 - 604,020
Additions - 157 - - - 802 959
Amortisation - {529) (3.430) (838) {1.958) (1,073 (1.828)
Closing net book amount 366,631 1126 124,805 51,548 85,564 1918 631,592
At 1st April 2006
Cost 366,631 3407 128,235 52,386 8151 5,625 643,806
Accumulated amortisation
and impairment - (2.281) (3.430) (838) (1.958) {3,707} (12,214}
Net book amount 166,631 1,126 124,803 51,548 85,564 1918 631,592
Year ended 31st March 2007
Opening net book amount 366,631 1,126 124,805 51,548 85,564 1,918 631,592
Exchange differences 23,165 (86) 7925 3,652 6,388 9 41,136
Acquisition of subsidiaries 1,863 120 - - - - 1,985
Adjtistment to goodwill 9,079 - - - - - 9,079
Acquisition of further interest
in subsidiary 275 - - - - - 175
Additions - - - - 2% ] 284
Amortisation - (475) (8.671) (2,129) (3,060) (862) {17.197)
Closing net book amount 401,015 685 124,059 53071 87,170 1,154 667,154
At 31st March 2007
Cost 401,015 341 136,160 56,038 94,138 5123 696,365
Accumulated amortisation
and impairment - 2,756) (12,101) (2,967) (1.018) (4,569) (29411)
Net book amount 401,015 683 124,059 53,01 871 1,154 667,154
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Group
Freehold land Plant and  Assets under Other
and buildings machinery construction assets* Total
Us$ 000 Uss*o00 US$"000 US$ 000 Us$’ 000
At Tst April 2005
Cost 82,000 406,898 11,908 188,144 688,950
Accumulated depreciation (36,199) (293,381) - (115,255) (444,835}
Net book amount 45,801 113,517 11,908 72,889 244,115
Year ended 31st March 2006
Opening net book amount 45,801 113,517 11,908 72,889 244,115
Exchange differences (194} (2,336} {1,151} 493 (3,188)
Acquisition of subsidiaries 66,175 49,404 6,463 21,082 143,124
Additions 5,443 22,512 20,698 15,835 64,488
Transfer 3,283 6,262 (19,777) 10,232 —
Transfer to investment propertics (296) - - - (296)
Disposals (4,142) (2.823) (129) (2,552) (9,646)
Provision for impairment (note 29) {1,393) (3.011) - - (4,404)
Depreciation (5,070) (27,953) - (22,627} {55,650)
Closing net book amount 109,607 155,572 18,012 95,352 378,543
At 1st April 2006
Cost 166,203 518.977 18.012 292,321 995,513
Accumulated depreciation {56,596) (363,405) - (196,969) (616,970)
Net book amount 109,607 155,572 18,012 95,352 378,543
Year ended 31st March 2007
Opening net book amount 109,607 155,572 18,012 95,352 378,543
Exchange differences 3,251 3,736 259 2,298 11,544
Acquisitions of subsidiaries (note 40) 3,107 3,879 24 1,549 8,559
Additions 13,651 25,978 12,027 24,172 75,828
Transfer 1,133 2,620 (9.514) 5,761 -
Transfer to investment properties (575) - - - {575}
Disposals (795) (3,628) (4,704) (2,584) (11,711)
Provision for impairment (note 29) (95) (1,250) - - {1,345)
Depreciation {7,164) (33,708) - (29,952) (70,824)
Closing net book amount 124,120 153,199 16,104 96,596 390,019
At 31st March 2007
Cost 192,850 552,892 16,104 314,762 1,076,608
Accumulated depreciation (68,730) (399,693) - (218,166) (686,589)
Net book amount 124,120 153,199 16,104 96,596 390,019
Freeheld land is located in Thailand, Europe and North America.
*  Other assets comprise equipment, furniture and fixtures, motor vehicles, moulds and tools.
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7. Investment properties

Group

2007 2006
LiS$°000 US$’000
At beginning of the year 17,202 8,356
Fair value gains (note 26} 1,769 5,671

Transfer from property, plant and equipment and leasehold land
— Costs 575 807
— Revaluation surplus (note 25) 4,662 2,368
At end of the year 24,208 17,202

The investment properties were revalued on an open market value basis as at 31st March 2007 by an independent,

professionally qualified valuer, DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, Registered Professional Surveyors.

The Group leases out its investment properties under operating leases of 1 year or more.

The Group’s intetests in investment properties at their net book values are analysed as follows:

2007 2006
US$000 US$7000

In Hong Kong:
On medium-term lease (between 10 to 50 years) 24,208 17,202
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Leasehold land and land use rights

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

The Group’s interests in leasehold land and land use rights represent prepaid operating lease payments and their net

book value are analysed as follows:

Group
2007 2006
Uss'000 US$000
In Hong Kong:
On medium-term lease (between 10 to 50 years) 18,910 20,857
Outside Hong Kong:
On medium-term lcase (between 10 to 50 years) 5,895 4,498
24,805 25,355
2007 2006
US3000 USs’ 000
At beginning of the year 25,355 27.877
Exchange differences 112 (371)
Additions 955 1,173
Transfer to investment properties - (511)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 40) 1,470 301
Amortisation of prepaid operating lease payment (689) (318)
Disposals (2,398) (2,798)
At end of the year 24 805 25,355
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9. Intangibles

Group
Client  Development Total
Goodwill Patents  Technology Brands  relationships costs  intangibles
US5 000 USS'000 Us$°000 US§°000 US§:000 US5'000 US$'000
At 15t April 2005
Cost 41377 3,342 - - - 4866 49,585
Accumulated amortisation
and impairment - {1,732) - - - (2,634) (4,386)
Net book amount 413717 1,590 - - - 2232 45,199
Year ended 3 Est March 2006
Opening net book amount,
as restated 41377 1,590 - - - 2232 45,199
Exchange differences (6.436) 97 (1,909) (839 (1.414) 43 (106,758)
Acquisition of subsidiaries 331,650 5 130,144 53,245 88936 - 604,020
Additions - 157 - - - 802 959
Amortisation - 529 (3,430 (838) (1,98) (1.073) (7828)
Closing net book amount 366,631 1,126 124,805 51,548 85,564 1,918 631,592
At Lst April 2006
Cost 366,631 3407 128,235 52,386 87322 5,625 643,806
Accumulated amortisation
and impairment - (2.281) (3,430) (838) (1,958) (3.707) {12,214)
Net book ameunt 366,631 1,126 124,805 51,548 85,564 1918 631,592
Year ended 31st March 2007
Opening net book amount 366,631 1,126 124,805 51,548 85,564 1918 631,592
Exchange differences B165 (86) 1923 3682 6,388 92 41136
Acquisition of subsidiartes 1.865 120 - - - - 1985
Adjtstment to goodwill 9079 - - - - - 9079
Acquisition of further interest
in subsidiary 275 - - - - - 275
Additions - - - - 78 b 284
Amortisation - (473) (8,671) (2,129} {5,060} (862) {17,197)
Closing net book amount 401,018 685 124,059 53,071 81,170 1,154 667,154
At Jst March 2007
Cost 401,015 34l 136,160 56,038 94,188 51 696,565
Accumulated amortisation
and impairment - (2,356) (12,101) (2,97} (2.018) (4.569) (29411)
Net book amount 401,015 685 124,059 53,0M 87,170 5134 667,154
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Intangibles (Cont i)
Impairment test for goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group's cash generating units (CGUs) as follows:

2007 2006

Total Total

uss’ooo USS 000

Manufacturing 396,308 361,864
Trading 4,707 4,767
401,015 366,631

In accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”, and following the allocation of goodwiil to CGUs, the
impairment test for goodwill was carried out by comparing the recoverable amounts to the carrying amouns as at
the balance sheet date. The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calcuiations use pre-tax cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering FY
2007/08. Cashflows from FY 2008 onwards are projected based on conservative financial forecasts using the
estimated growth rates for manufacturing and trading CGUs and are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates
in the range of 0% to 3%. Management determined forecast profitability based on past performance and its
expectation for the future changes in costs and sales prices. Future cashilows are discounted at 8.4%. The discount
rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the reievant CGUSs. There was no evidence of impairment

arising from tests of reasonable variations of the assumptions used.

Subsidiaries
Company
2007 2006
US$’ 000 USS'000
Unlisted shares, at cost 1,002,405 1,008,580
Amounts duc from subsidiaries 641,884 462.831
1,644,289 1.471.411
Amounts due to subsidiaries {521,585) (457,531)
1,122,704 1,013,880
Less: current portion (note (a)) (6,564) -
Long term portion {note {b)) 1,116,140 1,013,880
Notes:

(a) The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

(b} The amounis are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment except for amounis totalling US$113,735,000
(2006: US§7,016,000) which bear interest at 3% to 4% per annum (2006; 3% per annum),

Details of principal subsidiaries are shown in note 44,
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Jointly controlled entities

In 2006, the Group had a 50% interest in two jointly controlled entities, Shanghai Ri Yong-JEA Gate Electric Co.,

Ltd. and CJ Electric Systems Co. Ltd. During the year the Group has acquired an additional 10% share of Shanghai

Ri Yong-JEA Gate Electric Co., Ltd., now becomes a subsidiary of the Group. The Group has also disposed of its

interest in CJ Electric Systems Co. Ltd. At 31st March 2007, and the Group now has no interest in jointly controlled

entities.

The Group’s share of the assets is as follows:

2007 2006
USss 000 US$000
Assets

Nen-current assets - 5,538
Current assets - 17,494
- 23,032

Liabilities
Current liabilities - 6,538
- 6,538
Net assets - 16,494

Share of profit/(loss) from joinily controlled entities up to the date of disposal recognised in the profit and loss

account 15 as follows:

Income 2,779 19,642
Expenses (2,927) (18,069}
(Loss)/profit after income tax (148} 1,573
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Associated companies

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Group
2007 2006
USs 000 USS 000
At beginning of the year 2,271 3,193
Share of associated companies’ results
— (loss)/profit before income tax (127) 932
— income tax expense 27} (107)
Exchange difference 82 (135)
Transfer associates te subsidiaries - (3,799)
Acquisition of associate by a subsidiary 165 457
Acquisition of subsidiaries - 1,610
At end of the year 2,364 2,271
Details of principal associated companies are shown in note 44.
Available-for-sale financial assets
Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
US$ 000 USs'000 US3’000 USS 000
At beginning of the year 5,294 6,743 5,294 6,612
Additions 17 45 17 45
Disposals (701) (867) (701) (736)
Net gains/(losses) transfer to equity
(note 25) 521 (627) 521 (627)
Atend of the year 5,131 5,294 5,131 5,294

There were no impairment provisions on available-for-sale financial assets in 2007 or 2006,

Available-for-sale financial assets include the following:

Group and Company

2007 2006
US$ 000 US3’000
Unlisted securitics
— Unlisted equity investments 5,131 5,294
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14. Derivative financial instruments

Group
Assets Liabilities
2007 2006 2007 2006
Uss’ 000 USS'000 uss’ 000 USS'000
Interest-rate swaps — held for trading 176 654 - -
Cross currency interest rate swaps
— net investment hedge - - 19,272 -
— cash flow hedge 4,404 - - -
Forward foreign exchange contracts
— cash flow hedges - - 432 371
— held for trading - - - 208
Commodity contracts
— copper hedging contracts 4,883 7,097 - -
— held for rading - 238 266 -
Total 9,463 7,989 19,970 579
Less: non-current portion - - (19,272) -
Current portion 9,463 7,989 698 579
Company
Assets Liabilities
2007 2006 2007 2006
US$°000 US$’000 USs$’000 US$000
Cross currency interest rate swaps
— net investment hedge - - 19,272 -
- cash flow hedge 4,404 - - -
Total 4,404 - 19,272 -
Less: non-current portion - - (19,272) -
Current portion 4,404 - - -
15. Stocks and work in progress
Group
2007 2006
US$°000 US$000
Raw materials 139,933 129,616
Work in progress 14,545 14,579
Finished goods 96,692 89,184
251,170 233,379
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16. Trade and other receivables

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Group Company

2007 2006 2007 2006

US5°000 US$ 000 US$ 000 US3’000

Trade receivables 408,178 375,558 - -
Eess: provision for impairment

of receivables (9,472) (8,612) - -

Trade receivables — net 398,706 366,946 - -

Prepayments and other receivables 60,153 51,223 45 54

Investments in finance leases (note 17} - 8 - -

458.859 418,177 45 54

All trade and other receivables are either repayable within one year or on demand. Accordingly, the fair value of the

Group’s trade and other receivables arc approximately the same as the carrying value.

The trade and other receivables include trade receivables of U$$408,178,000 (2006: USS$3735,558,000). The Group

normally grants credit terms ranging from 30 to 90 days 10 its trade customers. The ageing analysis of trade

receivables based on invoice date was as follows:

Group
2007 2006
US$’000 USS 000
0-60 days 326,703 284,475
61-90 days 35,693 41,226
Over 90 days 45,782 49,857
Total 408,178 375,558

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables, as the Group has a large number of

customers.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

Group
2007 2006
US$ 000 US$'000
US dollars 171,391 167,162
Euro 180,906 161,831
RMB 24,644 11,993
Others 31,237 34,572
Total 408,178 375,558
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17. Imvestments in finance leases

Group
2007 2006
USS$*000 US$’000
Non-current receivables
Finance leases — gross receivables - 209
Unearned finance income - 57
- 152
Current receivables
Finance leases — gross receivables - 16
Unearned finance income - &)
- 8

The Group has entered into agreements with its employees whereby certain leaschold property assets of the Group
which are located in Hong Kong are leased to these employees. Under the terms of these agreements, substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets are transferred to the employees. Consequently, these transactions

are accounted for as finance leases. At 31st March 2007, all lease contracts have been terminated.

18. Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Group
2007 2006
Uss 000 US$ 000
Listed securities:

- Equity securities — US - 2
Market value of listed securities - p)
Unlisted securities 5,135 2,705
The carrying amounts of the above financial assets are classified as follows:

Designated as fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition 5,135 2,707

5,135 2,707
Less: non-current portion (4,140) _
Current portion 995 2,707

Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are presented within the scction on operating activities as

part of changes in working capital in the cash flow statement (note 39).
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19. Bank balances and cash

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
USss'000 USS 000 Uss'000 Uss 000
Cash at bank and in hand 120,057 67.228 484 651
Short-term bank deposits 29,225 171,282 - 360
149,282 238,510 484 1,011

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was 4.34% (2006: 4.32%); these deposits have an average

maturity of 12 days (2006: 30 days).

The bank balances and cash above represents the cash and cash equivalents included in the cash flow statement.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following currencies:

Group

2007 2006
US$’000 USS 000
US dollars 68,306 171,887
Euro 37,313 34,287
RMB 22,155 20,531
Others 21,508 11.805
Total 149,282 238,510

20. Trade and other payables

Group Company

2007 2006 2007 2006
US$’000 USS 000 US$°000 US$'000
Trade payables 182,976 194,925 - -
Accrued expenses and sundry payables 115,079 80,155 8,581 303
298,055 275,080 8,581 303
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20.

21.

90

Trade and other payables (Con )

The trade and other payables include trade payables of UUS$182,976,000 (2006: US5194,925,000). The ageing

analysis of trade payables based on invoice date was as follows:

2007 2006
US§'000 US$000
0-60 days 148,275 151,055
61-90 days 11,454 15,652
Over 90 days 23,247 28,218
Total 182,976 194,925
The carrying amounts of the Group's trade payables are denominated in the following currencies:
Group
2007 2006
US3’000 USS$ 000
US dollars 41,150 62,960
Euro 67,222 77,392
RMB 25,255 19,822
Others 49,349 34,751
Total 182,976 194,925
Borrowings
Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
US$°000 US3°000 US5000 US$'000
Non-Current
Bank borrowings (note) 550,304 520,723 523,304 520,718
Other loans 2,596 2,470 - -
552,900 523,193 523,304 520,718
Current
Bank borrowings 20,177 184,710 - -
Other loans 438 210 - -
20,615 184,920 - -
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

21.  Borrowings (Con: i)

The maturity of borrowings is as follows:

Group Company
Bank loans Other loans Bank loans
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006

US$’000 US3°000 Uss’000 USS§’'000 uss’ooo USs’000

Within one year 20,177 184,710 438 210 - -
In the second year 6,000 5 377 364 - -
In the third to fifth year (note} 544,304 520,718 1,094 1,059 523,304 520,78
After the fifth year - - 1,125 1,047 - -

570,481 705,433 3,034 2,680 523,304 520,718

Interest is charged on the outstanding balances at 1.93% to 5.93% per annum (2006: 1.5% to 6.875% per annum).

The carrying amounts of the above loans approximate their fair value as at 3 1st March 2007.

Note:

At 31st March 2007, the Group had a five-year loan in the amount of US$525 ,000.000 which is wholly repayable on the final

maturity date of 31st March 2011,

USD258,964.000 out of USD525,000,000 was swapped into CHF339.000,000 under a cross currency interest rate swap with the

same maturity date on 3 1st March 2011,

The carrying amounts of the borrowings (bank loans and other loans) are denominated in the following currencies:

Group Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
US$'0600 US§°000 USss$* 000 USS'000
Hong Kong dollar 12,194 9.710 - -
US dollar 558,070 124,209 523,304 —
Euro 2,768 42,481 - -
Swiss Francs - 520,718 - 520,718
Other currencies 483 10,995 - -
573,515 708,113 523,304 520,718
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Provisions and other liabilities

Group
Other Retirement
pension benefit  Finance lease
costs  Restructuring  obligations liabilities Warranty Sundries Total
US$000 Uss’00¢ Us5’000 Uss:oo0 USS'000 USS000 US§000
At st Apri] 2003 144 2891 14,206 - 1357 - 26,897
Exchange differences {26) - {1,188) - (444} - {1,658)
Acquisition of subsidiaries 701 - 22353 8,787 - 978 32819
Provisions 148 17,243 1632 - 12,889 26 34,163
Utilised 2M) {7.8%0) 291 (126} (7,194) - (18.,395)
Net income recognised in equity - - (5777 - - - (5,77
At 31t March 2006 3192 12,249 30,335 8,661 12,608 1,004 68,49
Less: non-current portion (3.192) - (30,335) (8,368} - {1,04) {42,899)
Current - 12,49 - ] 12,608 - 25,150
At st April 2006 3,192 12,249 30,335 8,661 12,608 1,004 68,49
Exchange differences 22 847 1156 - 847 - 3378
Provisions 104 12,245 4352 - 17,11 106 339719
Utilised {2,083) {16,316) (7,935) (565} (13,053) - (39,952)
Net income recognised in equity - - (1,798) - - - (1,798)
At 31st March 2007 1,135 9,025 AN 8,096 16,080 1,i10 63,656
Less: non-current porticn {1.053) - (28,110) (7,842} - (1110} (38,117)
Current porzion 180 9,025 - 25 16,080 - 215519

221 RESTRUCTURING

Restructuring provisions are related to the closure of plants. The provision represents mainly asset write-offs,

severance payments and provisions for other shutdown costs.

Detatls of the provision for restructuring cost is as follows:

2007 2006

US$’000 USS 000

Asset write-offs (including provision for impairment) 170 2,763
Other costs 8,855 9,486
9,025 12,249
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Provisions and other liabilities (Cont i)

22.2 RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS AND OBLIGATIONS
Defined benefit pension plans
The Group's defined benefit plans provide employees coverage related to old age pension. early retirement
penston, disability pension and widow pension. Defined benefit plans in Europe are valued by independent

external actuarics.

The Group's defined benefit plans provide pensions to employees after meeting certain age/service conditions.

Pensions are based on specific pension rates applied 10 the employecs’ years of service and pensionable carnings.
The assets of the funded plans are held independently of the Group assets in separate trustee administered
funds. The Group's major plans were valued by qualificd actuaries as at 31st March 2007 and 3 1st March 2006

using the project unit credit method to account for the Group’s pension accounting costs.

{1} The amounts recognised as a net liability in the balance sheet are determined as follows:

2007 2006 2005 2004
Us$’ 000 US$'000 US$’000 US$'000

Presem value of defined
benefit obligations 145,026 132,738 14,206 13,742
Fair value of plan asscts (116,916) (102,403) - —
28,110 30335 14,206 13,742

(a) Present value of defined benefit obligations

The movement in the present value of defined benefit obligations recognised in the balance sheet is

as follows:
2007 2006
US$’ 000 USS 000
At beginning of the year 132,738 14,206
Current service cost (note 11 below) 4,474 2973
Interest cost (note [I below) 4,962 2.456
Contributions by plan participants 2,370 1,001
Actuarial {gainsYlosses (notc 11 below) (1,284) 759
Exchange differences 12,173 (2,880)
Benefits paid (10,011) {1.956)
Acquisition of subsidiaries - 116,179
Settlement (396) -
At end of the year 145,026 132,738
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Provisions and other liabilities (Con: &)
22.2 RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS AND OBLIGATIONS (Contd)
Defined benefit pension plans (Cont i)
() (Contd)
(b) Fair value of plan assets

The movement in the fair value of plan assets of the year is as follows:

2007 2006
US$’000 Uss 000
At beginning of the year 102,403 - |
Expected return on plan assets (note II below) 5,084 1,777 i
Actuarial gains (note (11 below) 514 6,536 :
Exchange differences 9,017 (1,684) I
Employer contributions 5,924 1,321 |
Employee contributions 2,370 1,001 |
Benefits paid (8,396) (375)
Acquisitions of subsidiaries - 93,827
At end of the year 116,916 102,403

The actual return on plan assets was US$5,598,000 (2006: USS 8,313,000).

Plan Assets

The plan asset mix is established through consideration of many factors, including assumption of

tolerance for fluctuation in market values, portfolio diversification and the targeted long-term rate of

return for the assets. Foreign exchange risk is inherent in the asset mix policy and foreign currency

fluctuations may significantly affect the return on the assets held by the trustees of the funds.

Over the past 2 years, our weighted average rate of return for our defined benefits pension plan was

5.8% per annum.

Plan assets are comprised as follows:

2007 2006
US$*000 Percentage US$ 000 Percentage
Equity 62,010 53% 52,922 52%
Debt 40,707 35% 34,622 34%
Others (mainly property
investment} 14,199 12% 14,859 14%
116,916 100% 102,403 100%
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22, Provisions and other liabilities (Cont &)
222 RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS AND OBLIGATIONS (Contd)
Defined benefit pension plans (Conr i}
(f) (Contd)
(b) Fair valuc of plan assets (Cont d)
Experience adjustments are as follows:
2007 2006 2005 2004
US$000 US$'000 USS°000 US$°000

Expertence adjustments on

plan liabilitics 397 482 - -
Experience adjustments on

plan assets - - - -

The expected return on plan assets was determined by considering the expected returns available on
the assets underlying the current investment policy. Expected yields on fixed interest investments
are based on gross redemption yields as at the balance sheet date. Expected returns on equity and

property investments reflect long-term real rates of return experienced in the respective markets.

Expected contributions to post-employment benefit plans for the vear ending 3 1st March 2008
are US$4,198.000.

(c)} The defined benefit obligations are analysed as follows:

2007 2006

Uss’ 000 USS 000

Present value of funded obligations 116,807 112,159
Present value of unfunded obligations 28,219 20,579
Present value of funded/unfunded obligations 145,026 132,738

(f) The amounts recognised in the profit and loss account are as follows:

2007 2006

USss$’000 UsSs 000

Current service cost (note I above) 4,474 2,973
[nterest cost (note | above} 4,962 2,456
Expected return on plan assets (note [ above) (5,084) (1,777)
Expensed in profit and loss account for pensions benefits 4,352 3,652

Expensed in profit and loss account for post-employment

medical benefits - 367
Total expenses, included in staff costs 4,352 4,019
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Provisions and other liabilities (Con: )
22.2 RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS AND OBLIGATIONS (Conrt)
Defined benefit pension plans (Cont d)

(71} The amounts recognised through equity are as follows:

2007 2006

USS’000 US5'000
Actuarial gains on obligation (note [ above) 1,284 (759)
Actuarial gains on plan assets (note [ above) 514 6,536
Gross actuarial gains 1,798 5,777
Less: deferred income tax on actuarial gains (950) {1,058)
Total gains, included in equity 848 4,719

The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows:

2007 2006

Percentage Percentage

Discount rate 3%-5.1% 3% -4.25%
Expected return on plan assets 0% -T% 0% - 7%
Future salary increases 0% - 3% 0% - 3%
Future pension increases 0% - 3.2% 0% - 3%

Mortality rates
Assumptions regarding future mortality experience are set based on advice, published statistics and

experience in each territory,

The life expectancy in years of a pensioner retiring at age 65 on the balance sheet date is as follows:

2007 2006
Male 16.8 16.9
Female 20.6 20.7
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22.  Provisions and other liabilities (Conrd)
2.3 FINANCE LEASE LIABILITIES

Properties, plant and equipment includes the following amounts where the Group is a lessee under a finance
lease:
2007 2006
LS5 000 US$ 000
Cost — capitalised finance leases 10,915 11513
Accumulated depreciation (637) (2.073)
Net book amount 10,278 9,440

Lease liabilities are effectively secured as the rights 10 the leased asset revert to the iessor in the event of

default.

The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest-rate changes and the periods in which the borrowings

reprice are as follows:

2007 2006
Building capital lease 11.69% 11.69%
Laser equipment lease N/A §.42%
Gross finance lease obligation — minimum lease payments:
2007 2006
Uss$’ 000 Uss 000
Not later than 1 ycar 1,188 1.279
Later than | ycar and not later than 5 years 5,075 6,558
Later than 5 years 8,604 8.604
14,867 16,441
Future finance charges on finance leases (6,771) (7.780)
Present value of finance leasc liabilities 8,096 8.661
The present value of finance lease liabilities is as follows:
Mot later than | year 254 293
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 1,751 2,277
Later than 5 years 6,091 6.091
8,096 8,601
97
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23.

98

Deferred income tax

The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows:

2007 2006

US$°000 US$°000

Al beginning of the year (55,407) 7.421
Exchange differences (3,916) 1,271
Acquisition of subsidiaries - (67.846)
Transfer to profit and loss account (note 32) 4,074 6,396
Tax charged to equity (1,368) (2,649)
At end of the year (56,617) (55,407)

Johnson Electric Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2007




NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

23.  Deferred income tax (Conr d)

The movement in deferred tax assets/(liabilities) during the year is as follows:

Accelenated tan Impairment of
Provisions deprectation assels Tax losses Fair value gain Others Toul
1007 2006 1007 2006 2007 2006 w7 2006 2007 2006 007 2006 007 2006
USH'000  LUSS'000  USS'00  USSOD0  USS000 USS'000 TSSO USS000 [CSS'00  USS000 USS00  USS'000 SS90  L:S5°000

At beginning of the vear,
4 previeusly reported 48 (3904)  (26306) (214M) 3905 2630 B9 19M6  (6A318)  (13T6) {1842y 1539 (3BT 341

Increase in deferred income tax assets/Teabilities

Exchange differences w0 #) E%) - - Boun 07 [4T) - %) YR i
Credited (charged) to
profit and loss account %68 - (L) - - 1,865 - - - - - - (1543 1863
Taxation charged to equity - {1058} - - - - - - (1368) (1591} - - {1368  (2649)
Acquisitions of subsidiaries - - - [3A) - - - 3165 - {61939) - - - ({H0195)
L 2y ann @A - IE® I 36 (3MS)  (665H) (145 - B4R (0512)

Decrease in deferred income tax assers/liabilicies

Exchange differences - - - 459 - - - - - 1087 - ({223 - 814
Credited {charged) to

profit and loss account - 9375 - 2870 - - ) @My 4455 503 348 (1593) B 4331
Taxation charged to equiry - - - - - - - - - - - - - _
Acquisitions of subsidiaries - 3,109 - - - {604) - - - - - (136) - 149

- 1248 - 139 - (604)  (3n0) {4624y 435 1550 48 (148 am 164

Atend of the year 3629 1458 (8283} (26506) 395 1905 wA1Y O BIH (BTHT)  (66316) 6 (2920 (36617 (55407)
Shown as:
Deferred income tax assets 9,194 9,058 {T181)  (6014) kX A 1808 413 26,041 - - 33 (328) 30918 32,662
Deferred income

1 liabilities (565)  (1,600) {21102) (20492} - - pRAL] 1853 (6T.707) (66316} {35) 614 (B7538)  (38.069)

8620 748 (MI53) (26306) 385 3905 26413 28S%  (63T07) (66316) 3% (2842) {56817} (55.407)

Additional information — Gross analysis:

Gross deferred income
tax assets 9194 9,055 - - 1905 LRV | KT - - 31 (318) 40343 461
(Giross deferred income
tax Habilities {565)  (1600) (38283) (26506} - - - - (BLN07)  (66]18) (£35) (20140 (%6960) (97.036)

5629 TS (W23 (26306) 3503 1903 26403 289 (62.007) {66316) N6 (2942) (36617) {35407)
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Deferred income tax (Contd)

The deferred income tax charged to equity during the year is as follows:

2007 2006
US$’000 US$000
Fair value reserves in shareholders’ equity:
— hedging reserve 398 (1,177
— other reserve (816) (414)
Actuarial gain of defined benefit plan (950) (1,058)
{1,368) (2,649)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax losses can be utilised. The Group has unrecognised tax
losses of US$10,192,000 (2006: US$12,718,000) to carry forward against future taxable income.

The table above describes component parts of the deferred income tax assets and liabilities which are shown on the

balance sheet.

Provision:
Certain tax authorities do not allow accounting provisions as charges against taxable profit, which gives rise to a

different basis for calculating accounting and taxable profit

Accelerated tax depreciation:
This represents the difference between the rate of depreciation which is charged against accounting profit and the

accelerated rate of depreciation which is charged against taxable profit

Impairment of assets:
The extent to which a change in value resulting from the reassessment of an asset’s economic worth is not allowable

as a current year charge against taxable profit

Tax losses:

The value of current losses which can be offset against future profits to reduce future taxation charges

Fair value gain:
The extent to which a change in value resulting from the reassessment of an asset’s economic worth is not treated

as a current year taxable income
Others:

These represent all other differences between the bases of valuation of assets and liabilities for accounting and

taxation purposes which give rise to a difference in accounting and taxable profit.
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24.  Share capital

Number of Ordinary Share Treasury
shares shares premium shares Total
| (thousands) Uss$’ 000 Uss’000 US$ 000 Uss'000
I
| As at 1st April 2005 3,673,789 5.925 77.855 - 83,780
| Treasury share purchased (2.480) - - (2.368) (2.368)
‘ As at 1st April 2006 3.671,309 5.925 77.855 (2,368) 81,412
Treasury shares vested 680 - - 650 650
' As at 31st March 2007 3,671,989 5,928 77,855 (1,718) 82,062

The total authorised number of ordinary shares is 7,040,000,000 shares (2006: 7,040,000,000) with a par value of
HKE&0.0125 per share {2006: HKS$0.0125 per share). All issued shares are fully paid.

Under the long term incentive share scheme, the Company has granted 1,650,000 shares during the year, the
valuation is based on the market value on date of grant. Movements of the long term incentive shares are set out in

the reserves movement under note 25,

Share Option
Share options granted to employees as at 31st March 2007 under a share option scheme approved at an Annual

General Meeting of the Group held on 29th July 2002 are as follows:

Granted Forfeited Subseription

Held at during during Held at price per Exercisable Exercisable
11412006 the year the year 31032007 share (HKS) Date of grant from until
530,000 - (100,000} 430,000 .02 17:0912002 010812004 16:09/2012
530,000 - (100,000} 430,000 8.02 17/09/2002 1/08/2005 1640512012
50.000 - (50.000) - 9.40 10:07/2003 01:0712005 19.072013
50,000 - (50,000) - 9.40 10:07/2003 011072006 090772013
475,800 - (100.000) 375.000 9.65 3110772003 0140772003 02013
473,000 - (100,000} 375.000 9.65 311072003 011072006 30072013
100,000 - - 100,000 11.93 06/10/2003 01/10/2005 0371041013
100.000 - - 160,000 11.95 06/10:2003 01/10:2006 05101013
50,000 - - 30,000 877 07/05/2004 0170572006 06/03/2014
50,000 - - 50,000 &n (7:05/2004 4140572007 06/05/2014
100.000 - - 100.000 140 T8 2004 410172007 2122014
100,000 - - 100,000 740 281212004 1/01/2008 21212014

2.630.000 - {500.000) 2,150,000
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24. Share capital (Conr )

No share option was exercised during the year (2006 Nil).

The fair value of options granted or forfeited, net, during the year ended 31st March 2007 was determined using the
Binomial valuation model, and the credit to the profit and loss account was US$93,000 (credit for year ended 3 1st
March 2006: US$210,000). The significant inputs into the model were dividend yield of 1.5%, sub optimal early
exercise factor of 1.5, withdrawal rate of 5% post the vesting period, volatility of 40% and the risk-free rate is

varied depending on the grant date.
The aggregate fair value of US$588.000 (2006: US$681,000) of the above options granted are recognised, together

with a corresponding increase in equity, over their vesting period for the relevant directors and senior executives in

accordance with the Group’s accounting policy pursuant to HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payments™.
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25. Reserves

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Group
Share-based
Goodwill on Share  emplovee
Contributed ~ Capital  consolid-  Exchange option benefit  Hedging Other  Retained
surplus reserve ation reserve  Teserve reserve resene reserve  earnings Total
USS'000  USS'000  USS000  USS'000  USS'000  USS'000  LSS'000  UISSU000  LSS'000  USS'000
At 13t April 2005. as restated 15499 BT (233885) %0 il - - 95 I TG
Exchange differences - B: - (7.39%) - - - - - (1.339)
Fair vatue losses on
available-for-sale financial assets - - - - - - - (627) - {627)
Actuarial gains of defined benefit plan - - - - - - - - AT 501
Deferred income tx effect on acmarial
gains of defined benefit plan - - - - - - - - (1038 (1.0s8)
Fair value gains;
- hedging instrument - - - - - - 6,724 - - 674
- deferred income tax on fair
vlue pains - - - - - - (1177} - - (L
Revaluation surphus:
- on tzansfer frem property,
plezt and equipment and
leaschold land to investment
propetties - - - - - - - 2368 - 1368
- deferred income tax on
evaluation surphss - - - - - - - (14} - ()
Net income{zxpense) recognised
directly in equity - k) - (7.391} - - 3 1327 4719 124
Profit for the vear - - - - - - - - 3% B
Total recognised income for the period - k) - (73 - - 547 137 98.709 9824
200405 Final dividend paid - - - - - - - - (31810)  (51810)
200506 Interim dividend paid - - - - - - - - (2LI9) (21195)
Share oprion scheme:
—value of employee services - - - - (210 - - - - (10
- kY - (73 210) - 5547 1327 AN 2000
At 31st March 2006 1549 8949 (131885) 1.637 681 - 5547 15 s TN
Finat dividend proposed - - - - - - - - 00 4003
QOther 15499 38549 (133885) 1,637 681 - 5547 230 R4 TMe;
At 31st Mareh 206 1549 18949 (133.885) 1637 681 - 5547 15 S48 TN
Company and subsidiaries 15,499 BMI (I8 167 081 - 5347 180 M4 1S
Jointly controlled exrities - - - - - - - - 134 134
Associated comparies - - - - - - - - 1433 1433
At 3st March 2006 15499 BHY (13885) 1,637 681 - 847 18 94 TN
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25. Reserves (Contd)

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
|
|
|
|

Group
Share-based
Goodwill on Share  employes
Contriboted ~ Capifal  comselid-  Exchange option  benefit  Hedging Other  Retained
surplos reserve atiol  RSEME TESENE RSEVE MMM releme  earings Total
USS'000  LSS'000  USS'ODO  USS'00p  USS000  USS'6  USS000  USS'600  USY'Od0  USS000
At It April 2006 15499 38949 (13g85) 16T 681 - 5 L AR I
Exchange differences - - - 4019 - - - - - aM
Fair vahue gains on
availabie-for-sale {inancial assets - - - - - - - s - 52
Actuarial gaizs of defined
benefit plan - - - - - - - - 1,19 £,798
Deferred income tax effect on
actuarial gains of defined
beaefs: plan - - - - - - - - (950} (930)
Fair vahue losses:
- hedging instrument - - - - - - (2273) - - 2m
- deferred income tax on
fair vatue tosses - - - - - - 398 - - 39
Revaluation surphs:
- on iransfer from property,
plant and equipment and
leaschald land to investment
properiis - - - - - - - 4662 - 4562
- deferred income 1ax on
revaluation surphus - - - - - - - (816} - (816)
Net income/{expense) recognised
directly in equity - - - 409 - - {18 43 B8 M1
Profi for the year - - - - - - - - 198% 10969
Tota] recognised income for the period - - - 09 - - (1873) 4367 103 15385
200506 Final dividend paid - - - - - - - - {0035y (40.035)
200607 Interim dividend paid - - - - - - - - QLY (%)
Long-1erm incentive share scheme:
— share vested - - - - - (650) - - - (650)
—value of employee services - - - - - 2613 - - - 2683
Share option scheme:
~ vahue of employee services - - - - (93) - - - - (93}
- - - AT ) 198 (L875) 4367 4034 WM4B
At Jist March 2007 15490 38940 (33883)  424% 588 1,563 167 6619 9R2T62  BSB6N3
Final dividend proposed - - - - - - - - 4005 40033
Other 1549 3840 (233885) 2% 588 1,9 36n 6619 277 BIBSES
At 31st March 2007 15499 38049 (233885)  424% 588 1963 m 6619 982761 838,603
Cotnpary and subsidiaries 15499 38949 (233885) 4% 588 1,363 1T 6619 981463 BIIM
Associated companes - - - - - - - - 1,199 1.29%
At st March 2007 154% 89 (13883) 4% 583 1963 167 6619 98276 B3B63
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25,

Reserves (Cont i)

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Company
Share-based
employee
Contributed  Share option benefit Other Retained
surplus reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
US$ 000 US$000 USE*000 US§*000 US$’000 USS'000
At 15t April 2003, as restated 95,273 891 - 923 369.207 166.296
Share option scheme:
- vatue of employee services - (210 - - - (210)
Fair value loss on available-for-sale
financial assets - - - (627) - (627}
Profit for the year - - - - 25352 25.352
Dividend - - - - (73,005) (73.005)
At I1st March 2006 95,273 681 - 298 321,554 417.806
Long-term incentive share scheme:
— share vested - - (630 - - {650)
—value of employec services - - 2,613 - - 2613
Share option scheme:
—value of employee services - (93) - - - (93)
Fair value gain on available-for-sale
financial assets - - - 521 - 321
Profit for the year - - - - 140,582 140,582
Dividend - - - - (61.230) {61.230)
At 31st March 2007 95,273 588 1,963 819 400,906 499,549

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31st March 2007 amounted to US$496,179,000 (2006: USS5416,827.000).
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

26.

27,

28.

106

Other income and gains

2007 2006
Uss'000 US$'000
Interest income 6,862 6,025
Gross earnings from investments in finance leases - 7
Gross rental income from investment properties 3,526 1,344
Royalty income - 108
Fair value gains on investment properties 1,769 5,671
12,157 13,155

Selling and administrative expenses
2007 2006
Uss$°000 US$000
Selling expenses 137,829 97,582
Administrative expenses 210,165 153,947
347,994 251,529

Restructuring provisions
Restructuring provisions are related to closure of certain plants in Europe, US and China. The costs incurred during

the year represent mainly asset write-offs, severance payments and provisions for other shutdown costs.

2007 2006

US$’000 USS 000

Asset write-offs (including provision for impairment) 1,004 3,154
Other costs 11,241 14,094
Total provisions 12,245 17,248
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29. Expenses by nature

Operating profit is stated afier crediting and charging the following:

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

2007 2006
US$000 Uss’000
Depreciation
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 70,824 55,650
Less: amounts capitalised on assets under construction (499) (1.256)
70,325 54,394
Employee benefit expense 360,313 229221
Less: amounts capitalised on assets under construction (1,241) (1,640)
359,072 227,581
Cost of goods sold* 1,574,401 1,149,235
Auditors’ remuneration 1,955 1,879
Amortisation on leasehold land and land use rights {note 8) 689 318
Amortigation of intangibles (note 9) 17,197 7,828
Impairment of property, plant and equipment {note 6) 1,345 4,404
{Gains)/losses on disposals of property, plant and equipment (961) 2,667
{Gains)/losses on other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (100) 144
Net foreign exchange {gains)/losses (note 33) (672) 1.151
P'rovision for impairment of trade receivables 742 453
*Note:  Cost of goods sold include material, production overhead and direct labour costs.
30. Employee benefit expense
2007 2006
US$’000 USs’000
Wages and salaries 319,811 206,946
Social security costs 29,831 15,078
Pension costs — defined contribution plans 6,319 3,178
Pension costs — defined benefit plans 4,352 4,019
360,313 229,221
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

30.

108

Employee benefit expense (Cont d)
30.1 PENSIONS - DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLANS

The Group operates two defined contribution schemes in Hong Kong which comply with all the respective
requirements under the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance (“ORSG”) and the Mandatory Provident
Fund (“MPF™) Ordinance. All the assets under the schemes are held separately from the Group under
independently administered funds. Contributions to the MPF Scheme follow the MPF Ordinance while
contributions made by the employer to the ORSO Scheme are based on 5% of the basic salary of the employees.

The Group also operates other defined contribution retirement schemes which are available to certain employees

in the United States of America.

Contributions are charged to profit and loss account as incurred and may be reduced by centributions forfeited

from those employees who leave the ORSO scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions.

During the year, no forfeited contributions were used, in the prior year, forfeited contributions totalling
USS1,100,000 were used to offsct the contribution during the year. At 31st March 2007, the balance of the
forfeited contributions was US$523,000 (2006: US$371,000).

30.2 PENSIONS - DEFINED BENEFIT PLANS

The Group’s major plans were valued by qualified actuaries as at 31st March 2007 and 3 1st March 2006 using

the projected unit credit method to account for the Group’s pension accounting costs.

30.3 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The remuneration of every Director for the year ended 3 1st March 2007 is set out below:

Emplover’s

Other contribution to

Fees Salary benefits* pension scheme Total
Name of Director US$°000 US$’000 US$°000 US$*000 USS’000
Yik-Chun Koo Wang - 72 - - 72
Patrick Shui-Chung Wang - 600 - 48 648
Winnie Wing-Yee Wang - 3n 123 30 530
Richard Li-Chung Wang - 500 - 40 540
Peter Stuart Allenby Edwards 33 - - - XX
Patrick Blackwell Paul 45 - - - 45
Michael John Enright 40 - - - 40
Laura May-Lung Cha 37 - - - 3
Peter Kin-Chung Wang 25 - - - 25
Oscar de Paula Bernades Neto M - - - M
Arkadi Kuhimann# 13 - - - 13

7 1,549 123 118 2,017

E  resigned effective on 30th September 2006
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

30. Employee benefit expense (Conr i)
30.3 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Conr if}

The remuneration of every Director for the year ended 3 1st March 2006 is set out below:

Employer’s

Other  coniribution o

Fees Salary benefits*  pension scheme Total
Name of Director USs’000 USS§'000 USS$'000 Uss 000 USs'000
Yik-Chun Koo Wang - 67 - 3 72
Patrick Shui-Chung Wang - 600 - 48 648
Winnie Wing-Yee Wang - m 123 30 330
Richard Li-Chung Wang - 500 - 40 540
Peter Stuart Allenby Edwards 38 - - - 38
Patrick Blackwell Paul 50 - - - 50
Michael John Enright 41 - - _ 4|
Laura May-Lung Cha 41 - - - 4]
Peter Kin-Chung Wang 30 - - - 30
Oscar de Paula Bernades Neto 34 - - - M
Arkadi Kuhlmann 42 - - - 42

276 1.544 123 123 2,066

*  Other benefits include housing allowance benefits.

30.4 SENIOR MANAGEMENT COMPENSATION
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group for the year include | director (2006: 3)
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above. The emoluments payable to the remaining 4

individuals (2006: 2) during the year are as follows:

2007 2006

US$ 000 USS 000

Salaries, allowances and other benefits 1,337 1,219
Retirement scheme contributions 61 146
Retirement gratuity - 915
Redundancy 983 -
Bonuses 420 160
2.801 2.440
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

30. Employee benefit expense (Con: i)
30.4 SENIOR MANAGEMENT COMPENSATION (Cont d)

Emoluments band Number of individuals
2007 2006

USS640,001 — US$704,000 (HK$5,000,001 — HK$5,500,000) 3

US$768,001 — USS832,000 (HK$6.000,001 — HK$6,500,000) 1 -

USS$832,001 — US5896,000 (HK$6,500,001 — HK$7,000,000) - 1

US$1,536,001 — USS$1,600,000 (HKS$12,000,001 — HKS12,500,000) - }

30.5 KEY MANAGEMENT COMPENSATION
Other than the directors’ emoluments and senior management compensation disclosed above, the emoluments

paid to the senior management as disclosed in the biographical details on pages 46 to 48 of this report are as

follows:
2007 2006
US$’000 USS'000
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 4,656 3,996
Share-based payments 282 -
4,938 3,996

31. Finance costs

2007 2006
US$°000 US$’000
Interest on bank loans and overdrafis 27,908 7,618
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32.

33.

34,

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Income tax expenses

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 17.5% (2006: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for

the year, Overseas tax has been provided at the applicabie rates on the estimated assessable profit in respective

couatries of operations for the year.

2007 2006
US$ 000 US$'o00
Current income tax
Hong Kong profits tax 9,715) (6.070)
Overseas taxation (22,210) (19.554)
Over/(under) provisions in prior years 4,919 (2,656)
(27,006) (28.280)
Deferred income tax (note 23) 4,074 6.396
(22,932) (21.884)
The effective tax rate of the Group differs from the tax ratc of Hong Kong as follows:
2007 2006
% %
Tax rate of Hong Kong 17.5 17.5
Effect of different tax rates in other countries 31 0.7
Income net of expenses not subject to tax (3.3) {4.3)
(Over)under provisions in prior years (3.6) 2.2
Unrecognised tax losses 3.2 2.7
Effective tax rate 16.9 18.8
Net foreign exchange gains/(losses)
The exchange differences recognised in the profit and loss account are included as follows:
2007 2006
US$'000 USS$°000
Administrative expenses 672 (L.151)

Profit attributable to equity holders

The Group’s consolidated profit attributable 1o equity holders is US$109,696,000 (2006: US$93.990,000) of which

US$140,582,000 (2006; US$25,352,000) is dealt with in the accounts of the Company.

Details are shown in note 235.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

3s.

36.

37.

112

Dividends
2007 2006
US$'000 US$'000
Interim, paid, of 0.58 US cents per share (2006: 0.58 US cents) 21,195 21,195
Final, proposed, of 1.09 US cents per share (2006: 1.09 US cents) 40,035 40,035
61,230 61,230

At a meeting held on 8th June 2007 the directors declared a final dividend of 1.09 US cents per share. This
proposed dividend is not reflected as a dividend payable in these accounts, but will be reflected as an appropriation

of retained earnings for the year ending 3 1st March 2007.

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calcutated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by the

weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

2007 2006
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company (thousands US dotlar) 109,696 93,990
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue {thousands) 3,671,883 3,672,599
Basic earnings per share (US cents per share) 2.99 2.56

The Company has share options that could dilute basic earnings per share in the future. Diluted eamnings per share
equals basic earnings per share because there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding during the year

ended 3 1st March 2007,

Contingent liabilities

In August 2001, a claim for damages was made in the Lowndes County Circuit Court in Mississippi against
Johnson Electric Automotive, Inc. (“JEAI”), a subsidiary of the Group, and over ten other third party defendants
for personal injury and property damage in a lawsuit pertaining to environmental conlamination invelving an
automotive parts manufacturing facility in Columbus, Mississippi, USA which was purchased in 1999 and closed

down in 2001,

In February 2007, JEAI and Lear Corporation, a co-defendant, negotiated a sctilement with the attorneys for
certain plaintiffs. Under the term of the settlement, the claims of settling plaintiffs will be dismissed with prejudice.
Upon entry of an order of dismissal, the plaintiffs will not be allowed to file any other action to recover damages
related to the claims they made in the lawsuits that have been settled. Such order ends all litigation related to the
plaintiffs’ claims, Although the claims of nen-settling plaintiffs remain pending, the Group considers resolution of

the remaining claims will not be material.
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38. Commitments
38.1 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Group
2007 2006
USs’000 USS'000
Capital commitment for property, plant and equipment
Authorised but not contracted for 3,935 2415
Contracted but not provided for 7,600 12,375
11,535 14,790
Investment in;
Subsidiary, contracted but not provided for - 4,045
Jeintly controlled entity, contracted but not provided for - 4.859
- 8.904

38.2 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

(1) At 31st March 2007, the Group had future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases as follows:

2007 2006

Land and Land and
buildings Others buildings Others
uss’ 000 US$'000 US$ 000 US$'000
Not later than one year 14,088 1,197 12,620 1.523

Later than one year and not

later than five years 34,547 1,197 31.563 1.353
Later than five years 10,733 8 8,030 -
59,368 2,402 52213 2.878

(i1} At 3ist March 2007, the Group had future aggregate minimum lease rental receivable under non-cancellable

operating leases on land and buildings as follows:

2007 2006

US$000 USS 000

Not later than one year 1,820 777
Later than one year and not later than five years 1,759 3105
3,579 4,882
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

39.

40.

114

Cash generated from operations

2007 2006
US5’000 USS 000
Profit before income 1ax 135,935 116,251
Share of losses/(profits) of jointly controlled entities/
associated companies 302 (2,398)
Gains on sales of jointly controlled entities (653) -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 70,325 54,394
Amortisation of leaschold land and land use rights 689 318
Amortisation of intangible assets 17,197 7,828
(Gains)/losses on disposais of leasehold land,
property, plant and equipment (961) 2,667
Provision for impairment on property, plant and equipment 1,345 4,404
Fair value {gains)/losses on derivative financial instruments (3,630) 1,779
Net realised and unrealised (gains)/losses on disposals of
other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 379) 504
Share based compensation 2,520 (210)
Fair value gains on investment properties (1,769 (5,671)
Net interest expense 21,046 1,593
Gross earnings from investments in finance lcases - )
Net realised gains on available-for-sale financial assets (378) (1,821)
{Increase)/decrease in stocks and work in progress (2,396) 13,290
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables (13,881) 12,778
Decrease in trade and other payables (4,006) (31,820)
Increase in other provisions 560 10,517
Cash generated from operations 221,866 184,396

In the cash flow statement, proceeds from sale of leasehold land, property, plant and equipment comprises:

2007 2006

US$’000 Uss$000

Net book amount 11,217 12,444
Gains/(losses) on sale of leasehold land, property, plant and equipment 961 (2,667)

Proceeds from sale of leasehold land, property, plant and equipment 12,178 9,777

Business combinations

On 3rd April 2006, the Group paid U5$4,900,000 to purchase additional 10% sharcholding in Shanghai Ri Yong-
JEA Gate Electric Co., Lid., previously a jointly controlled entity of the Group. The effective holding increased
from 50% to 60%. The acquired business contributed revenues of US$50,180,000 and net profit of 534,962,000
1o the Group for the period from the date of acquisition to 31st March 2007.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

40. Business combinations (Conr i)
On 30th August 2006, the Group acquired a metal materials trading business, The acquired business contributed
revenues of US39,265.000 and net profit of US$161,000 to the Group for the period from the date of acquisition to
31st March 2007.

Details of net assets acquired and goodwill are as follows:

US$000
Purchase consideration: 5,480
Fair value of net assets acquired — shown as below (3,615)
Goodwill 1,865
The assets and liabilities arising from the above acquisitions in this financial year are as follows;
Acquiree’s
Fair Value carrying amount
USS 000 US$ 000
Property, plant and equipment 8,559 8.559
Leaseheld land and land usc rights 1,470 1,470
[ntangibles 120 120
Stocks and work in progress 8,124 8,124
Trade and other receivables 8,174 8,174
Bank balances and cash 14,579 14,579
Trade and other payables (9,178) (9,178)
Net assets 31,848 31,848
Minority interests (12,739)
19,109
Interest in a jointly controlled entity previously accounted for (15,494)
Net assets acquired 3615
Purchase consideration settled in cash (5,480)
Cash and cash equivalents in subsidiary acquired 14,579
Cash tnflow on acquisition 5,099

41. Related-party transactions
Details of substantial equity holders are shown in Disclosure of Interests in the Report of the Directors on page 39.
The Group had no other material related party transactions during the year. Details of senior management and key

management compensation are disclosed in note 30.4 and 30.5 in this report.
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42,

116

Effect of adopting new HKFRS

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards effective in 2006/07 which
are relevant to the Group

In 2006/07, the Group adopted the new/revised standards and interpretations of HKFRS below, which are relevant

to its operations. The comparatives have been amended as required, in accordance with the relevant requirements.

HKAS 21 {Amendment) Net Investment in a Foreign Operation
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 4 (Amendment} Financial guarantee contracts
HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease

The adoption of new/revised HKASs, HKAS 21 {(Amendment), HKAS 35 and HKFRS 4 {Amendment} and
HK(IFRIC)-1nt 4, did not result in substantial changes to the Group’s accounting policies. In summary:

- Amendment to HKAS 21 requires exchange differences arising on a monetary item that forms part of an
entity’s net investment in a foteign operation to be initially recognised in equity in the entity’s consolidated
financial statements. This is consistent with the current accounting treatment of the Group, thus the

management ¢onsidered that there is no significant impact.

- The Group adepted HKFRS 4 — [nsurance Contracts to account for its financial guarantee contracts, the

adoption had no material effect on the Group’s accounting policies.
- HK{IFRIC)-Int 4 had no material effect on the Group’s accounting policies.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards effective in 2006/07 but not
relevant to the Group
The following standards, amendments and interpretations are mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or

after 1st April 2006 but are not relevant to the Group’s operations:—

HKAS 39 {Amendment) Cash flow hedge accounting of forecast Intragroup transactions
HKAS 39 (Amendment) The fair value option
HKFRS 1 & 6 (Amendments) First-time Adoption of HKFRS and Exploration for and Evaluation

of Mineral Resources

HEK(IFRIC)-Int 5 Rights to interests arising from Decommissioning, Restoration and
Environmental Rehabilitation Funds

HEK(IFRIC)-Int 6 Liabilities arising from Participating in a Specific Market: Waste
Electrical and Electronic Equipment

HK(IFRIC)-Int 7 Applying the Restatement Approach under HKAS 29, Financial
Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies

HKFRS 6 Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

42.  Effect of adopting new HKFRS (Cont i)
Standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards that are not effective in 2006/
07 which are relevant to the Group
Certain new standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards have been published that are mandatory
for the Group’s accounting periods beginning on or after 1st April 2007 or later periods but which the Group has

not early adopted, as follows:

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 2

HK{FRIC)-Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives

HR(IFRIC)-Int 10 Interim Reporting and Impairment

HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share Transactions
HKAS 1 (Amendment) Presentation of Financial Statements: Capital Disclosures
HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact of these amendments, new standards and new
interpretations in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely 10

have a significant impact on the Group's results of operations and financial positions.
Standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards that are not effective in 2006/07
and are nof relevant to the Group’s operations

HK{IFRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements

43. Approval of accounts
The accounts were approved by the Directors on 8th June 2007,
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

44.

I8

Principal subsidiaries and associated companies

The following list contains particulars of subsidiaries and associated companies of the Group which in the opinion

of the directors, materially affect the results and assets of the Group:

Place of Effective shareholding
Principal incorporation Issued and by by
Name activities and operation paid up capital company subsidiary
SUBSIDIARIES
Best Port International Limited Tnwestment holding British Virgin | share of - 100%
Islands USSI each
Bloor Company Limited Property holding British Virgin 50,000 shares of - 100%
Islands USS1 each
China Autopars, Inc. * Investment holding United States 12,121,213 shares of - 55.36%
of America US50.0001 each
Chengdu Tonglin Casting Industrial Manufacturing China RMB#67,560,000 - 55.36%
Co, Ltd
Crown Trend Limited Property holding British Virgin 1 share of - 100%
Islands US§t each
Delta Success Electric Manufacturing Malaysia 1 share of - 100%
Company Limited USH each
De Chang Metal Industries Limited Sales and marketing Hong Kong 20,000 shares of - 160%
HES100 each
De Chang Fulfilment Limited Trading Heng Kong 2 shares of - 100%
HKS$1 each
Deyang Lianzhou Electric Co., Lid. * Manufacturing China US5480,000 - 100%
Easy Fortune (H.K.) Ltd. Property holding British Virgin 50,000 shares of - 100%
Islands USS1 each
Easy Reach Electric Motor Limited Sales and marketing Heng Kong 100,000 shares of - 90.2%
HKS} each
Gate do Brasi Ltda Manufacturing Brazil BRL27,568,588.40 - 100%
Gate Deutschland GobH Manufacturing Germany EUR60,000 - 100%
Gate Espafia Automecion, S.L. Manufacturing Spain EURL50,250 - 100%

*  Wholly owned foreign enterprises
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Principal subsidiaries and associated companies (Cont d)

Place of Effective shareholding
Principal incorporation Issued and by by
Name activities and operation paid up capital company subsidiary
SUBSIDIARIES
Gate France SAS Manufacturing France EUR382.230 - 99.98%
Gate S.r. Manufacturing haly 2.600.000 shares of - 100%
EURI each
Gate UK Limited Manufacturing United Kingdom 50.000 shares of - 100%
GBP1 each
Gatebrook Limized Investment holding Cvprus 11.000 shares of - 100%
CYP! each
Gether Success Ltd. lavestmeni holding British Virgin 30,000 shares of 100% -
Islands U3$1 each
Guiyang Deguang Electric Manufacturing China USS200,000 - 100%
ColLud.*
Harbour Sky (BVI) Ltd. Property holding British Virgin 50,000 shares of - 100%
Islands USS1 each
Hwa Sun Electric Company Limited Subconracter Hong Kong 10,000 shares of - 100%
HKSI each
JE Autemetive Holdings, Inc. [nvestment holding United States 10 shares of - 100%
of America USS0.01 each
JEA Gate Holdings S.r.l. [nvestment helding ltaly EUR32.968.000 - 100%
JEA Limited [nvestment holding British Virgin 2 shares of 0% -
Islands USS] each
JE Castings Investments Limited Tnvestment holding British Virgin | share of - 100%
Islands USH! each
JE Fulfilment {Shenzhen) Limited * Sales and marketing Chira HKS4,800,000 - 100%
JE Fulfilmen: Limited Sales and marketing Hong Kong 20,000 shares of - 100%
HKS! each
Johnson China Advice {Shenzhen) Consultant China HK$1.000,000 - 100%
Co.Ltd.*
*  Wholly owned foreign enterprises
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44. Principal subsidiaries and associated companies (Con )

Place of Effective sharcholding
Principal incorporation Issued and by by
Name activities and operation paid up capital company subsidiary
SUBSIDIARIES
Johason China Advice Company Limited ~ Consultant Hong Keng 1 share of - 100%
HKS1 each
Johnson Electric Automotive Manufacturing Mexico 39,296,590 shares of - 100%
de Mexico S.A. de C.V. 1 Peso each
Johnson Electric Automotive, lnc. Manufacturing and United States 100 shares of - 100%
ivestment holding of America US$0.01 each
Jotmson Electric Capital Ltd Investment holding British Virgin | share of 160 -
Islands US81 each
Johnsor Electric Technical support Hong Kong 100,000 shares of 100% -
Engineering Lid. HK$! cach
Johnson Electric (France) SAS Trading France 1,910 shares of - 100%
EUR2) each
Johnson Electri¢ (Geangdong) Co. Ltd. ¥ Manufacturing China 1U583,829.780 - 100%
Johnson Electric (Hong Kong) Ltd Sales and marketing Hong Kong 1 share of 100% -
HKSH each
Johnson Electric [ndustrial Manufacturing Hong Kong 308,000,000 shares of 100% -
Manufactory, Lid. HK$0.5 ¢ach
Johnson Electrie Licensing Bermuda 1,000,000 shares of 100% -
Intellecteal Property Lid. HKS$0.1 each
Johnson Electric (laly} S.r.. Sales and marketing ftaly EUR10,000 - 100%
Johnson Electric (Korea) Limited Sales and marketing South Korea 1,000 shares of - 100%
KRWS,000 each
Johnsen Electric Moncatieri S.r.1. Manufacturing ltaly EUR2,519,540 - 100%
Johnson Electric (Nanjing) Co., Ltd. * Manufacturing China 554,000,000 - 100%
Johason Electric Sales distributor United States 12 shares with no - 100%
North America, Inc. of America par value issued at
US8120,000

*  Wholly owned foreign enterprises
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44.

Place of Effective shareholding
Principal incorporation Issued and by by
Name activities and eperation paid up capital company subsidiary
SUBSIDIARIES
Johason Electric S.A. Research Switzerland 500 shares of - 100%
and development, SFRLO00 each
manufacturing
Johnsen Electric Sales and marketing China US§200,000 - 100%
{Shanghat) Co,, Ltd. *
Johnson Electric Research China HKS30,000,000 - 100%
{Shenzhen) Co. Ltd. * and development
Johnson Electric Trading Limited Sales and marketing Hong Kong 100.000 shares of - 100%
HKS] each
Johnson Electric World Marketing, sales Hong Keng 100.000 shares of 100% -
Trade Limited agent and HK$? each
distributor
Johnson Properties Limited Investment holding British Virgin 50,000 shares of 100% -
Islands USSI each
Kwong Lee (Asia) Metal Sales and marketing Hong Kong 2,000,000 shares of - 100%
Company Limited HKS1 each
Kwonrg Lee Metal Manufacturing China HKS8.000.000 - 100%
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. *
Main Country Limited Property holding British Virgin | share of - 100%
Islands USS! each
M.M.A (Manufzcrra de Motores Manufacturing Argentina 388,000 shares of - 100%
Argentinos) S.c.. 10 Pesos each
Nanomotion Ltd. Manufacturing tsrael 18,669,985 shares of - 1%
NIS0.01 each
Nihon Mini Metar Co. Lid. Sales and marketing Japan JPY330,000,000 - 100%
JE Materials Company Limited Envestment holding British Virgin 100 shares of - 100%
(formerly known as Qutperform [slands USS1 each
Group Limited)
*  Wholly owned forcign enterprises
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Principal subsidiaries and associated companies (Cont )

Place of Effective shareholding
Principal incorporatien Issued and by by
Name activities and operaticn paid up capital company subsidiary
SUBSIDIARIES
Parlex {Europe) Limited Manufactoring United Kingdom 2,000,000 shares of - 100%
{formerly known as Poly-Flex GBP1 each
Circuits Eimited)
Palex (Europe) Trading Limited Trading United Kingdom I share of - 100%
{formerfy known as Parlex (Europe) GBPI each
Limited)
Parlex USA Inc. Manufacturing, R&D,  United States 100 shares issued - 100%
Sales and marketing of Ametica with no par value
Parlex Dynaflex Corporation Manufacturing United States 1000 shares issued - 100%
of America with no par vatue
Parlex Polymer Flexible Circuits, Inc. Manufacturing United States 1,000 shares of - 100%
of America USS1 each
Parlex Asia Holdings Limited [nvestment holding British Virgin 2,000 shares of - 100%
Islands US$1 each
Parlex Asia Pacific Limited Trading Hong Kong 14,698 shares of - 100%
HKS1 each
Parlex Pacific Limited Trading Hong Kong [ share of
HES1 each - 100%
Parlex (China) [nvestment Limited Investmeat holding British Virgin 1,000 shares of - 100%
Islands USS$1 each
Parlex {Shanghai) Interconnect Manufacturing China 1J$55,000,000 - 100%
Technologies Co., Lid.
Parlex (Shanghay) Interconnect Manufacturing China US$15,000,000 - 100%
Products Co., Ltd.
Parlex (Shanghai) Circuit Co., Lid. Manufacturing China 1US5$5,000,000 - 100%
Parlex (Shanghai) Electronics Manufacturing China US$2,000,000 - 100%
Co., L.
Saia-Burgess Electrenics Helding AG Investment holding Switzerland 643,200 shares of - 100%
CHE 50 each
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Johnson Electric Holdings Limited

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Principal subsidiaries and associated companies (Cont i)

Place of Effective shareholding
Principal incorporation Issued and by by
Name activities and operation paid up capital company subsidiary
SUBSIDIARIES
Saia-Burgess Murten AG R&D. manufacturing,  Switzerland 5,000 shares of - 100%
sales and mazketing CHF1.000 each
Saia-Burgess Controls AG R&D. manufacturing, Switzerland 100 shares of - 100%
sales and markeling CHF1,000 each
Saia-Burgess Gateshead Limited Manufacturing, RED.  United Kingdom 7.000,100 shares of - 100%
sales and marketing GBP1 each
Saia-Burgess Oldenburg GmbH Manufacturing, R&D.  Germary EURL3.338.800 - 100%
&Co. KG sales and marketing
Saia-Burgess Dresden GmbH Sales and marketing Germany EUR25 600 - 100%
and R&D
Saia-Burgess Halver GmbH Manufaciuring. R&D.  Germany EUR25.000 - 100%
sales and marketing
Saia-Burgess Deutschland GmbH Sales and marketing Germany EURS11.300 - 100%
Saia-Burgess Industry PL Sp.z0.0. Manufacturing Poland 417 shares of - 100%
PLNB73.25 each
Saia-Burgess Poland Sp.zo.o. Manufacturing Poland 5,900 shares of - 100%
PLN300 each
Saia-Burgess Paris Sar| Sales and marketing France 125,000 shares of - 100%
EURI16 each
Saia-Burgess Milano 514, Sales and masketing haly EUR3.700,000 - 100%
Saia-Burgess Osterreich GmbH Sales and marketing ~ Austria EUR4C000 - 100%
Saia-Burgess Benelux B.Y. Sales and marketing Netherlands 3,000 shares of - 100%
EUR43 each
Saia-Burgess Controls Kft. Sales and marketing Hungary HUF5.000,000 - 100%
Saia-Burgess Hatvan Kft. Manufactuning Hungary HUF30,000.000 - 100%
Saia-Burgess Ozd Kfi Manufacturing Hungary HUF16.470.000 - 100%
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Principal subsidiaries and associated companies (Conrd)

Place of Effective shareholding
Principal incorporation Issued and by by
Name activities a0d operation paid up capital tompany subsidiary
SUBSIDIARIES
Saia-Burgess Monastir C.5. Manufacturing Tunisia 1,800 shares of - 100%
TND20 each
Saia-Burgess USA, Inc. Sales and marketing United States 1,000 shares of - 100%
of America USH! each
Saia-Burgess Inc. Manufacturing. R&D,  United States 5,000 shares of - 100%
sales and marketing of America 1US80.01 each
Saia-Burgess Automotive Inc. R&D, manufacturing, ~ United States 2,000 shares of - 100%
sales and marketing of America US$500 each
Saia-Burgess Automotive Actuatars R&D, manufacturing,  United States 300,000 common - 100%
Inc. sales and marketing of America stocks issued with ae
par valug
Saia-Burgess Canada Co. Inc. Sates and marketing Canada 80,000 shares of - 100%
CANSI each
Saia-Burgess Guangzhou Limited * Mamfacturing China US§2,350,000 - 100%
Saia-Burgess (China) Limited * Manufacturing China US$1,382,570 - 100%
Saia-Burgess (HK) Limited Sales and marketing Hong Kong 2 shares of - 100%
HES$10 each
Shanghai Ri Yorg-JEA Manufacturing China US$17,000,000 - 60%
Gate Electric Co., Ltd. !
Teknik Development Inc, Licensing British Virgin 15,000 shares of 100% -
Islands US$I each
Trade Triumph Group Limited lavestment holding British Virgin 100 shares of - 100%
Islands US$1 each
Triowell Lid. Property holding British Virgin 50,000 shares of - 100%
Islands US$1 cach

*  Wholly owned foreign enterprises
*  Equity joint ventures
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44. Principal subsidiaries and associated companies (Con: d)

Place of Effective shareholding
Principal incorporation [ssued and by by
Name activifies and operation paid up capital company subsidiary
SUBSIDIARIES
¥ Metor (China) Limited Manufacturing and China 1J$5500,000 - 100%
sales
V Motor Limited Trading and research Hong Kong 1 share of - 100%
and development HKS$1 each
Wing Fat Loong Metal (Asia) Trading Hong Kong 1 share of - 100%
Limited HKSI each
ASSOCIATED COMPANIES
FG Microdesign S.r.l. Manufacturing Italy 100,000 shares of - 40%
EUR0.52 each
Burgess Defond Limited Manufacturing Hong Kong 100.000 shares of - 25%
HK$! each
Shenzhen SMART Micromotor Manufacturing China USS2,100.000 - 49%
Co..Led.
MiCS MicroChemical Systems SA R&D, sales and Switzerland CHF4.843,308 - 35%
marketing
IP Trading GesmbH Sales and marketing Austria EUR33.000 - %%
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JOHNSON ELECTRIC GROUP
TEN-YEAR SUMMARY

1998 1999 2000
US$000 US$ 000 Us$ 000
Consolidated Profit and Loss Account
Turnover 362,771 367,557 677,144
Profit before income tax 88,159 111,207 155,268
Income tax expenses (7,312) (5.560) (22,172)
Minority intcrests - - 9
Profit attributable to shareholders 80,847 105,647 133,087
Consolidated Balance Sheet
Property, plant and equipment 185,692 180,277 246,724
[nvestment properties - - -
Leasehold land and land use rights - - -
Intangibles - - -
Jointly controlled entities - - 11,668
Associated companies - - 9,172
Deferred income tax assets - - 3,116
Investment securities/Available-for-sale financial assets 4,793 5,770 7,641
Long term other financial assets at fair value
through profit or foss - - -
Investment in finance lcases 35,038 33,188 27,901
Net current assets 272,967 358,787 139,141
Employment of funds 498,490 578,022 445,363
Share capital 5,925 5,925 5,925
Reserves 461,522 525,540 376,761
Proposed dividends 14,814 29,627 33,620
Minority interests - - 5
Total equity 482,261 561,092 416,311
Long term loans/other provisions 3,999 3,000 16,884
Long term derivative financial instruments - - -
Deferred income tax liabilities 12,230 13,930 12,168
Funds employed 498,490 578,022 445,363
Basic carnings per share (US cents) * 2.20 2.88 3.62
Fully diluted earnings per share (US cents) N/A N/A N/A
Dividend per share (US cents) 4.5 4.5 4.9
Sharcholders® funds per share (US cents) * 13.1 15.3 11.3

*  Restated 1o reflect subdivision of each of the issued and unissued shares into four subdivided shares on 14th August 2000.
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TEN -YEAR SUMMARY

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
(Restated)
USS 000 US$ 000 USS 000 USS 000 LSS 000 USS 000 USS'000
790,190 773,660 955,339 1,050,707 1,143,783 1,526,328 2,086,028
136,171 125.936 174.202 134.533 156.446 116,251 135,935
9431 (15,289) (24.788) (17.956) (£5,193) (21.884) (22,932)
{2) (2) 2) - (24) (377) (3,307)
145.600 110,645 149,412 116,577 141,229 93.990 109,696
234287 235,031 248,501 256,952 244115 378,543 390,019
- - - - 8.356 17.202 24,208

— — — - 27.877 25,3535 24,805

— 22,583 22,421 20,074 43,335 631,592 667,154
19,506 18.439 18.882 16.104 14,921 16.494 -
7.361 3,709 40 13,163 3,193 2.271 2,364
28,513 32,778 20,188 33,731 30,689 32.662 30,918
11,136 9.480 7.336 7.371 5818 5,294 5,131
- - - - - - 4,140
20,522 13.844 8.538 5.599 426 152 -
207.156 246,454 366,591 420,786 483,572 400,400 512,475
528,481 582.318 701,497 774.280 862.302 1,509,965 1,661,214
5925 5,925 5.925 5,925 ®3,780 81,412 82,062
459 001 513.434 617,303 685.802 682.669 724.093 818,568
34,383 34383 42,390 42,390 51,810 40,035 40,035
5 5 4 5 [.108 10,264 22,725
499314 553,747 665,622 734,122 819,367 855.804 963,390
18,243 17,823 20,489 19.065 19.667 566,092 591,017
- — - - - - 19,272
10,924 10,748 15,386 21,093 23,268 88,069 87.535
528.48| SR2.318 701,497 774,280 862,302 1,509,965 1.661,214
3496 3.01 4.07 317 3.84 2.56 2,99
N/A N/A 4.07 3.17 3.84 2.56 2.99

1.3 1.3 1.7 1.7 20 1.7 1.7

13.6 5.1 18.1 20.0 22.3 233 26.2
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JOHNSON ELECTRIC HOLDINGS LIMITED
Johnsen Building, 6-22 Dai Shun Street

Tai Po Industrial Estate

Tai Po, New Territories, Hong Kong

Tel : {852) 2663 6688
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THIS CIRCULAR 1S IMPORTANT AND
REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION

If you are in doubt as to any aspect of this document or as to the action to be taken, you should consult
a stockbroker or other registered dealer in securities, bank manager, solicitor, professional accountant or
other professional adviser.

If you have sold all your shares of Johnson Electric Holdings Limited, you should hand this document

to the purchaser or to the bank, stockbroker or other agent through whom the sale was effected for
transmission to the purchaser.

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the contents of this circular,
makes no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever

for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this
circular.

(& JOHNSON
& ELECTRIC

Johnson Electric Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in Bermuda with fimited liability}

(Stock code: 179) I !
- e L)
RN
PROPOSALS FOR T T
RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTFORS, > ,_::1
GENERAL MANDATES oy 32
TO ISSUE SHARES AND REPURCHASE SHARES - =
AND ‘

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

A notice convening the Annual General Meeting of Johnson Electric Holdings Limited to be held at
JW Marriott Ballroom, Level 3, JW Marriott Hotel Hong Kong, Pacific Place, 88 Queensway, Hong
Kong on 30th July 2007 at 11:30 am 1s set out on pages 12 to 15 of this circular. Whether or not you
are able to attend the meeting, please complete and return the proxy form in accordance with the
instructions printed thereon to the Hong Kong Head Office of the Company at Johnson Building,
6-22 Dai Shun Street, Tai Po Industrial Estate, Tai Po, N.T., Hong Kong as soon as possible but in
any event not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for the holding of the meeting or any
adjourned mecting. Completion of the proxy form will not preclude Shareholders from attending
and voting at the meeting in person should they so wish.

28th June 2007
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DEFINITIONS

In this circular and the appendices, unless the context requires otherwise, the following expressions have the

Jollowing meanings:

TAGM™

“associates”

“Board”

“Bye-Laws”

“Company”

“connected persons”

“Directors”

"GI’OUp”

“Issue Mandate™

“Latest Practicable Date™

“Listing Rules”

“Notice of AGM”

“Repurchase Mandate”

“Repurchase Proposal”

the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at JW Marriott
Ballroom, Level 3, JW Marriott Hotel Hong Kong, Pacific Place, 88
Queensway, Hong Kong on 30th July 2007 at 11:30 am, notice of which
is set out on pages 12 to 15 of this circular, or any adjournment thereof
has the meaning ascribed thereto in the Listing Rules

the board of Directors or a duly authorised committee thercof

the Bye-Laws of the Company

Johnson Electric Holdings Limited, an exempted company incorporated
in Bermuda with limited liability, the shares of which arc listed on the
Stock Exchange

has the meaning ascribed thereto in the Listing Rules

the directors of the Company

the Company and its subsidiaries

the proposed ordinary resolution as referred 1o in resolution no. 7 of the
Notice of AGM

18th June 2007, being the latest practicable date prior to the printing of
this circular for ascertaining certain information contained in this circular

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange, as
amended from time to time

the notice of the AGM set out on pages 12 to 15 of this circular

the proposed ordinary resolution as referred to in resolution no. § of the
Notice of AGM

the proposal to give a gencral mandate to the Directors to exercise the
powers of the Company for repurchase during the period as set out in
the Repurchase Mandate Shares up to a maximum of 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company at the date of the Repurchase Mandate




“Repurchase Rules”

“SFO”

“Shareholder(s)”

“Share(s)”

“Stock Exchange”

“Takeovers Code”

“HK$”

“Uss”

“%n

the relevant rules set out in the Listing Rules to regulate repurchase by
companies, with a primary listing on the Stock Exchange, of their own
securities on the Stock Exchange

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong)

registered holders of the Share(s) in issue

share(s) of HK$0.0125 each in the share capital of the Company

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers

Hong Koeng dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States of America

per cent.



LETTER FROM THE BOARD

Johnson Electric Holdings Limited

{Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liabitity)

Board of Directors

* Yik-Chun Koo Wang
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Patrick Shui-Chung Wang s»
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Independent Non-Execurive Director

Hong Kong Head Office

Johnson Building
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22 Victoria Street
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Dear Sir or Madam,

PROPOSAL FOR RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS,
AND GRANT OF GENERAL MANDATES
TO ISSUE SHARES AND REPURCHASE SHARES

INTRODUCTION

The purpose of this circular is to give you notice of the AGM, and provide you with information on
matters to be dealt with at the AGM: (i) re-election of Directors; (i) grant of general mandate to
issue Shares; and (iii) grant of general mandate to repurchase Shares.

RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

According to Bye-Law 109(A) of the Bye-Laws, Mrs. Laura May-Lung Cha, Mr. Peter Kin-Chung
Wang and Mr. Oscar de Paula Bernardes Neto will retire by rotation at the AGM and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election.

Their requisite details are set out in Appendix I to this circular.
GENERAL MANDATES TO ISSUE SHARES AND REPURCHASE SHARES

On 20th July 2006 a general and unconditional mandate was given to the Directors to issue, allot
and dispose of additional shares of the Company up to a limit of 5% of the aggregate nominal
amount of the issued share capital of the Company as at that date.

Such general mandate will cease to be effective at the conclusion of the AGM. The Directors believe
that the renewal of the general mandate is in the interest of the Company and Shareholders and
accordingly, the Issue Mandate will be sought from Shareholders at the AGM to authorise the
Directors to issue, allot and dispose of additional shares of the Company up to 5% of the aggregate
nominal amount of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of the passing of the
relevant resolution. Based on the 3,673,788,920 Shares in issue at the Latest Practicable Date (and
assuming that there is no change in respect of the issued share capital of the Company after the
Latest Practicable Date and up to the passing of the relevant resolution), the Company will therefore
be allowed under the Issue Mandate to issue a maximum of 183,689,446 Shares.

On 20th July 2006 a general and unconditional mandate was also given to the Directors to exercise
the powers of the Company to repurchase Shares up to 10% of the aggregate nominal amount of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of passing the relevant resolution. Such mandate
will lapse at the conclusion of the forthcoming AGM. It is therefore proposed to seek your approval
of an ordinary resolution to be proposed at the AGM granting the Repurchase Mandate to the
Directors. Based on the 3,673,788,920 Shares in issue at the Latest Practicable Date (and assuming
that there is no change in respect of the issued share capital of the Company after the Latest
Practicable Date and up to the passing of the relevant resolution), the maximum number of Shares
which may be repurchased pursuant to the Repurchase Mandate will be 367,378,892 Shares. In
accordance with the Repurchase Rules, the Company is required to send to Shareholders an
explanatory statement containing information reasonably necessary to enable Shareholders to make
an informed decision on whether to vote for or against the resolution to approve the purchase by the
Company of its own shares. This explanatory statement is set out in Appendix I to this circular.



Conditional upon the passing of the Resolutions 7 and 8, an ordinary resolution to authorise the
Directors to exercise the powers to issue, allot and dispose of additional Shares of the Company
under the Issue Mandate in respect of the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital in the
Company repurchased by the Company will also be proposed for approval by Shareholders at the
AGM.

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Notice of AGM, which contains resclutions in respect of the re-election of directors, Issuc
Mandate and Repurchase Mandate is set out on pages 12 to 15 of this circular.

There is enclosed a form of proxy for use at the AGM. Whether or not you intend to be present at
the AGM, you are requested to complete the form of proxy and return it to the Hong Kong Head
Office of the Company in accordance with the instructions printed thereon not less than 48 hours
before the time fixed for holding the AGM. The completion and return of the form of the proxy will
not prevent you from attending and voting in person at the AGM should you so wish.

Shareholders’ rights to demand a poll on the proposed resolutions at the AGM are set out in
Appendix Il to this circular.

RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

This circular includes particulars given in compliance with the Listing Rules for the purpose of
giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors collectively and individually accept
full responsibility for the accuracy of the information contained in this circular and confirm, having
made all reasonable enquiries, that to the best of their knowledge and belief, there are no other facts
the omission of which would make any statement herein misleading.

RECOMMENDATIONS
The Directors believe that the resolutions set out in the Notice of AGM are in the best interests of

the Company, the Group and the Shareholders as a whole. Accordingly, the Directors recommend
the Shareholders to vote in favour of the resolutions to be proposed at the AGM.

Yours faithfully,

On behalf of the Board
Patrick Shui-Chung Wang
Chairman and Chief Executive

Hong Kong, 28th June 2007




APPENDIX 1 DETAILS OF DIRECTORS OFFERING THEMSELVES FOR RE-ELECTION

The following are the particulars of the Directors proposed to be re-clected at the AGM:

Laura May-Lung Cha Jr
Independent Non-Executive Director
Member of Audit Committee

Laura May-Lung Cha, age 57, has been an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company since 2004. She
obtained a BA degree from the University of Wisconsin and a JD degree from the University of Santa Clara. She
practiced as an attorney in the 1980’s in San Francisco and Hong Kong. She was the Deputy Chairman of the
Securities and Futures Commission, a Vice-Chairman of the China Securities Regulatory Commission and a
member of the Committee of 100 in US. Mrs. Cha is currently a Non-Official Member of the Executive Council
of the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, Vice Chairman of the International Advisory
Council of the China Securities Regulatory Commission, Non-Executive Deputy Chairman of The Hongkong and
Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited, a non-executive director of Bank of Communications and an independent
non-executive director of Hong Kong Exchange and Clearing Limited, Baoshan Iron and Steel Company Limited
and Tata Consultancy Services Limited. She is also Chairman of the Hong Kong University Grants Committee,
Chairman of the Advisory Committee on Corruption of the Independent Commission Against Corruption in Hong
Kong, a member of the Advisory Board of the Millstein Center of Corporate Governance and Performance at the
Yale University, a Sentor Advisor to The Investor AB Group in Sweden and a member of the International Council
of The Asia Society. Mrs. Cha has not held any directorship in other public companies during the last three years.

Mrs. Cha has not entered into any service contract with the Company. She was appointed for a term of two years
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at an annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with
the Bye-Laws. The director’s fee is determined by Remuneration Committee with reference to remuneration
benchmark in the industry and the prevailing market trends. Mrs. Cha received a director’s fee of US$36,410 for
the year ended 3 1st March 2007.

Mrs. Cha is not connected with any other director, the senior management or any substantial or controlling
shareholder of the Company, nor does she have any interest in the Shares of the Company which is required to be
disclosed pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other information that is required to be disclosed pursvant to Rule 13.51(2) of
the Listing Rules nor are there other matters that need to be brought to the attention of the Shareholders in respect

of her re-election.

Peter Kin-Chung Wang
Non-Executive Director

Peter Kin-Chung Wang, age 53, has been a Non-Executive Director of the Company since 1982, He obtained a
BSc degree in Industrial Engineering from Purdue University and an MBA degree from Boston University. He is
the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Tristate Holdings Limited and the Chairman and Managing Director
of Hua Thai Manufacturing Public Company Limited. He is the Chairman of the Hong Kong Garment Manufacturers
Association Ltd., a director of the Textile Council of Hong Kong Limited and The Federation of Hong Kong




Garment Manufacturers, a member of the Executive Committee of the Hong Kong Shippers’ Council, a Court
Member of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and a member of the Textile and Garment Subsector of the
Election Committee for electing the Chief Executive of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region in 2007.
He has not held any directorship in other public companies during the last three years.

Mr. Wang has not ¢ntered into any service contract with the Company, but he is subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at an annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with the Bye-Laws. The director’s
emolument is determined by Remuneration Committee with reference 1o his experiences, as well as remuneration
benchmark in the industry and the prevailing market trends. Mr. Wang received a director’s emolument of
JS5$25.000 for the year ended 3 st March 2007.

Mr. Wang 1s a son of Ms. Yik-Chun Koo Wang, the Honorary Chairman; a brother of Dr. Patrick Shui-Chung
Wang, the Chairman and Chief Executive, Ms. Winnie Wing-Yee Wang, the Vice-Chairman and Mr. Richard
Li-Chung Wang, the Executive Direcior. Mr. Wang does not have any interest in the Shares of the Company which
is required to be disclosed pursuant to Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other information that ts required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51(2) of
the Listing Rules nor are there other matters that need to be brought to the attention of the Shareholders in respect
of his re-election.

Oscar de Paula Bernardes Neto
Independent Non-Executive Director

Member of Remuneration Committee

Oscar de Paula Bernardes Neto, age 60, has been an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company since
2003. He obtained a degree in Chemical Engineering from the Federal University of Rio de Janeiro-Brazil. He
was a Senior Partner of Booz Allen & Hamilton and Chief Executive Officer of Bunge International. Mr.
Bernardes is currently a partner of Integra Associados and a Director of Delphi Corporation, Metaldrgica Gerdau
S.A., Gerdau S.A., Companhia Suzano de Papel e Celulose, Satipel S.A., Localiza and Sio Paulo Alpargatas S.A.
He is also a member of the Advisory Boards of Bunge Brasil, RBS, Alcoa Brasil and Veirano Associados. Mr.
Bernardes has not held any directorship in other public companies during the last three years.

Mr. Bernardes has not entered into any service contract with the Company. He was appointed for a term of two
years subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at an annual general meeting of the Company in accordance
with the Bye-Laws. The director’s fee is determined by Remuneration Committee with reference to remuneration
benchmark in the industry and the prevailing market trends. Mr. Bernardes received a director’s fee of USS33,800
for the year ended 3ist March 2007,

Mr. Bernardes is not connected with any other director, the senior management or any substantial or controlling
shareholder of the Company, nor does he have any interest in the Shares of the Company which is required to be

disclosed pursuant to Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other information that is required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51(2) of
the Listing Rules nor are there other matters that need to be brought to the attention of the Shareholders in respect
of his re-election.




APPENDIX II EXPLANATORY STATEMENT ON REPURCHASE MANDATE

The following is the Explanatory Statement required to be sent to Shareholders under the Listing Rules in
connection with the proposed Repurchase Mandate to be granted to the Directors of the Company.

SHARE CAPITAL
As at the Latest Practicable Date, the issued share capital of the Company comprised 3,673,788,920 Shares.

Exercise in full of the Repurchase Mandate, on the basis that no further Shares are issued or repurchased prior to
the date of the AGM, would accordingly result in up to 367,378,892 Shares being repurchased by the Company
during the course of the period ending on the earliest of the date of the AGM in 2008, the date by which the next
AGM of the Company is required to be held by law and the date upon which such authority is revoked or varied.

REASONS FOR REPURCHASE

The Directors believe that the Repurchase Proposal is in the best interests of the Company and its Shareholders.
Such purchases may, depending on market conditions and funding arrangements at the time, lead to an enhancement
of the net assets and/or earnings per share of the Company and will only be made when the Directors believe that
such a purchase will benefit the Company and its Shareholders.

FUNDING OF REPURCHASES

Pursuant to the Repurchase Mandate repurchases would be funded entirely trom the Company’s available cash
flow or working capital facilities which will be funds legally available for the purpose in accordance with its
Memorandum of Association and Bye-Laws and the laws of Bermuda.

The Company is empowered by its Memorandum of Association and Bye-Laws to repurchase its Shares and
Bermuda law provides that the amount of capital repaid in connection with a share repurchase may only be paid
out of the capital paid up on the relevant Shares, or from the profits that would otherwise be available for
distribution by way of dividend, or from the proceeds of a new issue of shares made for the purpose. The amount
of premium payable on redemption may only be paid out of either the profits that would otherwise be available
for distribution by way of dividend or out of the Company’s share premium account or contributed surplus
account.

In the event that the Repurchase Mandate is approved by Shareholders. the Directors have no immediate plans to
exercise the authority conferred upon them in respect of the repurchase by the Company of its own Shares.
However, the Directors wish to obtain the necessary authority in order to give themselves flexibility to engage in
share repurchases should they consider it to be in the best interests of the Company, although the circumstances in
which this may arise cannot yet be foreseen.

If, which is not presently contemplated, the Company was to repurchase its Shares up to the permitted maximum
of 10% of its existing issued share capital as at the Latest Practicable Date immediately upon the general mandate
being approved by Shareholders, it is likely that there would be a material adverse impact on the working capital
position or gearing position of the Group in comparison to the position shown, as at 31st March 2007, in the
Group’s audited consolidated accounts. However, the Directors do not propose to use their authority to make any
repurchases which would have a material adverse impact on the working capital or gearing position of the Group
given the financial position of the Group at the time of the relevant repurchases, unless the Directors determine
that such repurchases were, taking account of all relevant factors, in the best interests of the Company and its
Shareholders. '




SHARE PRICES

The highest and lowest prices at which the Shares have traded on the Stock Exchange in each of the previous
twelve months were as follows:

Highest Lowest Highest Lowest

HKS$ HKS HKS HKS

June 2006 6.05 5.30 December 2006 6.24 330
July 2006 5.75 542 January 2007 5.94 5.25
August 2006 5.80 5.12 February 2007 6.13 5.55
September 2006 7.05 5.12 March 2007 5.76 3.17
October 2006 6.87 6.01 Aprif 2007 5.23 4.70
November 2006 6.50 375 May 2007 4.90 4.50

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

None of the Directors, or to the best of their knowledge, having made all reasonable enquirics, their associates.
have any present intention if the Repurchase Mandate is approved and exercised to sell any Shares (o the
Company or its subsidiaries.

The Directors have undertaken to the Stock Exchange that, so far as the same may be applicable, they will
exercise the Repurchase Mandate in accordance with the Listing Rules and the applicable laws of Bermuda.

As at the Latest Practicable Date. the trustees of various trusts associated with the Wang family hold directly or
indirectly 59.56% of the issued share capital of the Company. As at that date. 40.44% of the issued share capital
of the Company was in the hands of the public.

If, which is not presently contemplated, the Company was to repurchase Shares up to the permitted maximum of
10% of its existing issued share capital as at the Latest Practicable Date from the public shareholding, the
percentage shareholding of the various Wang family trusts would increase to 66.18%. To the best knowledge of
the Directors. these situations would not give rise to any consequences under the Takeovers Code and at least 25%
of the issued share capital of the Company would still remain in the public hands.

No other connected persons have notified the Company that they have a present intention to sell Shares to the
Company. or have undertaken not to do so. if the Repurchase Mandate is approved and exercised.

SHARE PURCHASE MADE BY THE COMPANY

The Company has not purchased any Shares (whether on the Stock Exchange or otherwise) in the six months
preceding the date of this document.




APPENDIX Il RIGHT TO DEMAND A POLL

Bye-Law 78 of the Bye-Laws sets out the procedures by which Shareholders may demand a poll:

At any general meeting a resolution put to the vote of the meeting shall be decided on a show of hands
unless a poll is (before or on the declaration of the result of the show of hands or on the withdrawal of
any other demand for a poll} demanded:

(i) by the Chairman of the Meeting; or

(ii) by at least three members present in person or by duly authorised corporate representative or by
proxy for the time being entitled to vote at the meeting; or

(iit) by any member or members present in person or by duly authorised corporate representative or by
proxy and representing not less than one-tenth of the total voting rights of all the members having
the right to vote at the meeting; or

(iv) by a member or members present in person or by duly authorised corporate representative or by
proxy and holding shares in the Company conferring a right to vote at the meeting being shares
on which an aggregate sum has been paid up equal to not less than one-tenth of the total sum paid
up on all the shares conferring that right.

Unless a poll be so demanded and not withdrawn, a declaration by the Chairman that a resolution has on
a show of hands been carried or carried unanimously, or by a particular majority, or lost, and an entry to
that effect in the book containing the minutes of the proceedings of the Company shall be conclusive
evidence of the fact without proof of the number or proportion of the votes recorded in favour or against
such resolution,
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of Johnson Electric Holdings Limited (the
“Company’™) will be held at JW Marriott Ballroom, Level 3, JW Marriott Hotel Hong Kong, Pacific
Place, 88 Queensway, Hong Kong on Monday, 30th July 2007 at 11:30 am for the following purposes:

1. To receive and adopt the Audited Consolidated Accounts and the Reports of the Directors and
of the Auditors for the vear ended 31st March 2007,

2. To declare a final dividend in respect of the year ended 31st March 2007;
3. To re-clect the following Directors:
(a) Mrs. Laura May-Lung Cha as an independent non-executive director;
(b) Mr. Peter Kin-Chung Wang as an independent non-executive director;
(¢} Mr. Oscar de Paula Bernardes Neto as an independent non-executive director;
4. To confirm the fees of Directors;
5. To re-appoint Auditors and to authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration;
6. As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass the following as an Ordinary Resolution:

“THAT the number of Directors of the Company be fixed at 15 and that the Directors be
authorized to elect or appoint additional directors up to the maximum of 5.7,

7. As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass the following as an Ordinary Resolution:
“THAT:

(a) subject to paragraph (c), the exercise by the Directors of the Company during the relevant
period of all the powers of the Company to issue, allot and dispose of additional shares in
the capital of the Company and to make or grant offers, agreements and options which
would or might require the exercise of such powers be and is hereby generally and
unconditionally approved;

(b} the approval in paragraph (a) shall authorize the Directors of the Company during the
relevant period to make or grant offers, agreements and options which would or might
require the exercise of such power after the end of the relevant period;




(c) the aggregate nominal amount of share capital of the Company allotted or agreed
conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted (whether pursuant to an option or otherwise)
by the Directors of the Company pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a), otherwise than
pursuant to

(i) a Rights Issue; or

(ii) the exercise of options granted under the Company’s Share Option Scheme,

shall not exceed the aggregate of 5 per cent. of the aggregate nominal amount of the share
capital of the Company in issue on the date of the passing of this Resolution and the said
approval shall be limited accordingly; and

(d) for the purposes of this Resolution:

“relevant period” means the period from the passing of this Resolution until whichever is
the earliest of

(i) the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company;

(i1} the expiration of the period within which the next Annual General Meeting of the
Company is required by the Bye-Laws of the Company or any applicable law of
Bermuda to be held; and

(iii) the revocation or variation of this Resolution by an ordinary resolution of the
Shareholders of the Company in General Meeting; and

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares or other securities to holders of shares of the
Company on the register on a fixed record date in proportion to their then holdings of
such shares (subject to such exclusions or other arrangements as the Directors of the
Company may deem necessary or expedient in relation to fractional entitlements or having
regard to any restrictions or obligations under the laws of, or the requirements of any
recognised regulatory body or any stock exchange in, any territory outside Hong Kong).”;

8. As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass the following as an Ordinary Resolution:
“THAT:
(a) the exercise by the Directors during the relevant period of all powers of the Company to

purchase its own shares, subject to and in accordance with all applicable laws, be and is
hereby generally and unconditionally approved;

I3



(b) the aggregate nominal amount of shares of the Company which may be purchased on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited or any other stock exchange recognised for this
purpose by the Sccurities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong and The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited under the Hong Kong Code on Share Repurchases by the Company
pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a) during the relevant period, shall be no more than
10 per cent. of the aggregate nominal amount of the existing issued share capital of the
Company, at the date of the passing of this Resolution, and the authority pursuant to
paragraph (a) shall be limited accordingly;

(c) for the purposes of this Resolution, “relevant period” means the period from the passing
of this Resolution until whichever is the earliest of

(1) the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company;

(i1) the expiration of the period within which the next Annual General Meeting of the
Company 1s required by the Bye-Laws of the Company or any applicable law of
Bermuda to be held; and

(11) the revocation or variation of this Resolution by an ordinary resolution of the
Shareholders of the Company in General Meeting.”;

9. As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass the following as an Ordinary Resolution:

“THAT conditional upon the passing of Ordinary Resolutions numbered 7 and 8 as set out in
the Notice convening this meeting, the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital which
may be allotted or agreed conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted by the Directors of
the Company pursuant to such general mandate shall be added by an amount representing the
aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the Company repurchased by the Company
under the authority granted by the resolution set out as Resolution No. 8 in the notice convening
this meeting, provided that such additional amount shall not exceed 10 per cent. of the aggregate
nominal amount of the share capital of the Company in issue as at the date of the passing of
this Resolution.”.

By order of the Board

Susan Chee-Lan Yip
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 28th June 2007




Notes:

A Shareholder entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend and,
on a poll, vote instead of him. A proxy need not also be a Shareholder of the Company. A proxy
form is enclosed. Completion and return of the proxy form will not preclude a Shareholder from
attending and voting in person.

To be valid, the instrument appointing a proxy and the power of attorney or other authorty, if
any, under which it is signed or a notarially certified copy of that power or authority shall be
deposited at the Hong Kong Head Office of the Company at Johnson Building, 6-22 Dai Shun
Street, Tai Po Industrial Estate, Tai Po, N.T., Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before the time
appointed for holding of the Meeting.

The transfer books and the register of members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday,
25th July 2007 to Monday, 30th July 2007, both dates inclusive, during which no transfer of
shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all transfers of shares
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong (not the Registrar in Bermuda) for
registration not later than 430 pm on Tuesday, 24th July 2007.

As at the date of this circular, the Board of Directors of the Company consists of:

Yik-Chun Koo Wang Honorary Chairman

Patrick Shui-Chung Wang Chairman and Chief Executive
Winnie Wing-Yee Wang Vice-Chairman

Richard Li-Chung Wang Executive Director

Peter Stuart Allenby Edwards Independent Non-Executive Director
Patrick Blackwell Paul fndependent Non-Executive Director
Michael John Enright Independent Non-Executive Director
Laura May-Lung Cha Independent Non-Executive Director
Peter Kin-Chung Wang Non-Executive Director

Oscar de Paula Bernardes Neto Independent Non-Executive Director
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P B . aNOTIFICATION
‘ oL NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL, MEETING

~Am announccmenl contammg details of the matter is avallnblc for, vnewmg on Ii o
) " the website. of Hong Kong Exchange snd Clearing Limited website, nl. N

-www.hkex.com;hk under “Latest Listed Compnmes Informauon and at the o
*_website of Johnson Electric ‘Holdings Limited at www Jnhnsonclcctnc com/ ..

:mcstnrslpdleonce%lOof%ZOAGM%ZD—%ZOEng pdf.” .- ! ,- e :

I i “This notification mcrcly scrves. to advise invéstors:of the matlcr and of the
pubﬁcatlon of the-announcement-on the above websites! Thix notification . ¥
“does not contain information upon which an investment decision rhould be--
based and should not be relied upon by investors Jor such purpau lnveston .
shouid rcfer to the annovncement for details of the matter, - - -+ .* . -

o
Y

S The nnnounccmem is. available for inspection to the- publlc at no charge at .
.Johnson Buuldmg. & = 22 Dai Shun Street, Tai Po Industrial Estate, Tai Po, -
- N.T:, Hong Keng from 9:00 a.m. to 5:30 p.m., Mondays to Fridays {excluding.
1. publ.:c hohdays) from today -uatil 301h Ju!y 2007 Coplc: w'“ll be provnded K

upon request at no cost.

o
By Order of the Board '
1 . i . ‘Susan Chee-Lan Yip -
{ [ co L " . . Company Secretary .

" Hong Kong, 27th june 2007 ' P L. e e
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JOHNSON ELECTRIC HOLDINGS LIMITED

(lncarparaléd in Bermuda with limited liability)

(Stock Code: 179)
TRADING UPDATE

This aanouncement is made pursuant to Rule 13.09 ‘of the Listing Rules. Johnsen Electric Holdings Limitéd
announces details of information which may be covered in discussions with investars and securities analysts
prior to its annual results announcement for the financial year ended 31st March 2007, !

2007 :

Johnson Electri¢ Holdings Limited (“*Johnsen Electric” or “the company™) is scheduled to report its annual results for

* the financial year ending 31st March 2007 on 8th June 2007. Ahead of its annual results announcement {and prior to the

finalisation and audit of the accounts for the said financial year), the company may hotd discussions with shareholders,
investors, and securitics analysts in the normal course of its business that may cover aspects of Johnson Electric’s
performance for the year, : : !

In order 10 provide greater disclosure to shareholders and potential investors and 1o ensure they alt receive equal access
to the same information at the same time, this performance update statement provides details of the information that
may be covered in those discussions. ’ ’

'~ SALES OVERVIEW

. 4
Based on its performance to date, Johnson Electric expects total Group sales for the twelve months ending 3131 March
2007 1o increase by approximately 36% over the prior financial year. This increase is primarily duc 1o the full year
sales contributions of Snia-Burgess Electronics Holding AG and Parlex Corporation which were acquired in November,
2005. Excluding the effects of acquisitions, most of the Group’s business units have been recording flat to moderate
year-on-year growth rates in a relatively challenging market environment.

FACTORS IMPACTING GROSS MARGINS

As detailed in Johnson Electric’s half-year results announcement in December 2006, the profitability of the Group

continues to be affected by high volatility in raw material prices _ particularly copper and steel which together
represent the largest portion of the Group's materials purchases. '

-Lower avérage steel prices compared to the prior year have had n positive effect on’the business. Other factiors that have

bad a beneficial impact on gross profitability are increased average selling prices for certain moter products, and the
strength of the Euro currency against the US Dollar which has benefited the company's Automotive Products Group in
particular. The company also continues to make progress in improving its production ¢fficiency through a veriety of -
operational initjatives including in-sourcing the production of selected components. '

Offsetting the above positive factors, the company has been experiencing the negative effects of hi'ghcr' average copper

_prices compared to the prior year, as well as significant increases in PRC labour rates and the strengthening of the .

Rénminbi currency. .

“The ¢ombination of the above factors, as well as others, is presently expected to résult in a slight improvement in the b

company’s gross margins compared 10 the prior year. T
Vo

IMPACT OF BUSINESS RESTRUCTURING AND RECENT ACQUISITIONS ON NET EARNINGS®

The acquisitions of Saia-Burgess Electronics and Parlex have resulted in a number of restructuring initiatives designed
to improve the long-term competitive position of these businesses and the cxpanded Johnson Electric Group. The
integration of Saia-Burgess is progressing according to pian with particular attention being focused on improving the
performance of its switches operations. On the other hand; Parlex, a flexible printed circuit board manufacturer, has not
performed as well as expected, necessitating o strengthening of management processes and controls, :

For the financial year ended 31st March 2007, the Group expects to report total restructuring charges and provisions
associated with acquisitions, as well as certain other one-time restructuring charges and provisions related to its global,
manufacturing operations, of approximately US$13 million. } .

Based on performance trends and information available to date and the combined effects of a full year contribution
from recently acquired businesses (including associated amortization and financing costs), one-time restructuring charges,
and a slightly higher effective tax rate, it is anticipated that Johnson ‘Electric's profit attributable to shareholders for the
ﬁnancinll year ending 31st March 2007 will increase by between 8% and 18% compared to the preceding financial year.

i . .
Johnson Eiectric is scheduled to report its annual results for the financial year ending 31st March 2007 on 8th June

s H . '
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS ' '

This announcement is made pursuant to Rule 13.09 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities. It may contain *

. certain forward-looking statements with respect to the business and financial performance of the company. These
forward-looking statements represent the company’s expectations or beliefs, as well as assumptions concerning future

events and involve known and unknown risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results, performance or cvents to
differ materiatly from those expressed or implied-in such statements. : -

As at the date of this announcement, the board of directors of the company comprises Parrick Shui-Chung Wang, Winnie
Wirig-Yee Wang, Richard Li-Chung Wang, being the Executive Directors, and Yik-Chun Koo Wang, Peter Kin-Chung
Wang, being the Non-executive Directors, and Peter Stuari Allenby Edwards, Patrick Blackwell Paul, Mickael John
Enright, Laura May-Lung Cha and Oscar De Paula'Bernardes Neto, being the Independent Non-executive Directors.

By Order of the Board
Johnson Electric Holdings Limited
) Patrick Shui-Chung Wang
‘ . ’ Chairman and Chief Executive

29th March 2007
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BEST AVAILABLE COpy

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Overview

Total sales for the year were USS2,087 million, an increase of 37% over last year. This increase is primarily due to the
in¢lusion of a full twelve months” sales of Saia-Burgess and Parlex which were acquired in November 2003, together with the

consolidation of Shanghai Ri Yong in which the Group increased its shareholding in April 2006 to convert this former joint
venture 1ntw 1 majority held iubsidiary.

The Group.reported profit attributable 1o equity hotders of USS109.7 million, or 2,99 US cents per share for the year ended

3lst March 2007, compared to profit attributable to equity holders of US$94.0 millian or 2.56 US cents per share for last veas
This represents an increase of 16.7%.

Cost of Sules and Gross Profit
The Group's groas profit was US$312.2 million, which at 24.5% of sales overall ig in line with last year.

The profitability of the Group comtinued to be affr.cted'by relatively high and volatile raw muterial prices, The signiﬁcnnf '

increase in copper prices throughout the year was oniy partistly offset by decreased steel prices. Margins h.m: also been
reduced by increases in PRC labour rates and the strengthening of the Renminbi against the US dollar:

The adverse margin impacts noted above were largely offset by a strong Euro, relative to the US dollar, which benefited’

principally our European automotive business. We also saw some margin enhancement following operational initiatives such as

in-sourcing the production of selected components and the moving of some production to our lower cost manufacturing centres - -

in China and Eastern Europe.

Selling and Administrative Expenses (“SG&A™

SG&A expenses increased 38.4% to US$348.0 million, which at 16.7% of overall sales is in line with lasl year. The SG&A \

included the full year consolidation for Saiz-Burgess, Parlex and Shanghai Ri Yoag. We have a number of initiatives underway
to streamline processes and structures, especially in Eurape, in order 10 progressively reduce the cost of 3G&A.

Restructuring Costs . .
The Group recorded restructuring costs in the year which totaled US$12.2 million compared to US$17.2 million last year.
These costs related to the shutdawn of plants in Dakian and Guangzhou (PRC}, Cransien (USA) and to the recrganization of

certain manufacturing operations in Europe, The payback for these mv:stmems will contribute to improving margins next year, ©

and beyond. . ) -

Eurnings Before [nterest und Tax (“EBIT") : : "

. EBIT was USS$164.1 million, an increase of US$42.6 million or 33 1% over last year. Excludlng reslrucmnng costs, EB[T was

US5176.3 million, an incrense of US$37.6 million or 27.1%. The Group EBIT (before restructuring costs) decreased from 9.1%
as a percentage of sales last year 1o 8,4% this year, which reflects lower margins on acquired business, continuing pressures in
material and Izbour costs, soft conditions in some of our markets and challcngcs with increasing prices. -

Finance Costs

Interest expense for the year amounted to US$27.9 million compared to US$7.6 million lnsl year. The increase is mamly due to .

the full year finance costs incurred on the bank lud.n! to fund the acquisition of Saia- Burgcss Parlex and the Gruup 3 opcranonnl_ .

requlr:mcms

Tncome Tax Expenses - .
Taxes on profits increased 4.6% to US$22.9 miilion, compared to US$21.9 million last year. The effective tax rate ("ETR") for
the year was 16.9%, compared 1o 18.3% last year. Last yenr included a one off chacge of US$2.6 million which had increased
the effective tax rate by 2.2%, without which the rate would bave been 16.6%. This year a release of tax provisions in Europe
of U554.9 million reduced the effective tax rate by 3.6%. Without this the rate would have been 20.3%. Excluding these two
items. this represents an increase of 3.9% on last year. This is broadly in line with the Group‘s cxpectation of the effect of
including a full year’s tax charge for the Saia- Buroess businesses, which aperate in couatries with higher tax rates relative to
the rest of the Group.

The increase in the underlying' ETR from 16.6% 10 20.5% results mainly from a change in the proportion of taxable pmf‘rt ’

which was earned in higher tax jurisdictions, with a greater share of profits now being earned in Europe.

Profit After Tax . .
Profit after taxation increused 19.7% to US$113.0 miltion.

FINANCIAL CONDITION }
Operating Working Capitul ' :
(including Stocks and Wark in Progress, Trade and Other Receivables, and Trade and Other Pavab!e:)

Operating Working Capital increased by US$35.5 million (9.4%) to US$412.0 million. Of that, US$14.8 million was ‘due 10 I:h:

changes in exchange rates used in translation and an increase of USS7.1 million was due to the acquisition of Shanghai Ri-

Yong. An amount of US$6.6 million was recognised as a goodwill adjustment for the fair vatues of the operating ‘working

sapital relatiag to businesses acquired in.prior finaacial year. After adjusting for the impacts noted above, the underlying

working capital increased by US$20.2 million, in line with the underlying rate of sales growth in the year (5.1%).

Cash and Borrowings

Ag at 31st March 2007, bank balances and cash were 155149.3 mllhon down US$89.2 million in the year as we used avmlable
casih to reduce our overall borrowing position. . '

As at 31st March 2007, cash balances held in US doilars were down by US$103.6 million at US$68.3 millian, having used

dollar balances to reduce shart term borrowings. Other currencics increased by US$14.4 million to USS$81.0 million. Of this, .

US$37.3 million is held in Euro and US$22.2 million in Renminbi. The spread of currencies in the Group is now maore aligned

to the Company’s location of operations than Jast year. Of the total cash balances 45.7% is in US dollars (compared to 72.1% -

Yast year), 25.0% is in Euro (compared 10 14.4% Fast year), and 14.8% is being held in Renminbi (compared to 8.6% fast year),

At the balance sheet date, total borrowings amounted to US$$573.5 million, a decrease of 35$134.6 million from US$708.1

million fast year. The Group has a five year loan of US$525.0 million which was eriginally drawn down ia November 2003 for -

the acquisition of Saia-Burgess. This is repayable in full on the final maturity date of 31st March 2011, although eaclier
repayment is allowed without penalty,

Capitul Structure and Liquidity
The Group's financizl resources and liquidity remained healthy throughout the year. Net borrowmgs (:om] barrowings net of
cash) at 313t March 2007 were 1J55424,2 million, down US$45.4 illion as compared to US$469.6 million hast yesr.
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55.5% lasL year. The Growp expecis to luwer its gearing ratio turther in the coming year.-

R I

The Group's interest coverane ratio (profit before tax and inlerest expanse divided by interest expense) is 6. Interest expense of
LUS327.9 mithon was incusred on the [oans for the acquisitton of Saia-Burgess and on borrowings to fund the Group’s operanorial
requirgments,

For day-tu-day liyuidity managzment, and to maiatain flexibility in funding, the Group alse has access to significant unutiized
shere-lerm borrewing fucilities provided by its relationship banks which amuount to US3230 miilion,

Fending requirements Tor capital sxpenditures are expecied o be mer by internal cash flows and there are currcnl:[y no plans 10
make any signiticant change in the rate of ¢apital e\:pcndttur:s compared with recent years.

Sl

CORPORATE GOYERNANCE ’ P -

Iohnson Electriv is committed to achicving high standards of corporate governance that properly protect and promote the
interests of its shareholders aad devotes considerable effort to identifying and formalising best practices of corporate governance.

The monitoring and assessment of certain governance matters are allocated 1o four committees: Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee, Nomination And Corporate Governance Committee and Bourd Commutcc which operate under defined teems of
reference and are required to report to the full board on a regular basis. ) . ot -

Full details of the Corporate Guvernance Report are set out in the Annuai Report 2007 of the ‘Company.
. . ' A R

Code on Corporate Governance Practices - e sl

During the year ended 3st March 2007, the Company had complied with the code provnslons set our in the Code on Corporat:

Governance Practices contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules of The Stock Exchnngc of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock -

Exchange™), except for the foilowing deviations: o E O

Cade Provision A.2.1 o f ' i

Code A.2.]1 provides, inter alia. that the rolcs of chairman and chief executive officer shou[d be scparate and should not bc

performed by the same individual. : . L

Neither the Company’s Bye-Laws nor The Johnson Electric Hotdings Limited Company ACK 1988 (a pnvate act of Bcrmuda)
conlging any reguirement as to the separation of these roles.

' P e

P

Dr. Pairick Shui-Chung Wang is the Chairman and Chief Exccutive of the Company. The Board is of the opfnidn that ilM'i;s .

appropriatc and in the best interests of the Company at its present stage of development that Dr. Wang should hold both these,
offices. The Buard belicves that it is able effectively. to monitor and assess management in A’ manner that prop:r!y pmlecls ;\nd
promotes the interests of shareholders, :

Code Provision A4.] and A4.2 - .- . : PR
Code A.4.L provides, inter alia, that non-gxecutive d:rcctors should be agpointed for a specific 1erm subjec( :o e- clccuon

Code A.4.2 alsu provides that every director, including those appointed for a specific tecm, should b: subjcct to rcurernem by
rotation at [cast once every, three years . i . . e T T

Lot A o
- . . - 5, - oo ey

The independeat non- 1-executive dlrccwrs were appomted fora spcmﬁc teem while ‘the ‘nod-executive directors do not have a,;
specific term of nppomtment However, under Section 3{¢) of The Johnson Electric Holdmgs Limited Company Act, 1983 and

the Company's Bye-Law L09{A), one-third of the directors who have served longest on the Board must retire thus. bccommg '

eligible for re-clection at cach Anaual General-Meeting. Accordingly, no director has a term of appointment longer than three
years. Bye-Law [09(A) states that the executive chairman is not suchC( to reurcmcnl by rotation and shall not be counted m,

~

determining the number of directors to retire. i . S
, .

In the opirion of the Board, it is important for the stability and beneficial to the growth of the Company that there is, and is - l
seen to be, continuity of leadership in the role of the Chairman of the Cdmpany and, in consequence, the Board is of the vww .

that the Chairman should not be subjecl to retirement by rotauon or hoid office for alimited term at the present time. -

Model Code for Securities Transactions Coe T .
The Group has adopted procedures governing directors’ securities transacnons in compliance wrlh the Model Code as sct oul in.
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Specific confirmation has been obtained from all directors to confirm compliance with the’

Model Code throughout the year ended 313t March 2007. No incident of noa-compliance was noted by the Company to date in
2006/07, . -

\

Employees who are likely to be in possession of unpubiished price- -sensitive mformanon of the Group are a]so subjec: to A

compliance with guldelmes on no less exacting terms than the Modcl Code:

REVIEW OF ANNUAL RESULTS

The Audit Committee has reviewed the accountmg principles and pracuces adopted by the Group and the annual resutts for the
year ended 31st March 2007 -

s L

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES ' ' ST
The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year. Nclthcr thc Company nor:any of its substdmnes has
purchnsed or sold any of the Company's shares during the year,

PUBLICATION OF RESULTS ANNOUNCEMENT AND ANNUAL REPORT : AR
This results announcement is published on the websites of the Company (www, johasonelectric, com) and the Slock Exchangc
(www.hkex_com.hk). 'The Company's Anouai Report 20607 will be desmtcu:d to the shareholders and av a:lable on the sarne
websites on or about 29th ]une 2007. ' - : 3

BOARD OF DIRECTORS oo W -
A's at the date of this announcement, the board of directors of the Company compnscs Patrick Shui- -Chung Wlng W'mmc W‘Lng-
Yee Wang, Richurd Li-Chung Wang, being the Exccutive Dircctors, and Yik-Chun Koo Wang, Peter Kin-Chung Wang, being the. '

" Non-Executive Directors, and Peter Steart Allenby Edwards, Patrick Blackwell Paul, Michael John Enright; Laura May Lung

Cha und Oscar de Poula Bernardes Neto, being the Independent Non-Executive Directors. : S Lo

'

On behalf. of the board of directors, ~ =

Patrick Shui-Chung Wang

- BESy -
Hong Kong, 8th June 2007 ' : AVA/AAB[ £ éOP
Yy

Website: www johnsonelectric.com

Chairman and Chief Executive PR




